(3)

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY T iooiorec obitominn Somronnmon ron e

BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP.
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP.

Joint Governance Committee Meeting
Wednesday, March 20* 2024 at 12:00 p.m.
ECIDA Offices - 95 Perry Street, 4th Floor
Buffalo, New York 14203

Agenda
1. Approval of Minutes — January 31, 2024 (Action) (Pages 2-3)
2. 2023 PAAA Annual Report (Action) (Pages 4-56)
3. Results of ECIDA’s 2023 Performance Measures (Action) (Pages 57-72)

4. ECIDA Mission Statement & 2024 Performance Measures (Action) (Pages 73-80)

5. 2023 Board of Directors Evaluation/Survey (Action) (Pages 81-84)
6. Governance Committee 2023 Self-Evaluation (Action) (Pages 85-88)
7. Re-Adoption of ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Policies (Action Items)

Airborne Infectious Disease Policy (Pages 89-97)

Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy (Page 98)
Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy (Pages 99-104)

Defense & Indemnification Policy (Page 105)

ECIDA Employee Compensation Program (Pages 106-107)

Fee Structure Policy (For ECIDA & ILDC Only) (Page 108)

Governance Committee Charter (Pages 109-111)

Procurement Policy (Pages 112-116)

Professional Services RFP Process and Policy (Pages 117-119)

Property Disposition Guidelines (Pages 120-126)

Real Property Acquisition Policy (Pages 127-128)

Sexual Harassment Policy (Pages 129-137)

Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Pages 138-140)
Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members (Page 141)
Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy (Pages 142-147)
Whistleblower Policy and Procedures (Pages 148-150)

WOBRBC-ATIER MO A TP

8. PARIS Report Update (informational)
9. Board Member PAAA Training Update (informational)

10. Adjourn

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 » Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

COUNTY



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE OF THE
ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ECIDA),
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP. (RDC)
AND
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP. (ILDC)

DATE: January 31, 2024 at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency, 95 Perry
Street, 4% Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New York 14203

PRESENT: Thomas Baines, Zachary Evans, Hon. Brian Kulpa, Brenda McDuffie, Tyra
Johnson and David State

EXCUSED: Michael Hughes, Hon. Howard Johnson and Kenneth Schoetz

OTHERS PRESENT: John Cappellino, President/CEO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial Officer;
Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Vice President of Operations; Carrie Hocieniec,
Operations Assistant; Brian Krygier, Systems Analyst; and Rachel Baranello,
Esq., General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

GUESTS: None.

There being a quorum present at 12:12 p.m., the Meeting of the Members of the Joint Governance
Committee of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC) and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
(ILDC) was called to order by its Chair, Ms. McDuffie.

MINUTES

The September 19, 2023 minutes of the joint meeting of the Governance Committee of the ECIDA,
RDC and ILDC were presented. Upon motion made by Mr. Kulpa and seconded by Mr. State, the approval
of the September 19, 2023 meeting minutes was unanimously carried.

Mr. Cappellino introduced Rachel Baranello from Harris Beach.
REVIEW “ECIDA 2023 MISSION STATEMENT & PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS -
RESULTS”

Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the 2023 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements In regards to item 1D,
Ms. McDuffie asked for a breakdown of the types of grants-applied for and what was approved/not funded.
Ms. O’Keefe said that information would be added to the document.

General discussion ensued with regard to the remaining Objectives.



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

REVIEW “ECIDA 2024 MISSION STATEMENT & PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS -
GOALS”

Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the 2024 Mission Statement.

Mr. Kulpa noted that we are in a housing crisis, and we need to do more for workforce
housing/affordable housing. General discussion ensued.

Ms. O’Keefe next reviewed the 2024 Performance Measurements, Goals.
General discussion ensued.

There being no further business to discuss, Ms. McDuffie adjourned the meeting at 1:20 p.m.

Dated: January 31, 2024

Carrie A. Hocieniec, Assistant Secretary



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP

2023 ANNUAL REPORT
(For purposes of Section 2800(2) of the Public Authorities Law)



Description of the Agency:

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation
that provides tax incentives, financing programs, export assistance, land development and
other economic development services to the City of Buffalo and Erie County, New York.

ECIDA has two affiliated not-for-profit organizations as follows:

1) Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC). This is a
lending corporation that administers two revolving loan funds (RLFs). The first
was capitalized by an Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant with
matching funds from the City of Buffalo. The EDA released its federal interest in
this original (“Legacy”) RLF in 2021. The second RLF was capitalized by a 2020
EDA grant as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(CARES) Act.

2) Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC).
The ILDC takes ownership of distressed properties to remediate and return them
to productive use. The ILDC was restructured in 2009 to allow it to issue tax-
exempt interest debt on behalf of Erie County to assist local not-for-profit
organizations finance development projects at a lower cost. On behalf of Erie
County, the ILDC also administers the Erie County Business Development Fund,
a micro-loan program funded from HUD Community Development Block Grant
sources.

These corporations are related since they are managed by the same personnel. The
ECIDA and RDC share the same Board of Directors as their oversight body. The ILDC
board is comprised of five members, three of whom are ECIDA Board members. None of
these corporations is owned by another corporation.

Purpose of the Annual Report:

As an industrial development agency, ECIDA and its affiliates are required to comply
with New York State’s Public Authorities Law. Under this Law, the ECIDA and its
affiliates are required to submit a comprehensive annual report that includes information

on.

Operations and accomplishments

Financial reports

Mission statement and measurements

Bonds and notes outstanding

Compensation (for those with a salary in excess of $100,000)
Projects undertaken during the year

Property Report

Code of Ethics

An assessment of internal control structure and effectiveness
0 Legislation that forms the statutory basis of the authority

AW

SO®RNewm

2

-5-



11. Board structure

12. By-Laws

13. Listing of material changes in operations and programs during the reporting year
14. Four-year financial plan

15. Board Performance Evaluations

16. Assets/Services bought or sold without competitive bidding

17. Description of material pending litigation

In compliance with the Public Authorities Law, the following required information is
presented for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

1. Operations & Accomgﬁsﬁments:

A report on the 2023 operations and accomplishments of the ECIDA and its affiliates is
posted on the ECIDA’s website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports.

2. Financial Reports:

i) Audited Financial Statements:

The audited financial statements for the ECIDA and its affiliates are posted on the
ECIDA’s website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports while the
financial statement certification is included on page 9.

The financial statements are audited on an annual basis by independent auditors,
Lumsden McCormick, LLP. In their opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the ECIDA and its affiliates as of December
31, 2023, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

ii) Grants & Subsidy Programs:

The ECIDA and its affiliates are recipients of various pass-through Federal, State and
local grant programs that are utilized for land development, loan, and other economic
development programs. Details of the various grants are outlined in the notes to the

audited financial statements.

In accomplishing its mission, ECIDA does not receive any operational funding or
subsidies from Federal, State, County or local sources. Instead, ECIDA relies primarily
upon administrative fees charged to those businesses that utilize its products and services.

- 111) Operating & Financial Risks:
The following outline some of the operating and financial risks that impact the ECIDA
and its affiliates:

e New York State Legislation — The New York State Legislature can impose
various restrictions on the ability of Industrial Development Agencies to provide
tax incentives which could significantly impact the revenue of the ECIDA.

3

-6-



* Collectability of loans receivable — The RDC and ILDC operate various revolving
loan programs and as such their financial results are impacted by the collectability
of the related loans.

¢ Litigation — To provide various tax incentives or grants, ECIDA takes a leasehold
or ownership interest in various properties and is at times brought into various
lawsuits that could impact ECIDA’s financial results or affect insurability.

® Regulations — The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC are subject to various regulations
including those imposed by the NYS Authorities Budget Office and the Federal
Economic Development Administration. These regulations may increase the cost
of compliance or impact the financial position of the Agency.

» Local economic conditions — Since ECIDA relies upon fees generated from
various projects that it assists, a reduction in the number and/or size of those
projects would significantly impact the Agency’s revenues.

The ECIDA mitigates a portion of the above risks through prudent financial management,
external legal guidance and comprehensive insurance coverage.

iv) Current bond ratings:

The ECIDA and ILDC act as conduits for tax-exempt bond financings by various not-for-
profit and other eligible borrowers. As conduit bond issuers, ECIDA and ILDC do not
issue bonds on their own behalf and therefore are not rated by municipal bond rating

agencies.

v) Long-term liabilities including leases and employee benefit plans:

The ECIDA has long-term liabilities that are recorded on its financial statements related
to funds held on behalf of others under certain fiduciary arrangements as outlined in the
notes to the ECIDA audited financial statements. ECIDA does not have any long-term
liabilities under employee benefit plans as ECIDA employees are not covered by any
defined benefit pension plans or provided with any post-retirement benefits.

The ECIDA (as lessee) has a lease for its office space and three minor long-term leases
for office equipment. The office lease is recognized as a right-to-use lease asset and lease
liability in the audited financial statements.

3. Mission Statement & Performance Measurements:

The ECIDA’s Mission Statement & Measurements Report for 2023 is included in
Attachment 1. This document was reviewed and approved by the Board at the March 22,

2023 Board meeting.

4. Schedule of Bonds and Notes Outstanding:

Attachment 2 summarizes ECIDA’s and ILDC’s bonds and notes outstanding at
December 31, 2023. The indebtedness shown on these schedules is conduit debt and is
not an obligation of ECIDA, ILDC, Erie County or New York State. Neither the ECIDA
nor the ILDC records the assets or liabilities resulting from completed bond and note



issues in their accounts since their primary function is to facilitate the financing between
the borrowing companies and the bond and note holders.

5. Compensation Schedule:

See Attachment 3 for a list of ECIDA employees who had a salary exceeding $100,000
during 2023. Attachment 3A is a summary of benefits provided to those staff as per the
New York State Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). Biographies
for these individuals are posted on the ECIDA website at http://www.ecidany.com/staff-
directory. Salaries and benefit information for other ECIDA staff are also reported under

the PARIS system.

None of the directors of ECIDA or its affiliates receive any compensation for their
services as directors. None of the officers of ECIDA or its affiliates receive any
compensation for their services as officers beyond their compensation as employees.
None of the ECIDA affiliates had any employees during 2023.

6. Projects Undertaken by the Corporation during 2023:

Attachment 4 details the tax-exempt bonds and tax abatements that were approved during
2023. Attachments 4A and 4B detail the loans that were funded in 2023 by the RDC and

ILDC, respectively.

7. Listing of Certain Property of the Corporation:

Attachment 5 provides information regarding the real property holdings of the ECIDA
and its affiliates. This listing excludes the hundreds of properties in which the ECIDA has
technical title in order to convey certain tax or other benefits. The properties presented
are those where the ECIDA and its affiliates have “real” beneficial ownership.

8. Code of Ethics:

The Corporation’s Code of Ethics is posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http.//www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-policies.

9. Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Control Structure and Procedures:

Management’s Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls of the ECIDA, RDC
and ILDC is posted on the ECIDA’s website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-us-

corporate-reports.

The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC’s independent auditors have conducted an audit of the
internal control over financial reporting and their report is included in the audited
financial statements posted on the ECIDA’s website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-

us-corporate-reports.

10. Legislation that forms the Statutory Basis of the Authority:

5

-8-



ECIDA
Industrial development agencies (“IDAs”) are formed under Article 18-A of New York

State General Municipal Law, as public benefit corporations. IDAs were created to
actively promote, encourage, attract and develop job and recreational opportunities and
economically-sound commerce and industry in cities, towns, villages and counties
throughout New York State (the “State”). IDAs are empowered to provide financial
assistance to private entities through tax incentives in order to promote the economic
welfare, prosperity and recreational opportunities for residents of a municipality
(“Benefited Municipality™).

Section 891a of the General Municipal Law outlines the composition of the Erie County
IDA membership and additional powers granted to the ECIDA. A copy of this specific
legislation can be found at the following address:
http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/LAWSSEAF.cgi?QUERYTYPE=LAWS+&QUER YDA
TA=33GMU891-A$$@TXGMUO0891-
A+&LIST=ELAW+&BROWSER=EXPLORER+&TOKEN=35134270+&TARGET=VIE

w

RDC & ILDC
The RDC & ILDC are local development corporations which are formed and empowered

to conduct certain projects pursuant to Not-For-Profit Corporation Law §1411.
Distinguished from IDAs (which exist as public benefit corporations), LDCs are
established as charitable corporations that are empowered to construct, acquire,
rehabilitate and improve for use by others, industrial or manufacturing plants in the
territory in which its operations are principally to be conducted (‘“Benefited Territory™)
and to make loans. LDCs can provide financial assistance for the construction,
acquisition, rehabilitation, improvement, and maintenance of facilities for others in its
Benefited Territory. Specific LDC powers include the ability to: (i) disseminate
information and furnish advice, technical assistance and liaison services to Federal, State
and local authorities; (i1) to acquire by purchase, lease, gift, bequest, devise or otherwise,
real or personal property; and (iii) to borrow money and to issue negotiable bonds, notes
and other obligations. LDCs are empowered to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose
of or encumber facilities or any real or personal property or any interest therein.

A copy of this specific legislation can be found at the following address:
http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/LAWSSEAF.cgi?QUERYTYPE=LAWS+&QUERYDA
TA=3SNPC1411$$@TXNPCO1411+&LIST=LAW+&BROWSER=EXPLORER+&TO
KEN=35134270+& TARGET=VIEW

11. Description of the Authority and its Board Structure:

i) Names of Committees and Committee Members:




The ECIDA and its affiliates operate several committees as outlined on the ECIDA
website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-board-committees. Attachment 6 outlines

the committee members.

ii) Lists of Board Meetings & Attendance:
A list of the various Board meetings and Board attendance is outlined on Attachment 7.

iti) Description of major authority units, subsidiaries:
The ECIDA and its affiliates do not have any subsidiaries.

iv) Number of Employees:
The ECIDA had 18 full-time employees during 2023.

v) Organizational Chart;
The ECIDA’s organizational chart is posted on the ECIDA’s website at:
https://www.ecidany.com/documents/Press Room/Organizational %20Chart%20-

%20as%200f%20June%202019.pdf

12. Bvlaws:

The Bylaws for the ECIDA and its affiliates are posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://'www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-policies.

13. Listing of Material Changes in Operations and Programs:

ECIDA, through its development arm ILDC, continued redevelopment work at
Renaissance Commerce Park (RCP) in Lackawanna, NY. Steelworkers Way was
completed, connecting the Dona Street Extension with the northern parcels, and serving
as an access road between the TMP Technologies and Uniland parcels. Uniland
Development also celebrated the ribbon cutting at 8 Dona Street, which was their first
warehouse/distribution facility at RCP. In 2023 Uniland commenced construction of a
second warehouse/distribution facility on the parcel adjacent to 8 Dona, located at 2
Steelworkers Way. Infrastructure work also continued, and ILDC presented a public
information hearing on a possible passive park located on a bluff overlooking Lake Erie.

The ILDC also continued work on the Master Plan/GEIS for the ILDC’s other major
property, Erie County Agribusiness Park, in Evans, NY. This work is being completed
with grant support from National Grid ($354,000) and Erie County ($230,000). A
$250,000 grant was also awarded by Empire State Development to be used for building
demolition, sewer, and roadway work. Construction of a water tower and two Master
Plan options were completed, in anticipation of the public hearing for the Draft GEIS in

early 2024.

The RDC continued to operate two revolving loan funds (RLFs) in 2023, providing
favorable terms to businesses who may not qualify for traditional lending from banks. By
the end of 2023, the RDC’s funds available for lending were replenished to
approximately $3,000,000. The RDC Board approved an updated Loan Administration

7

-10-



Plan (LAP), which includes a new line of credit product designed to help businesses in
targeted industries grow their businesses and create jobs in Erie County. Special lending
terms for MWBE businesses were also codified in the LAP.

The ECIDA Board approved a new enhanced PILOT benefit designed to increase MWBE
contract and hiring opportunities on projects that receive ECIDA PILOT benefits. The
Economic Inclusion Policy offers up to 25% less in PILOT payments if the project meets
agreed-upon MWBE contract and/or hiring goals.

14. Four-Year Financial Plan:

A copy of the four-year financial plan is posted on the ECIDA’s website at
https://www .ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports.

15. Board Performance Evaluations:

The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC Boards of Directors conducted a Board Performance
Evaluation in 2023 and forwarded the results to the Authorities Budget Office. The
surveys are not subject to disclosure under article six of the Public Officers Law.

16. Assets/Services bought or sold without competitive bidding:

Attachments 8, 8A, and 8B are Procurement Reports that are filed using PARIS for the
ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC respectively. These reports outline the assets and services
purchased through competitive and non-competitive bidding for all procurements in

excess of $5,000.

17. Description of material pending litigation:

The audited financial statements for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC outline any material
pending litigation. The audited financial statements are posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports.

-11-



Certification Pursuant to Section 2800(3) of the Public Authorities Law

Pursuant to Section 2800 (3) of the Public Authorities Law, each of the undersigned
officers of Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation, and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation does hereby certify with respect to the annual financial report
of the Corporation (the “Annual Financial Report”) posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports that based on the officer’s

knowledge:

1. The information provided in the Annual Financial Report is accurate, correct and
does not contain any untrue statement of material fact;

2. Does not omit any material fact which, if omitted, would cause the financial
statements contained in the Annual Financial Report to be misleading in light of
the circumstances under which such statements are made; and

3. Fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of
operations of the Corporation as of, and for, the periods presented in such
financial statements.

John Cappellino
President & CEO

Mollie Profic
Vice President/CFO

-12-



Attachment 1

2023 Mission Statement and Performance Measures with Results

is included elsewhere in this package and not repeated to reduce size

-13-



ECIDA Bonds ATTACHMENT 2

R ———— = : R — — - T

1 EpS T | tarirSitel Srikie) G e
S rIstEan : EORE B TIO NN 1A CCL202 GO 026 eI StRA 5 02 S ST ¢
Niagara Maryland Development,
1062 |M&T Bank LLC $2,500,000| $ 215,000 | $ - 13 215,000 |var 295088FM5 6/1/23
New York
Housing Finance
2360 |Agency 2009 Shoreline Apartments LLC $9,000,000| $ 1,096,892 | § 1,044,869 | § 52,023 |0.055 5003 11/30/41
Bank of New Our Lady of Victory Renaissance
2516 |York Mellon Corporation $11,860,000| $ 6,805,000 | § 6,275,000 | § 530,000 |Variable 4/1/32
2591 |M&T Bank Canislus High School $22,250,000/ $ 9,900,000 | $ 9,475,000 | § 425,000 |var 1012768 2/1/38
Joint Schools Construction Board
10194 |M&T Bank 2013 Refund of 2009A Bonds $62,540,000/ $ 60,235,000 | 59,935,000 | § 300,000 |var 254 5/1/28
U.S. Bank 1036945,
National Medaille College 2013 Refund of 1036947,
10216 |Association ECIDA 2003 Bond $18,240,000{ $ 13,010,000 | $ - 1% 13,010,000 |fixed 1036932 2/16/35
Joint Schools Construction Board
(Refund of 2007A & 2008A
10291 |M&T Bank bonds) - Series 2015A $236,975,000| $ 140,925,000 |[$ 120,385,000 | $ 20,540,000 |var. H378 2029

Joint Schools Construction Board
Series 2016A (Refund of 2009A

10342 |MAT Bank Bonds) $133,5680,000| $ 100,275,000 | $ 84,405,000 | § 15,870,000 |2.17 118534-000 2031
Zions CPC7068801,

10404 |Bancorporation  |Marina Vista $13,300,000{ $ 12,768,730 | § 12,571,935 | § 196,795 |fixed 7916 12120/37
U.S. Bank
National Related Affordable/Elmwood 1.846%,

10504 |Association Square Apartments $8,590,000/ $ 8,590,000 |$ 8,534,149.62 | § 55,850.38 |Fixed 234450000 2038

Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the

10621 |M&T Bank City of Buffalo -2021 series $109,135,000| $ 103,935,000 | $ 95,955,000 | § 7,980,000 |Fixed 2032
Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the
10730|M&T Bank City of Buffalo - 2022 series $71,150,000| % 71,150,000 | & 51,945,000 | $ 19,205,000 |Fixed 156152-000 2026
Huntington OAHS Tonawanda TC, LLC Account number
10758 |National Bank  |(Tonawanda Towers) $ 11,090,000 | § 11,090,000 | $ 11,090,000 | $ -  |Fixed 5082001861 10/1/2062
Wilmington Trust
National Ellicott Park Townhomes
10764 |Association Community Partners, LP $33,000,000 $33,000,000/ $ 32,935,000 | $ 65,000 |5.45% fixq161477-000 4/1/2067
U.S. Bank 248174000
National Westchester Park Perservation
10809 |Association LP $22,310,000 $22,310,000/ $ 22,310,000 | § - |4.23% fixs 2041

Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the

10813 |M&T Bank City of Buffalo - 2023A $57,270,000 $57,270,000 57,270,000 | $ - |5.0% fixeq166740-000 2028

©“

$ 652575622 |[$§ 574,130,953

-14-



eI ATT

ILDC Bonds

NS ELHURE AL Ce Ry 2 RS ST BP0 2 S

ATTACHMENT 2

IRISFEETIATS

ki) ‘x‘:‘ilnl'ﬁj'—_‘ '

Bank. EAOIECENATHES EondAmsnt SR ek
UMB Bank Enterprise Charter School $7,345,000.00 $6,060,000.00 $5,895,000.00 $165,000 7.5 1032851
Cantalician Center for Learning-
M&T Bank Series A $9.525,000 $4,953,333 $4,440,000 $513,333 |var. 1034105
The Bank of New
York Melion Catholic Health System $93.800,000 $72,980,000 $68,500,000.00 $4,480,000 5
The Bank of New |Orchard Park CCRC, Inc. a/k/a
York Mellon Fox Run $44,490,000 $35,550,000 $34,055,000 $1,495,000 |1-5% ORCHRDPARK15
Canisius College of Buffalo,
New York - Refund of 2004-
2005 DASNY Bonds - Series Libor rate:
M&T Bank 2015A $30,760,000.00 $19,825,000.00 $18.865,000.00 $960,000 |1.3375 3233822
Canisius College of Buffalo,
New York - Refund of 2004-
2005 DASNY Bonds - Series Libor rate:
M&T Bank 20158 $16,195,000.00 $16,195,000.00 $16,195.000.00 $0 [1.4075 3233830
M&T Bank 854 Ellicott Street, LLC $44,328,500 $40,003,376.32 $39,055,046.90 $948,329.42 2.95|99-6641368-3
Series A - 123350-000
M&T Bank Tapestry Charter School $33,900,000.00  $32,150,000.00 $31,645,000.00 $505,000 Series B - 123351-000
Charter Schoo! for Applied Varies: 4.25%-
U.S. Bank Technologies $22,995,000.00 | $18,340.000.00 $17,285,000.00 $1,055,000 [5.00% 220612000
Medaille College 2018 Series
Refunding of 2010 Bonds
MAT Bank (ILDC) $9,350,000.00 $9.045,000.00 $0.00 $9.045,000
Global Concepts Charter
Wilmington Trust |School $6,185,000.00 . $5,290,000.00 $5,045,000.00 $245,000 |4 & 5% 131876-000
U.S. Bank D'Youwille College $48,205,000.00 |  $46,525,000.00 $45,615,000.00 $910,000 |Variable 234594000
Key Government [134 High Street, LLC, Series
Finance, Inc. 2022 $19,635,847.21 $19,023,082.11 $18,269,755.69 $753,326.42 2.92%
$325,939,791 $304.864.803

-15-




ATTACHMENT 3

Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Compensation Schedule
Year Ended: December 31, 2023

The following employees had a base salary greater than $100,000 in 2023:

Performance Payroll
Name Title Salary Compensation Taxes* Benefits Total
John Cappell-ino President & CEO $ 205,000 - 13,157 41612 | $ 259,769
Elizabeth O'Keefe Vice President - Operations $ 120,000 - 9,432 23844 | 3 163,276
Mollie Profic Vice President & CFO $ 115,605 - 9,096 37485 | $ 162,186
Grant Lesswing Director of Business Development | $ 106,822 - 8,424 29,739 | $ 144,985

* Represents Employer's Share of FICA taxes (Social Security & Medicare) & NYS Unemployment Insurance taxes

-16-




Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation
Year Ended: December 31, 2023

ATTACHMENT 4

Projected  Net Jobs

Year2 Projectedto Lease Project Tax Exempt
Company Jobs be Created Amount Bond Amount  Date Approved
1 Moog, Inc. 180 0 $ 76,750,800 3/22/2023
2 Lactalis American Group, inc. 403 27 44,526,000 11/29/2023
3 Westchester Park Preservation 5 1 35,600,000 22,310,000 10/25/2023
4 BPS Commissary Kitchen 66 15 33,067,799 7/26/2023
5 356 Hertel Ave, LLC 42 42 32,067,800 2122/2023
6 IMA Life North America 150 30 27,556,179 9/27/2023
7 Wood and Brooks Properties, LLC 3 3 23,127,638 4/26/2023
8 1175 Delaware Place 2 2 16,750,000 11/29/2023
9 Stark Real Estate Holdings 180 130 16,250,000 6/28/2023
10 Rosina Food Products, Inc. 291 15 16,000,000 6/28/2023
11 Commitment 2000/Father Sam's 88 12 8,623,800 212212023
12 TM Montante/50 Gates Circle 4 0 3,465,838 5/31/2023
13 Trautman Associates/130 Pead, LLC 2 2 2,477,047 7/26/2023
14 JSCB Series 2023A Refunding of 2013A Bonds 0 0 65,000,000 10/25/2023

Total: 1416 279 § 336,262,901 $ 87,310,000

-17-



ATTACHMENT 4A

Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation

Projects Undertaken by the Corporation (Loans)

Company
1 Perry's Ice Cream

2 Linita Design & Manufacturing
3 Sherex Fastening Solutions

4 Top Seedz, LLC

5 Rust Belt Love, Inc.

6 El Encanto Café, Inc.

Year Ended: December 31, 2023

-18-

Total

$

Loan Amount

2,000,000
750,000
750,000
750,000
100,000
100,000

$

4,450,000

Date Closed

6/21/2023
4/21/2023
3/16/2023
4/28/2023
1/24/2023
4/21/2023



ATTACHMENT 4B

1

Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation {Loans)
Year Ended: December 31, 2023

Company Loan Amount Date Closed
1 Kevin Thie d/b/a Buffalo Firewood S 35,000 4/11/2023
2 David Grapes, Jr d/b/a Grapes Lawn and Landscape 35,000 6/12/2023
3 Elaine Urbanowicz d/b/a Urbanowicz Acres 35,000 7/6/2023
4 Dark Forest Chocolate Makers Inc. 35,000 7/31/2023
5 J.P Mobil Detailing LLC 35,000 9/6/2023
6 Taylor'd Beauty LLC 35,000 10/30/2023
7 Beach's Motorcycle Adventures Ltd. 35,000 10/31/2023
8 Beauty Blends Tattoo & Spa Inc. 35,000 11/13/2023

Total S 280,000

-19-



‘elqejieae j) ‘|esieidde Jo (ajqeolidde J sjes uogezienba e} Joj pajsnipe) enjea passasse uo paseq ,
“diys1auMO [eoyauaq Jead, sey Y103 oy alaym asoy) aue pajussald saguadoid ay)

SIyBUSQ J3UI0 JO XE} UIBID ABAUOD 0} JBPIO UL 3} [EJIUYDS) SBY YAIDT Bl YDIuM ur sapsadoud jo spaspuny ey sapnjoxa Bulisy) anoge ) Jey) Sjou asesly

pied asjg aseyaing 49)jag Jo ssappy P aweN Auadoad jo Ausdoag jo uopdyiasaq fin4 Auadoud jo uopeso pue ssaippy JaumQ
J0 ajeqg AN4d
pajewnsy
"£20Z Buunp paunboe sem jey Auadord [2al e o Bups)) & s Bumoyjoy ay), "¢ ag ..0..
P3A|233Y 321y | ajeg jo ayeg laseyaind jo ssaippy p auleN Auadoud jo adoud jo uondussaq yng Auadosd Jo uoneso pue S§SaIppy 1R_UMQ
AN
pajewns3

S INJWHOVLLY

"€20Z Buunp yo pasodsip sem jey) Auadoud 1234 jie pue (000's$ Jo s599%3 U1 (L, AW4.) anjea 13jiew ey e yum) Apadoud jeuosiad jo Bups) e si Bumoiio) sy 'z siqe

1EE'619'L § BuIpIINg *J'S 89¢'6L/M PUE] JUBDEA 10 SaIE 68261 81T AN ‘euuemeyoe’] ‘axidwny finquep gogg oal
90S5'€02 Sbuipjing |e1RJBWIWED HyMm puel Jo sae 66°LE2 900%} AN ‘suea3 ‘peoy JajuaD SuUeA3 usp3 9zG| oley |}
00002 puej juedep 0Si¥L AN ‘BPUBMEUO] ‘PROY JOAIY Gipe 201
000'008°1 AJljioey 82y)0 J0o; aienbs £0g'z ) €0ZF1 AN ‘0lB)INg ‘JoRU)S 9asauaD) gy | vaio3d
ooo'siz’L ¢ asNoYIIem [elIawWwiLo) 8LerlL AN vaio3
‘Bliuemexoe] ‘axidwin BinquieH ‘p°N - 18juan) apes) Aemalegy
uadoag Auadoid jo uopdussaq (ing Ayiadoud Jo uoj3EI0 pue sSAPPY JoUMQ
10 AN
pajewnsy

€202 ‘1€ 12qUI303Q 18 Sejelye S) Pue YQID3 eyl Aq paumo Auadoid jeai (12 Jo Buijsy @ ) Bummalo ay) L 9qey

€202 ‘1€ Jaquadeq :papug Jeay
Hodoy Auadosy

Kouaby yuswdojanaq leMysnpuj fjunog aug



43

143

x31e1S piaeq |

a3

LYUWS eane

143

143

143

719042S Y1auua)

3

E|

uadpid sniieq

143

43

21e2U0|0d ey

43

L-E|

Y3

SH|SN uu3|9

43

+ASJUBIDN pireq

43

143

43

AYNQI epuaig

193

uemodIA asiuag

d3

AsunieDop uesns “ig

K|

143

-E|

2y1sdi pJeyany

Y3

Ldintel Aduepn

193

ed|ny ueug

143

L-E|

XNH-uosuyor edA|

LE]

uosuyofr pijemoH

-E}

s9YSnH |aeyun

43

x4NOPUEBS e2)3(aY

Jay3se|jen amoQg

¥3

143

43

ssueaj Aieyoez

3

L E|

198uiwwy ydasor

143

+ABUUOHaQ uosi||y

43

43

umoug uohug

43

an|g J4en

143

Bsmo)zauag aueiqg

143

3

«YHmpag Auuag

d3

+ SouAeg 1y

43

«upiseg |Ludy

43

sSauleg sewoy |

- |

43

10qqy asiuag

HO
-a1LM
ueoy

ueoy

Adjogd

Suneujwopn

upny
9 dueuly

uonesuadwo)

IVUBUIBA0DH

aA1NIaXg

awepn

94 Juawiypeny

JQTI=1 2aY=Y ‘van3 =3 :Aay

(€zZ/TE/TT 0 V)

saalwwo) paeoqd JA11/2ayY/van3

-21-



slaquiaw pieog-uop ,

43 +SPOOM 32A0Y
143 143 £UDQIZNM welpm
Y3 143 JINA |Ned
¥3 e1qo1 uyor "uoy
3 «10JAe] [2RyOIN
1¥3 «CIeNZS |2eyAN
E] +Suaydals uoaer
HO
-9 I Upny aAINIBX]
ueoy ueo) | Adtjod | Suneuiwopn | g ueuly | uopesuadwo) | adueuIIAOD
J2AT1=1 2QY=Y ‘vaid3 =3 :Asy
(€Z/TE/zT 10 5V)
9it Juswyoeny SIapiwwo) pieog 3Q1i/2ay/vap3

-22-



MPANA jned

2120435 Yauua)y

uadpud snyeq “aay

21e2U0J0d Y[ ‘UOH

SI[IaN uua|9 "UoH

3PNGIN @ﬂ:&..ﬂ—

o) x| x| x

uemo aswag|

x| | x| x| x

ol x| x| x| x

ausdy pieyany

LI IRIE IR

edjn) Uelg ‘uoH

x

x

uosuyor esAy

ol o) x| | x| x| x| x

uosuyor pJemoy

sayany ey

Jaydejies amoq

128uiuw3 ydasor ‘uoH

Apayoq sawey

umoug uciAg "uoHq

ang yep "Asy

X

psmoyzauag auelq

X

X

noqqy asiuag

RIIN ON

€z/sz/or

Jupse oN

Supasn oN

Jupsapw oN

£2/92/v

€zfee/e

13474914

upaan oN

Pl ]

SI0N,

BO

hapy

1dy

s

q34

uer

s2qua

JUANA {ned

HE
-23-

730425 Ylauua)

uaBplg snieq "AY

2JE2UD|Od HBIA ‘UOH

SIISN UU3[9 ‘UoH

a1NQ3N BPURIG

IR IR IR

UBMODIN ASWBQ

x| x| x| x| X

MKl | m| x| »| x

MK | x| x| x

x| x| x| x| x

“Af 2usdr] peyary

ed|ny ueug “uoy

uosuyor eiAy

UOSUYO[ PIEMOH *UOH

SaysnH jsey3anA

1aydeyieg s30q

1a3uiuwg ydasof "uoy

Auzyoq sawer

umaig uoiAg ‘uoH

an|g yiep ‘nay

X

X

X

DISMOYZausg aueiq ‘uoy

X

X X

X

X

X

noqqy asiuag

S3upasaw on

£z/6z/t1

ev/sziot

£T/L2/6

Jupisaw on

£T/9t/L €2/82/9

€2/1¢/S

€2/9t/y

€2/2e/E

€z/zefe

Jupaap oN

vani

vana

AON

dag

nf unf

Aewy

1dy

=N

L]

saquisiy

L4 Wawyeny

Q3aN3ILLY = X

LSI71 ONILIIN YIBWIIN QYOS SILVITISIVY ANV YaID3I £202



-24-

X X X X X X X 2J82U0[04 YIEW "UOH

4 X X X X ) 4 Zusdry paeyory

X X X UOSUYOT PJEMOH “UoH

X X X N x x X 33se] [31ueg

X UMQJg uoJAg ‘uoH

X X X upjseq jady "uoy

X X X X X X 1oqqy asiuag
£2/0Z/tx 3upaay oN €z/sz/ot €z/1z/e Bupaaw on |Bunddn on | Supaein oN £T/18/S £z/9z/y €T/ee/e €e/Tefe Bupsapy oN 200 a1
=oN 2q aoN vo dag Iy e unr ey 1dy e Qo4 uEp squapy|  pieog

d3aaNauy=x
L wBwiypdeny

4511 SNILIIN ¥IENAW QHYO0S SILVIAAY ANV VaID3 €202




0Z jo | afeq

8 INJWHOVLLY

ZWE 80UBULJ SjElS o) 16 (6)6E L
UOHOeS YiiM 83UEPIOIOR U} ‘POLINII0 BABY SUOHBIOIA BIGUM SBOUBISU| L] SUONOUBS esodw) o) pue ‘yuewensoud
SOA 8 Buunp 108100 ejqissiuedw) jo suopebejje ejeByseau] pue meinel o) sseacud & eABY Auoyiny ey} seoq (]
419BjU00 Biqissjuuedw) sjy) Jo BpBW PI03a) B SBM ‘SoAl | eg
LM
eauBUld a1l eu) JO (0LIFEE L UCHIRS LM BOUBPIOIOB U ‘poued Bupiodas ey Buunp Jueweinaasd ey} sousnyy)
ON 0} peyduieye o Jusweinoaxd e Buunp peL0o Siqissjunieduy| pey Jopuex B jeip eujulejep Alowyny e pig 8
<10V BUGqo ueLuainotig oy, ME] eouBul ejels oy Jo (B)(Z)I-6EL UORIES YMm BOUEPIOIDE
89A | U] Jueweinaoud ayoeds & U PEUOD PEZLOLING Bu SB aAles 0} suosied Jo uosied & eyeuBisep Auoyny ey piq L
S1ORJLOD JUBLLEIND0.T J0) SLOJEDUIBTS J0 'SJUSWINIOP piq '8|esodoid
SOA 40 uopEoljos sY Uy @Ea_:o_n pue sepjjod Juswainooud sy Jo Alewins 8 ajeiodiodu) Ajuony eiy seoq 9
SOA JuowesaiBe tiojsn|iea-uou & UBjs 0} sI0ppjq eARoedsoid alinbas Aogny ey seoq ‘G
oN 4seseyaind sseu|snq Jo/pue |eAel Joj seakojdwe o} 8pJBD Ypesd ubjsse AQuopny ey seoq R
oN 2sauliepiné etwainooud ey o) suopdeoxe 4o} mofje Auoiny oL seaq g
SOA ipiuog ey Aq parasdde pue ‘papesu j) pepuse ‘Ajenuue Pemajaas soujjepind Juswiainaaid ey ery 2
32.8.820&8&:.53%:8.;5!8.;32\6&: SOA 2seujjepinG Jueweindosd easy Ajuoyny i) seoq ‘L
osuodsey uopeenD |
TuopeLoju] Jusuieanaolg

VN : 8jeQ paynen
A3LLINENSNN Sniels
L(ATATAN 8jeg uny

€202/1€/e) Bulpu3 Jeap eosiy

foueby juswdojaaq [eusnpu; Aunog au3j oy poday uswaInaoid

LLIDASAS LICR IR LLIBC ) LB EETY Wi e EES S RECE ST VYRR b S NN e T

S 2 NS o e

-25-



/14

Jo z ebey

Junowy e uey)
uopdpaseq $307 8| ON[BA 10BN
£2/LE/21-22/1e/2| efeiaroco Ayuqe)| ss80Xe pucdes juswainaosd 484 ey Aym ujeydxg
LN F]
soleIg pejun Anunoy 00'058"2$ 104 papusdxg Junowry
uojBey/edujroig 00'058'2$ junowy
¥ snid GN{BA JOURY Jj84
€e6ey opoJ [%jsod £20Z/LERL ejeq pu3
N qe}s C20TLERZL g piemy
ONISNV1 19 Pig eapedwo) - yoeguo) Auoyny $8830.d plemy
Zoup] ssalppy BYIO ewaIndalg jo onl>...|
8NUGAY PURIS) *N 002 Leu] sselppy edpewy Jo Auedwos souBRINSU| PUN Juepiooy BWEN JOPUBA Z
WNoWy oY) usLy)
uopdudseq $967 8] ON[BA JorLIBY
sajepdn uogesydde ueoyeARuasU| X8} ‘eauBUGIUIBW B}SGEM JUGLIAINIOUG Jed 0wy Aym upeidxg
ITONT-F]
$8JBIS peyun Agunogy 00°592's$ 404 pspuediz Junowy
uojBey/eauiacig 00'§92's$ unowy
¥ snid ON{BA JOUEH IR
0SLylL 9po) [93s0d Qg puz
AN ans 0L0Z/\2/8 818Q piemy
VYANVMVYNOL Ao Pig 8ARpedwo) - pequos Auoyny $30001d pIRMY
Zouj ssaippy yoddng Jo yuewdojeneq/Bupinsuos - ABojouyoe } JUSWIBINI0I 0 8dAL
OAUQ usppays 8.9 18Ul sseuppy wod'9Sd 098 SWeN Jopusp ‘b
BURS OfjovsURI] JU

VIN - 8leqg payiuad
Q3LLINGNSNN snielg
8leq uny

LAVTAr4 ¥ 0]

£202/1€/Z1 ‘Buipu3 Jeap (€084

Aauaby Juswidojaas(g feuysnpuy| Aunog su3 1oy yoday wewainiold

LLLAAEATS AR LT LR A Ch L) :.__,_a_..u:.,....zl__.u.L.__:__..v.....__.—...l\ LI e oy .

SIS Ve

-26-



0Z Jo ¢ abeyd

Wnoury ey ueyy

uopidsaseq 8897 8| oNjEA YO UBY

BujspieApe ejpow [ejoos pue ojpes (800 pejetue Juewesnaolg J|Bd oy Aym ujejdxy
1804 [89s1d

sejels pajun Anunog 05'260'62$ | Jod pepuediy Junowy

uojBey/esujraig Junouny

¥ snjd ON[BA 10BN JjRd

9zZzyL 8po) ¥isod e18Q pu3

AN ams 98q pieMy

OW44na fiTh) 18I0 85BYINEAUBLIGINIOL JOBRUOY) UON 39204 pIRMY

002 8ling ToUT ssauppy $8|AI0g [BUOjSSaj0I JBYID JUGWIBINI0L o 8dA}

Aemyed sjeiodion gog Leu|] sseuppy "0uj ‘suopesado Asepny QUIRN JOpusp ‘b

~ Junowy ey} ueyy

(r0S$) suopeys)Ba JueAe pue djysiequisw uopdpaseq $307 8] ON[BA JOUB
(005'p$) Bujpury Juewdojeasp elysqem sai04 Y58 Ssousng AUNoD eyg Jusweunsaid 1o ey Aym ujedxy
Jeo, [89s]]

S98S payun Agunog 00'$00'S5$ Jog pepuedxz junowy

uojBeyy/esuiroig unouny

¥ shid ON{BA JONIRW Jjo4

(Y44 4" 8poY [B1sod ejeq pu3

AN aje)s eje(Q piemy

FTUASWVITIIM L E) 48pIO BSBLUIUNGAUBIAIND0I] 10BAUOD UON 886201 piemy

051 9yng Touj] ssauppy B30 JuSWaINI0L jo edK|

peoy Aefss3 OOt Leu|y sselppy "DU| ‘80IBWILLIY JO JBqLIBYY SISy GWEN JOPUBA €

VIN ' 81eq payned
G3LLINGNSNN ‘snejg
¥20zZ/ZL/e0 |jeg uny

€202/1 €121 ‘Bupuz Jea, |eosid

Aauaby yuswdojeraq [eusnpu) funog au3 10) Poday juswaInooid

e AL i ) L0 IR CB e 3y =i B T b g0 TR =

Y TN o

-27-



14

10 p abed

wnowy ey} uey)
sdiysiosuods JueAs uopdpaseq $307 | onjeA JO BN
Pue uogea|iqnd sseujsnq Apjeam |eaoj u| subjedwes Bujspieape pejebue | JusieIndold ey oy »Esl ujedxy
1894 (8383
Sejels psyun Aunog 00°0/2'sE$ 404 pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBeyeaujacig Junoury
¥ snid ONBA JOXURW JB4
151744 8p0) |ejsod ojeqQ pug
AN ams ajrg piemy
Ov4ddng [ Th) J9pIQ esBLRINgAUSWEINDOL JOBIUOY UON $38304d piemy
Zoun ssauppy 80 JewsIn0ud Jo edA) |
198ng Uje g Leur] sseippy 181|4 sseujsng ojeyng QLUBYN JOPUSA 9
unoury ey ueyy
uopdyiaseq $887 8] 6hjRA JOXIBY
VEILERZL-EE/VEIZL PUB £2/)E/21-ZZ/LEMZ) BouRINSY] AYige) Jeghs JUSIBINDOI Jed o Aym ujeydiy
e L UE]
S6}EjS pejiun Agunoy oo'ove’Ls Jdog pepuedxy Junowy
uojfey/eouircag 00°0¥2'£$ Wnowy
¥ shid QN|RA JONIUW JB4
bLLOL 6poY ejsod $ZOZILERL ejeq pu3
AN ang Z20Z/LER) eeq piemy
NHOA M3IN 10 PiA eAgpedwog - joeqU0Y Aoy 9883044 plemy
10014 YigL Zour ssaippy »yo JusutsINs0I Jo edAy
BZ8]d 19]|9}0%00Y S Louj7 ssauppy ‘09 8duRInsu| Aozeeg QUIRN JOPUBA g

/N : @jeqQ paynad
Q3LLINGNSNN snjeig
¥202/iie0 |jeg uny

€20Z/LE/2) ‘Buipud Jesp |eosiy

fousBy Juawdojersq fetsnpu| Auno? aug Joy Hoday Juawainaoig

P LR R LU RN L CRER >y S R I A DT e e, S

S\ L WA

-28-



0z

Jo g abey

JNoWY ey usly
uopduoseq 9807 8] ONEA B
eweae|da )seyeq/ep pue Bujssos Joj BWSSINGUISs s{epelepy juewaindoig Jjed oy} Aym upejdxgy
JBOA 183814
sejels peyun Anunoy 61°9080E¢ Jo4 pepuedxy junoury
uojBey/eoujrcig Junowry
¥ shid enjuA Jorel Jey

4501 8poY Wisod Sjvg pul |
AN ane ojRQ piemyy
N3a3 Ao 10pI0 eseyMNLAUSIBINIAId JPRAUOD) UON 880301 pIRMY
Tou| sseappy se|iddng/sepipowuion JUSWeIND0.d jo edAy
10ax4g Jodeq 0098 oulq ssauppy PEOJIEY Uienos ojeyng QUIRN JOPUGA K]
unowWYy 8y usyy
uopdudseqg $807 8] enRA JXIBY
senp diysueqew pue djysiosuods |ehuuy JUBWINIOId Jiegd oy Aym ujeidxg
1BGA [898]4
S918)S pajiun Kgunog 00°000'6$ o pspuedxy junowy
uo|Bey/esujroig unowuy
¥ shid Qn|eA Jo3IeN B4
(%443 8poY |sad aeq pu3y
AN ojes ojeq piemy
0vddng 0 J8PIO BSBLANGAUBWAINOAL JORAUOT) UON $96202d PIEMY

ZOU[ ssalppy BYO JueWeINIaLd JO &F
BNuBAY PUBILLION £89 Leuf] sselppy eousjily Buunogjnuey eisbeiN ojeyng SWEN Jopuep ‘L

VIN : 8jeQ payiued
Q3 LLINGNSNN SNiEYS
AVATA 0] Bjeq uny

£202/LE/Z) :Bupu] Jesp (eosiy

fousby jusludoas( felSNpY| Auno?) sug 40} Loday JuawAIN0Id

LU S AT AL UL LR LR L b e = g SFEARUNCT IS T e

=l ol cl War—3

-29.



02 jo g ebed

Wnowy e usyy

HEd SSIWOY BOUBSS|BUSY JB SUCISUBIXE BUJj JGJBM PUB JoMes uopduoseg 9807 8| enjeA JouepW
Aseyjues ojjqnd Joj seojaies ubjsep pue {efoueuy ‘jejueluucijaue ‘Bujuue)d JueISINI0Id dje4 oy Aym ujejdxy
180 [@38]4

8ejels peyun Anunon Z1°001L'892% 404 pepuedx3 junoury

uoifisy/eoujaold 08'205'5L2$ junowy

P snid ON[BA JO)UBH Jjed

£0Zhl 9poY j9isod a8Q puzy

AN ams L2oz/sre 8jeQ piemy

O1vd4dnd Ao Pig 8appedwiog - peguod Auolgny §8020.d piemy

Teur ssappy seoneg Buginsuon Weweanaoud jo edAy

001 SYnS 19848 Wi L7k Loun ssaippy sieaubug 99 QWEBN JOPUBA 04

unowy ey} ueyy

uopduoseq $807 S| ONjRA JDUEN

SAQERIU 838|d Joj 80BN §,0[8YNg 40§ Yoddng juswiaandoid 484 o Aym ujejdxy
1ve, [eosld

SOIEIS payun Kyunop 00'000'001$ 404 pepuedxz junowy

uojBey/eoujacig junowry

¥ snid NEA YR Jv4

X448 9poY |wisod eje@g pugz

AN aes ejeQ piemy

ov4ing 0 18pJQ BSBLAINALBWAINAIY JORJUOD) LON $30001d pIRMY

yof eung Zoup ssauppy BYIO JUSWIND0. Jo edA)

19855 Ausd g6 Leul] sseuppy uopesodio) jueuidojereq uequn ojeung QUIRN JOPUBA ‘6

V/N : 9jeq paypad
a3aLLnNansnNn smejs
[{AVATAR) Bjeq uny

£202/1€/Z) :Bulpuz JeaA eosiy

fouaby Juswdojanaq jewisnpul Ajunoy aug Joj yoday JuBWaIN00sg

LSS AT Lt LIZLUE R B pd 0 Cban § S5aedd LI g0 03 T 1| 1D e i .

= L= =t =]

-30-



02 jo L abed

unowy oY) uelyy
{16°€L9'9$) uopdpaseq $507 8| BN[BA JOEW
sefueyo Jejdoo pue ‘(00°0 10'Z$) sefuByd esuBUsjulBUI [BRUUR AIBAANSOQ uewsINdoLd dje4 oy Aym upeidxgz
180, [83s]]
$O1|IS pejun Agunog 16'€89'C1L$ o4 pepuedx3 junowy
uoiBay/esujrcsg L6'EBY'ELS unouwry
¥ snid ON|BA Jo) el Jjvd
€0Zhl 8poQ [wisod £202/p1121L 8juQ pug
AN ang 8102/FL/EL 9EQq pEMY
0Tviing Ko Pig eApnadwion - peguog Auoyny $88304d pMEMY
Zoul sseuppy wo__nnzmq\mwa_voEEoo UBWEINI0L Jo edh)
jeaqg RooliI3 So¥ 19U sseppy "ou| ‘s¢iBojouyoe] sseujsng xed Jejdon OWEBYN JOpUeA ZL
junouly ey) uey)
uopdpaseq 9507 | enjBA Yo
$2/L/1-EZ/1/) BOURINSU) $180YJ0 P RI0IDRI( jusweindoid ded o Aym upejdg
. JBOA [Bas)d
Sejels pejjun Agunop 00'8L0'v1$ 404 pepusedxy junousy
uojBeyedujacig 00°820'%HS Junowsy
¥ snid ON[RA J03eH Jjeq
9E00L po) [e1sod €202Z/LEeRL aeqg pu3z
AN ans €202/ ojeQ psemy
HHOA MIN A1 PIg eappedwio) - peluo) Auoyny $8830.d PIEAY
Zouj sseuppy B8RO eweinsold jo oalF
SBJlewy 8ij Jo enueAyY £ei | LUl sseippy qqnyd SWEN JOpUsA ‘L

-31-

VIN : 8)eQ payie)
Q3LLINGNSNN smelg
YZ0ZIZLIED 3leq uny

£€202/1€/21 :Buipuz Jeay eos)4

fouaby Juawdojaaaq jeusnpu) Aunog au3 Joj poday uBWAINO0I

-.r:...___m.....‘ﬂ,.—..r......_Er_..-....r._..fZ_L._ ..‘:._......_C....I_n._._...._.. H:_.-.....‘.-_:.:....h.._"r

S Il ol we>™3




174

Jo g afied

unowy oy ueyy
uopdpaseq 2807 8| On[EA JO3RY
1eans Aued g6 je 8040 Joj SBRRN PUE Juoy juslweinsoig v ey Aym ujejdhg
JBOA [@98|4
SeJRIS payun Aunoy ZS'SE0'6L1L% 404 pepuedx3 Junouwny
uojBeyeaujroig 25'SE0'6LL$ junoury
¥ shid ONIBA J0) e} JjBd |
21001 opoJ [visod £Z0Z/0L/L L oeq puz
AN qms 800Z/L/8 Qeg pIRAY
MHOA M3IN &0 Pig SApgedwod-UoN - 10BUOD Auoyny $8630.d PIBMY
Zour sseuppy Jayio ueWeIN04d Jo edAL
BNUBAY pIIY) ££9 peu] ssauppy uopeiodios yueuidojersq eye)s aidwg OWEN Jopuep 24
unowry ey uey
uopdpaseq £$07 8] onjup JpRY
SOSUB9|} JOSN BJBMYOS JusWIeINd0Ig d|ed oy Aym upmeidxg
TONC 'R
SOJEIS pejiun Agunog 98'292'8$ 404 pepuedxz junowy
uojfey/edujrosy junowy
¥ snid ON|BA JO)IRN I8
28992 opoJ |eysod ejeq pu3
XL aeg o)eQ piemy
MOOY ANNoY TH) PBIUOY GlElS Jepun peseyaing $8030.d piemy
Tour ssauppy e1emyos - ABojouyse | usweInaold jo edAy
AeM lleg su0 Lou ssauppy o1 Bupexien fleq QUIBN J0PUSA L

V/N  31eQ paynia)
QA LLINGNSNN ‘snjejg
(ATATA NI ] @leg uny

€202/1€/21 ‘Buipul sma ) |eosiy

fouaby juswdojaraq lewsnpul Auno) a3 Joj Hoday Juswainoold

LLLOAEASS L el LA AR AL banchas > g SEPRLIO IS Do

C——
== 1 2 o W

-32-



0Z 10 6 abeyd

unowy ey uey)

uopdpaseq 9807 8| onRA YR

"800jAI08 jefien) juswenscig J[e4 oy Aym ujridig
ELONCF

Sejels pejiun Aqunog PL'E20'8ES do4 pepuedxz Junoury
uojBey/esujrcig ¥1'£20'86% junowy

¥ shid ONIRA o) Jjed

4] 744" 8poY [ujsod ve0z/Lis ejeg pugz

AN ans 80022111 88Q piemy

0v44ne Ao P!g eARpedwog - peAgueD Auony 280301g PIEMY

0001 syng 19848 ebueyoxy 9z2 Zoul sseuppy Sees [BBa ueweInd0ld jo edA)
abueyox3 e uppe Leuf] ssauppy O71d 'yoeed siueH SWEN Jopuep k13
Junowy oy uey

uopduaseqg $897 §| on[RA JaruRy

"seekojdwe yQ|03 Jo) eouRINSY| |eueq JUSWISIND0I4 djed ey Aym upeidxg
J1B0A [@38|4

s8jE)$ pajun Anuno) evry'eL$ dod pepuedxg unowy
uojBeyy/edujroig ¥8'y'elLs junowry

¥ snid v8'yry'8Ls ON[BA Jo)IRY Jjed

10001 9poQ jRisod €202/LE2) %jeq puz

AN ans €20Z/L/L 8jeQ piemy

HHOA M3N LTh) Pig eAgpedwon-uoN - jorguog Ajolgny 862044 psemy

Touf sseuppy 18410 juswesndolg jo edA}

SpIBA uospni o1 LOUI] sseuppy uejpieny SWEN JOpuoA §1)

VIN - 8jeQ payniad
snes
‘8jeq uny

a3LLNaNSNN
LCAATA TR0

€202/1€/T) ‘Buipul Jea jeosty

fousby Juawdojaaaq feuisnpul Aunog su3 oy Hoday Juswainoold

LIS AT LI ELLENC k] | T e e £ R LT ) R

A N .H__.._.v..“...._.. .".r ’
S ToINS oL e

-33-



02 j0 01 abed

unowy oLy usyy
uopdudseq $867 8] eN[RA JoEl
seekojdwe Joj eaurINsU} LeeH Juewaanasoig Jed oy Aym upejdg
— N =TT
selgs pajjun Anunogy 81'959'92L$ 404 pepuedxz Junowy
uojBex/esujaosd 81'959'821$ junowy
¥ snid 81'959'8.1L% GnjBA JeXiRW Jj8d
(X444} 9poD 8ysod €202/LERL oje@ pu3
AN ans 2c0e/ieL 8jeQ plemy
FTNASWVITIM A0 Pi eApRedwog-uoN - yequop Auoyny $30301d pIEMY
Tour] sseuppy 18410 Jueweinaoud jo edA)
AU saxeJequed | LS Lour] ssauppy \yeoH juepuedapu| SWEN Jopusp ‘81
unowy ey ueyy
uopdusseq $807 ${ SN[RA JOBH
seekojdwe Joj souBINSU| y(BeH JUBWIaINI0Ig Jjed oy Aym upejdxg
] Jeo, [eos8)d
SOBIS peyun Anunog 08'050'2$ o pepuedxg junowy
uojBey/eoujrouyg 08'050'2$ unowy
¥ snid 08°050'2$ ON[BA Jo3duly B4
({174} 8paY (E1sod €20Z/LERL ejeqg pu3
AN aes €20Z/L/L ejeg piemy
OTvd4ng L) Pigl eAppedwion-uoN - equo Apowyny $3020.d pieMy
001 elng Zou| ssaippy 1) eweinaold Jo odAL |
i984g easausd) M IGZ LoU|7 sseJppy ANM JO PiBjYsS enjg ssouD enjg yewybiH SUWRN Jopuep ‘L)

-34-

VIN : Sleq payipa)
a3 LLINGNSNN smejg
LAV AN ] ‘ejeg uny

€20Z/1€/Z) :Bupux Jea, [easiy

fouaby uswdojenaq [eusnpu| Auno) au3 104 Hoday JBWAINO0NG

LLlp b QESATS LRSI UL G ANA] B L& S i W e = T N I W o s YUY T N | Ve e D

S 1ol L W=




0Z jo L} abey

Wnourny ey) uey}
uopdpaseq $807 8] enjeA Jouel
QIBMYOS LUORBIRUBLINE JOB)-HNW ‘uoRduosqNS SedIes || jusliaindolg dj9d ey Aym upejdxg
183, [893S]4
SOJE}S peyuN Agunog 8552668 404 pepuedxg Junowy
uojBeyesujroid Junowy
¥ snid ON[BA YOI J(By
909¥L Opo) [B)sod ejeQ pug
AN ams aJeQ piemy
U3LSIHOON &0 PeQuUoD 8JelS Japun peseyding $8020.1d piemy
20U sseppy asemyog - ABojouyde . Juetaindodd Jo edA)
anusAy |1eh] sl 18U ssuppy sojBojouyoe ¢ Jeke] QWRN JOPUSA ‘0z
unowy ey uep
uopduoseqg 897 §] ON[BA JOLBK
Jusugseau| diysiequiepy Jjuswesnsolg Jjed oy Aym :_-_&.ml
186 [B38]4
SOJBIS pPajIun Anunoy 00°000'62$ 104 pepuedxz junowy
uojfiey/esujaoug unowy
¥ shid ON{RA J03IBIA JjR |
(4443 8poY [Bisod ajeq puz
AN a[ns ejeQ piemy
oTvding Ao 48P0 8SBYANGAUBWAINDAI JOBJUDL) UON $80301d PIEMY
009 8jing Zou| ssauppy F=ThTe ) JUeWaINd04d jo edh)
l8ang sasaues) "M LSZ LoUj] Ssaippy eiebejN ojeyng jseau| QWRN J0puep 8L

V/N : 8jeq payiuad

aaLunansnn sniejs
LAVAA NN ?jeq uny

€20Z/LE/Z1 Buipul JBaA [BISIY

fousBy juawdolaraq jewsnpul funon a3 Joj yoday Juswaindoid

S RS L LT R A LB b e ) S BT 130 D Y e A

-35-



0Z jo 2z} ebey

unowy el uslpy

“pelfaid Jusweouryug uopdpaseq $307 8| oN[EA JoxRK
ifel) eujiedoys ew o} peje|es seopues Bujuueld pue Bupinsuos JuswWeINI0Ig Jed ey Aym upejdxgy
dROA [8I8]4

sejels peyun Agunop 05°262'se$ 404 pepuedx3 junoury
uojBex/eaujrolg 00'z.e'9L1L$ unowy

¥ shid ONJBA JONIRH Jjed

6021 Spo) [wis0d ejeQ pug

AN a|ms 2202Z/9¢2/L jeQ plemy

Ov4dng LR) Pig eagpedwiod - prguod Auopny $8020.d paemy

Zou sseuppy seoeg Buginsuon WeweInaosd jo edA}

onueAy elemeled 089 Leuj sseuppy *ou| 'sieaujbuzg o) SWBN JOPUSA 44
Junowy ey ueyy

uopdpaseq $807 8| aNBA JBH

100} LUORBORUBLINE J01OBJ-HNLI PUB SBIAISS || JUSWAINI0Ig J[ed ayy Aym upejdxgy
Jee) [e3s|d

$8]e1S payun Anunog 86°626'6% 404 Ppepuedxz junowry
uo|Beyyesujaciyg unowy

¥ snid ONjRA JOXRW Aje4

909¥1 8paY [e1sod 9eq pu3z

AN amng 8jeQ piemy

HILSIHOON Mo Pe[uUOY) Slelg JOpUn peseyding 88830Ud piemy

002 euns 80U ssauppy eJemyos - ABojouyse | Jusuloinaold jo edAL

enueAy |leA7 sy91 Leu] sseappy 'ou) ‘sejBojouyse] ¢ Jehe RN Jopuep ‘1z

VIN : 8jeq paypay

A31LLINENSNN ‘Smels
¥Z0Z/Z1/IE0 ‘gjeqg uny

LIRSS A LG

€202/LE/Z1 Buipu Jea jeosty

ST DI LTS

fousby Juawdojaaaq {euysnpu) Aunog au3 Joj Hoday Juawaindoidg

AALLELUL PR ELUL CF e ) SISO 1S, DT o] e S

-36-




0Z Jo ¢} abey

junowry e uep

uopdpaseq 2807 8] 6n[EA JORY

E2/LE/2L-22/LEe) 8R1aA00 Bjjeiqun [BosBUILIOD juswiaindolgd djed oy Aym ujedxg
189, [©3S)4

$9J8IS pejjun Anunog 00'605'LL$ 404 pepuedxy junoury
uojBey/eaujroid 00°605'21$ wnowy

¥ snid anjep JeUBH Jjed

2021 8poY j¥ysod €202/18/2) oeq pu3

AN s 220T/L 2L 8)Rg piemy

Ovddnd LTE) Pig o>=|=wnEoo - jpequo Aoyny $5020.d plemy

Zoup ssauppy 8410 BNV Jo 8dA)

984S UjelN 062 Lou|q ssauppy "0D SOURINSU| [ENINY SJUBYIIBIN QIUBYN IOPUBA /4
Junowy ey uey

uopdpaseq 2867 8| ON[BA YOBN

SBO[AIeS )IpnB Juspuedepu) usAINIoLY ey oy Aym ujridxg
JeeA [BIS]|d

SO1BIS pajun Agunop 00°000°'62$ o pepuedx3 junowy
uo|Bey/esujaoig 00°000°'62$ Junowy

¥ shid ON[RA JOMIBW J[04

FA1744" 8po) [ejsod G202/0e/9 ejeq pu3z

AN aeg Zeoziszle ejeq piemy

0Tv44ng T5) Pig eapgedwo) - pryuo) Auoiny $86004d pIeMy

Zou] ssauppy S80JAIOS [BUOISS8JO0Id OO Jusweinsold jo edAL

18848 UlpjuRly 69€ Lou sseuppy d 17 HOIULODOW uepswnT SWEN JOpUeA k14

V/N : 81eQ paye)

-37-

€202/1€/2} :Buipuz Jes, |eosiy

Q3 LLINENSNN SNielS
¥202/2L/E0 8jeq uny

fousby Juswdojenaq |ewsnpuy funon 317 Joj poday Juswainooid

LIS S A Lhus RN IS AN A ENNIR TS . P ».L el e S .__.-1.. FELLC Y ey -'...

Sl r= g r=t 7 =1



02 o ¢} abed

unouny ey usy}

uopdpaseg $307 8] ONBA JORY

leans Auad 66 Je 58040 o} Juey JuswieIndolg Jed o Aym upeidx
08 [B28]d

8aj%lS peyun Aunog 85'622'c1L8 Jo4 pepuedxg Junowy
uo|BexyeoujAcld ¥9'S2L 'ress junowy

v snid ¥9'521'v86$ @N[BA J0}RH J[Rd

(11344 0poY [Bisod L20zelL ojeq pu3

AN ams €202/L/2) 0qeQ piemy

O1vidng Th) P8 eAgRedwod-uoN - }oenuog Auoyny 880204 pIRMY

002 eling Zour sseuppy 1840 JSWeINI0Id Jo odA)

j9e4iS BOBUGS 0L Lour ssesppy 07 ‘wewdojersd y9eqs uebjyoly OWBN Jopuep ‘9z

Wnouwly ey} uey)

seado|dwe Joj sauBInsu| YeOp uopdusseq $897 S| ONjRA JOUBY
{ejuspiade pue eouRINSU| AYjiqes)p uue}-Buo| ‘sourInsu oy wus) dnaug) juswaind0ig Jje4 oy Aym ueidxg
Jee) jeos|d

selels payun Agunop POrLLLLS 404 pepuedxz junowry
uo|fieyseouaoid YovLLLLS junowry

¥ snid YOPLLLLS ON[BA J0MIBY Jjed

9910} epo) [ejsod $20Z/0E/¥ eweq pu3

AN 8e)g Z20Z/LIS ojeq piemy

MHOA MIN_ A1 Pig eapgedwod-uoy - pequoy Auoigny $868204d piemy

ZoU[ ssauppy By0 ueweInaoud jo edAy

enuaAY sued 00Z Lou|] ssauppy Auedwog sgueinsy| ayn ueyjodonepy SWBN JOPUBA ‘Gz

A3LLINGNSNN

V/N : @jeq payiuad
snjejg
@jeq uny

€20Z/1€/2) Buipul Jes ) eosiy

Aousby juswdojensq [euisnpul Aunoy su3g 1oy Hoday uawiainoold

LSS ASS L R LR ) LENRT] Ve Y a S5 MRS IS r._.fn\ SHICI Y g ".r

HJm,cnnmqsmun

-38-



0c

Jo g1 abey

Junowy ey} urys
uopduaseq $967 8] ON|RA J9)IBY
suopensjfial sausiejuos gzoz pue diysiosuods 80UBJajU0D ZZ02 uswesndsold e ey EIB ujejdxgy
1ea, [#o8)d
SOIES pejun Agunogy 00°006'S$ 404 pepuedxy Junowy
uojBeyesujnoig Junowy
¥ snid ON[BA JOXRW JjBd
(13744} 8po) [8isod 9jeQ pu3z
AN ans 8jeQ piemy
ANVHTV Ao 49pIO SBYAINGUSWAINICI JOBIUCT LON 88204 pIBMY
ZOu[ sseJppy 1BJ0 sWaIN304d 3o edAy
(d3LVAN)
819 X08 Od LOUN SS4IpPY |  sjeuojssejoud Juswikojdwg pue Bujujes) jo UORBID0SEY HIOA MeN SWRN Jopusp ‘82
jnoury ey uelp
uopdioseq $897 8| oNUA YR
Y2/6Z/C1-€2/62/2) Swinjweid saurINsy| dwod SIexIOpM uswiaINaosyg Jjed oy Aym ujejdxg
188 [e3siq
sejels peyun Agunod zeenl'ss dog pepuedx junowy
..o_uoms.oo:_..o._m junowy
¥ shid ON{BA Jo)JRN Jjed
80001 8poY |vysog ajeqg pug
AN aes a1eQ piemy
HNHOA MAN k) 18pI0 esBYAINLALBLIAINI0L] JOBRUOS UON $50301d pIEMY
Zoup ssauppy SBJJAIOS [RUOISSB)0I JOHO JISWeIN204d jo edA]
8€26 X089 Od Leur] sseippy uopesuedwo? SIBU0M JISAN QUIBN JOPUBA "1z

VIN : 8jeq payad
snjeig
sjeqg uny

Q3LLINGNSNN
PZOZCLIED

£202/1€/2) :Buipul Jea [eosiy

#oueby juswdojaaaq leMsNpu| AUNoD au3 10 LodsY JUBWRINC0IY

LilZed SA TS LIy ..I_._._.: W I S W W e ST | u...L.___ A0 e 5~ e AT S W) -'-.

SASINS LA

-39.



0z

Jo g} abey

Junowy ey Uy

“eah uopdpaseg $807 8] 8N[RA 193RI

depuejed £20Z Joj eousinsu) eSexoed jedpjunw ‘eourinsy; Ayqey [ZCEUEDY JUBLIBINIOIG died oy Aym upeidxg
NP

Se1EjS pejun Aunod 29'6¥9'L¥$ Jo4 pepuedxy junowy
uojBey/esujrcsd 9649’18 junoury

¥ snid GN[BA JONUCH JjBd

8.161 9po) jujsod €202/1E21 sjeq pug

vd ans Zeoz/LerRL qeQ piemy

VIH4d13aYIHd Ao PIg saRedwo) - eguog Auoyny $8820.d piemy

Zou[ sseippy BYI0 JueweIN30Id jo edA|

15204 %09 ‘O'd_ Loul] sseuppy sejuedwo) saueinsu| elydiepelyd QWBN JOpUSA ‘0t
Wnowry et uely

{09t'¢$) suopens|Bau uopdpaseq $$9 S| ON[RA JORY
Jueae *(000'2¢) senp diystequisw ‘(00g'e$) sueAs 1o} sdjysiosuods USWBIN0Id e o Aym ujedxgy
180, [@38]d

SOJEIS pajiuN Anunoy 00°096'0L$ o4 pepuedx3 junowy
uojBeyyesujroig unowy

¥ snid onjeA JoEY Jjuy

oLzeL 8po) jeisod ajeq pu3z

AN aeis aeQg piemy

ANVETY ) 18pJO 8SELAINGAUSWEINDNId JOBAUCT UON 862044 pIeMY

J0014 Yiy ceu ssauppy 18410 JuoWeinao.id jo edAy

enusAy uojBujysem L1 Leul ssauppy (0a3sAN) (Buncy uswdojersg Jjuiouody slels HOA MEN OLUBN JOPUSA ‘6T

VIN I 9leg payial
Q3LLINBNSNN snjejg
L AvATANIxI] ‘@)eq uny

£20Z/1€/2) Buipul sea A [e9sl4

fousby Juawdojpasq [eLasnpu| Aunog sug Joj today JuBWBINDOLg

-40-



0z

jo L ebeqd

Wnowy ey uey)
{05°zes'1$) Bupupd yodes {(052'v8) uopdpaseq $807 8] GN[EA J03UEW
S18pUe|e Y202 .Aoou.hak Bugupd pue uBjsep ojydest uodey jenuuy Z202 Jusweinaosd Je4 e Aym umdxg
dea) [B38]4
S6JejS peyun Aqunop 05'Z82'¢L$ do4 papuedxg junowry
uojBey/esujnoag Junowy
¥ Shid eNnjeA JoMIRW Jj84
214443 8poY i#ysod aeg pugz
AN ams Qe paemy
ASHIHWY TR 49O 88BN AUBAINDVI JPBAUOY UON 28020.d pIRMY
Zouf ssauppy 880JAI0S [BUO|SSaj0ld JOROD jJusweINs0L jo edA)
201 8yng “aayQg uuel uyor sz Louj] ssappy O ‘qemaupd SWEBN JOpusp K43
unowy ey ueiy
uopdpaseq $89°] S| ON[BA JONBN
abeisod JUBWBINI0IY Jje o3 Aym ujeidg
JRGA [B28]4
SO1E}S peliun Agunoy 05°840'9$ Jo4 pepusdxz junowy
uojfey/esujroig unowy
¥ Snid ON[BA Jo3UR S8 |
geerl 8poJ (Msod ejeq pu3z
AN e)es o)eq piemy
oTvddna Ao J8PIO BSEYINGAUSWIAINS0IY 10BHUOY) UON $80830.d pIemy
Zoul ssauppy eyl JuewsINd0ud o edAL
Kemyied eluiod "N §Z Lou[] ssaippy ‘ouj ‘samogq Aeujid QWIRN Jopuesp “Le

V/N : 81eq payan
a3LLINGNSNN ‘Smejs
¥202/Z1ie0 Sjeq uny

£202/1€/2) Buipul Jeap eosiy

fousby juswdopasq [eisnpu; Aunog su3 o} poday JUBWAIND0LY

——

...1..._ S AT LR R ERLL (AN N SER) Wik M oD I H 5 PUNRIS TR (1 S e | It G P Ry NS

I i vl e

-41-



0C

jo g} ebed

unowy ey uey)
uopdpaseg 8807 8] SNEA JOXURHY
uope|jejsuj pue juswdinbe jensiaojpny JuswieIndoad djed o3 Aym ujeidxy
TP
SOJEIS pejun Aqunoy 00'€98°6$ 404 pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBeyyesurosd yunowy
¥ snid enjep joXuRW Jjed

202¥L 9po) ®ysod ejeq pug |
AN ANNS 9RA plemy
ovidng &io 10BAUOD ejEg Jepun peseyng $80201d PIRMY
00p elng ¢ou[] sseuppy aiempueH - ABojouyoe ) juseINs0Lg Jo edAL
jeans uiey 019 Leufq ssauppy D71 mejaRIop QWRN JOpUSA e
junowy e uey
uopduaseq $807 $] ON|BA Joyien
suopduosqns ‘seagou Bupeesy ajgng JUBWIAINIO0IG Jed oy Aym ugeidxg
_ Jee, [eds]d
$O18}S pejiun Agunod SLOPO'LLS 404 pepusdxg junouty
uojfieyj/esujacuy junowy
¥ shid aN[BA JOXIRW I8
overl 8pa) |ejsod ejeq pu3
AN s ojeQ piemy
ovddng Ao J9PIQ BSBLIINGAUSWEINDO0I] OBJUOS) UON 880204 PIRBMY
Zeu sseppy BYO juoweinsoid jo edAs
059 x0d Od 18U[] sseuppy SMON O[BYNE BY | SWRN JOPUBA ‘e¢

VIN : 8ieQ payiad

Q3 LLINENSNN
P20Z/ZLIED

'SNjelg
ajeq uny

€202/1€/2) Buipuz JeaA eosiy

foueby uswdojaraq eisnpu) Aunog au3 Joj poday WBWIBINIOIY

s MRCARDLLIECO R AL O CFTR T Y S e A (D DI o] o

=121 ] e

-42-



0z

jo 61 abed

Rinowy si uelp
SeAjeLweye |enjdsouco uopduaseq $307 8] 6N[RA JONUBW
Baly [BUO/IB100Y SAISSB %8810 SeOWS O} pejejel saaiAles Bupjnsuos juswieunsolg Jjed ot Aym ujeydxg
Iea), [eas|y
SOlRIS pajun Anunog 00'646'82$ 404 pepuediy junowy
uojBeyesujrcad 00°005'69% junouwry

¥ Shid enjeA Jo)B|N Jjed |
X444 9poY [Msod €20T/LIE 8j8q pug
AN ans 2202/0z/6 Qg piemy
FTUASAVITUM TR Pig oAnnedwio) - jaequoD Apoyny 98820.d piemy
00Z eung Tou ssauppy saaeg Buginsuon JusISIND0L Jo odAL

0d "aingoaliyory

peoy Aefss3 gz our] sseuppy edeospue g Bujfeaing ‘Bupesuibu] ‘einpelyaly QM [OPUBA OLIBN JOPUSA 'o¢
Wnowy ey ueyy
uopdpaseq $$07 S| enjeA JoRY
saljddns eawo JUSWaINI0Ig djed o3 Aym uejdxg
Jeej |easid
SOIBIS peyun Agunoy 6L°2IP'ELS 404 pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBeyjesujaosyg unowy
P shid oNjBA JOIRW Jj04
86220 9paD [R1sod aeq pu3
YN s ojeq plemy
NOLls08g 810 48pJO BSBYNGAUSWAINO0I] JBQUOD UON $8020id pIemy
Zou[ ssauppy seliddng/sepipowwion Weweinvoud jo edAL
101186 X0g "O'd Leup) sseuppy "ou] 00 UOSBW "g'M SWEN Jopuep ‘g¢

VIN : 8eQq payiuad
smes
ajeq uny

a3.Linansnn
¥C02/2L/e0

€Z0Z/L€/Z| Bulpus JER (eosi4

fousby Juawdojaasq [eWSnpu) uno) aug 10} poday Juswaindolg

SIREAES LRCRICR L RC ) LETUED Whelle b I e S PR s N M e S

SIS L R

-43-



02 Jo 0z abed

RNUSWWOT) [RUCRIPPY

wnoury ey) uey)

uopdpaseq $397 §| ShivA B

$80jAIBS JaLUB)U| PUB BUOYd JUWINI0IG Jjed oYy Aym uejdxg
ABO) {898]4

SoJe)S peyun Ayunogn ZLEEE'vES 404 pepuedxzy junowy
uojBey/edujAoLd junowy

¥ snid ON[BA 190 Hey

0620+ @poy [uisod ejeq puz

A ejes 8jeQ piemy

ITIASINOT A5 Requod ejelg Jepun peseyaingd S$8304d piemy
Zou| ssaippy Seojnleg Jo Juewdinbz uopeojunwwossie ] juewenaoud jo edAy

€101006 x0g 'O'd jeujy ssauppy WBeNSPUIAM QUIBN JOPUSA 1€

VIN - 8jeQ pauyiuad
SNjElS
:@)eq uny

a3Lunansnn
P2Q2/Ziie0

-«L AL

s A

& Te

SLAESARNE TN I RS W e e S ==

£202/1E/Z) ‘Buipul 1eoA (EOSIYy

Aouaby juswdojanaq jenisnpuj funod aug Joj poday awaindoig

2240 _.- o T L"..

121N i o5

-44-



¥ Jo | abey

LMET GolBUld e)B)S Bl JO (G)I-GEL
UOISS LM B3UBPI0IOE U] ‘PALINOI0 BABY SUOREIOI BIBUM SBOUR)SU) Uj SUOROURS esodw) o) pue “Yewainaoud
SOA & Buunp 1eju0o ejqissjuuedw) jo suopebeye 81e67150AU] pUB Mejras ) s36004d B BARY AUCLRNY el 8a0q 6
4I0BIU0D ejq|ssjuLedw) S|y JO OPBW pIoJR) B SBM ‘'SOA )| | “Bg
LMET
Soueuld 6j8lS eu} Jo (0L)f-6E1 UojIes Yam eouespioso. ) *poped Bupiodes ey Bupnp juewaunsoud eyl eauenyu
ON 0} pejdulene 10 Juswianooud & Bupnp 1EIICD e|qiss|uLedw] PRy JOPUOA B JeLp eujuLIe|ep Apogny ey pig 8
20V BUIAGQ0T juelliainoaid eqL, "Me 89UBUL] SjEIS 6ij JO (BIZ)FGE] UORIeS LjjM SOUBPIGOE
86A | U) ‘Juewaunoodd oypeds B U0 19BJUCO POZHOYINE oY) SE aAI0S 0} suosied Jo uosied B ejeubjsep Aluoyny ey piIg 1
= 4S138UU0O Juewwesnd0.d Joj SUOHBIYPEds 10 'SJUBINOOP Piq '8|gs0doid
S8A 10 UoREY0)I0s &) Ut suopiquyoud pue sejoliod yswainsaud ) Jo ABwIWNS B ajesodioou Aouany ey seoq 9
SOA JueweelBe uojsnjjoo-uou & ubjs o) s1eppiq eapoedsold aJinbai Quoyiny ey seoq ‘G
OoN 4seseyaind §seu|sng Jo/pue |eAes Joj seakojduie o} 8pJeo Jjpas ubjsse Ajuoyny ey 8000 b4
ON ¢seuliepinb wewainsaud ewy o} suogdeoxe Ja) mojie ApoLny ey seoq €
SOA épJeog 8 Aq peacidde pue ‘papasu y pepuswe ‘Ajlenuue pemejaeu seuljepind Juswainoaid oy} ey 2
83—8.82@8&:&:3&.:85528.332\5&: SOA ¢Lseuiepinb jusweunsoid eaey Auoyny el seoq ‘L
(eiqeaiiddy )i Tun | esuodsey uopsenp
TUCRRULOUTUeIaITG0ld

WIN : Sleq paume) £202/1£/Z) Buipuz JeaA |eosid
Q3LLINGNSNN 'smegg

[gAVATA¥I] |leg uny

uogeJodiog Juswdoeas( [euciBay Auno) sug pue ojeyng Joj woday Juswiainooid

LiLols A LELaRNE LR D) O L1 B g S5 by LI U roe Al P g N

S NS LA

V8 LNIWHOV.LLY

-45-




¥ Jo Z abeq

Jnowy ey} ueyy

‘JuswesInquied uopdptaseq $807 8] ON[RA 10BN

esuedxe pus ‘e ‘seojes Buye)s 10y Q) Aunog ep3 o) ee) Juswebeusyy JueWIN20Id Je4 oy Aym ujejdhg

JBOA [e38]d

OIS Paun Agunoy 66'882'L62¢ |  Jo4 pepusdxg Junowry

uojBeyeoujaosg junowy

¥ snjd QN[BA )O3R 4|84

(X441 9poY jeysod ejeq pu3g

AN ] ajRQ piemy

ov34ng 15 J9pIQ BSBYAINGJUSWBINO0I JOBAUOY) UON $8620J4d piemy

€0p eling 2our] ssauppy $82|AI0S m:Emﬁ JUSWBINI04 jo edAy

19e4S Aued g6 joup] ssauppy val funog ep3 OWEN Jopuea ‘2

Junowy oy ueys

“uogedjiqnd uopdpaseq 2807 8) ONBA JOUEN

sseujsnq Apioem jeo0| uj weuboud ueo] Jo) s18B]q jIBWe Jakue) pus Bupexsepy JuslieInaolg o4 oy Aym ujejdixz

TN T

$6JBIS pejun Anunop 00'008'0L$ o4 pepuedxz Junowry

uojBey/esujrcag junowny

¥ shid ONRA JONUBY Jje

€0ZvL 9poY [eisod ejeq pugz

AN ams e pemy

oTvddng Ao J9pI0 88BYANGAUSAINI0I J0BAUOT UON $89304d PIEMY

Teu|] sseuppy 80 JusweInaold jo edX)

jo94g uley S9v Leur] ssauppy 181|4 sseujsng ojeyng SLURN Jopusp }
SUO| BIL aan

ViIN : 8jeq psyiua)

-46-

€Z02/LE/Z) BUIpUT JBDA |BOSIY

A3LLINGNSNN smejg
‘@leq uny

P202/2LIE0 uogelodio) juswdojaaaq [euoiBay Auno) aug pue ofejng Joy Joday Juswainooly

_.:.;n),n..u_.r....__....:_..._......u..__.,..:,._-.I.JQCJ.I_Mr}r._.:_f.a.‘:_d..n\U:..;i..L \'rr

= 2d NS o W




L4

Jo ¢ abeyd

Wnowy ey uwy

uopduaseq 307 8] ONjRA JOUER

‘§89jA10S }phe Juepuedepu; juswernsoud Jjeq ey E_u_&ﬂ
TN =F]

SOJEJS pejun Anunop 00°000'0L$ 404 pepuedxg unowy
uojBer/edujacid 00°000°9L$ Wnowy

¥ shid SN|BA jJoxe Jjed

202l 9poY |91sod S¢02/0¢/9 aRq pu3g

AN ans 2&c0e/8e/8 8jeQ piemy

Ov4dng 19 Pig eAppedwo) - pRjU0Y AuoLny $88301d pemy

Zeur] sseJppy SBOIAIOS JBUD|SSRJ0Id JaLO) uewsInaoid jo edA)

19a4g ujpjuely 69¢ Leur] ssauppy dT1 HolUoopN uepsuinT OSWBEN Jopusp ¥
unowy e\ ueyy

uopduosag $887 8| ahjup JouBl

"Ayapoe Gujpus| o} pejejes seopues [eBey jueweinaoid 484 o1y} Aym ujeidg
186 [83%)4

SE)RIS pejjun) Anunoy £9'611'82$ 04§ vov:-nxmm._os
uojBey/eoujaosg £9'621°843 junoury

¥ snid SN[RA JorJul Jjvg

202vL 8poD [Bsod £20T/L/IS 8jeq puz

AN aesg 610Z/L/S 8jeQ plemy

OTv2dng k) PIg eapgedwo) - weguod Auoyiny 88830.d pJemy

cTeur ssaippy $89jAleg [eBa Wsweinaold jo edA)

Buping Aueqry gogl Jeur sseappy *0'd ‘euid B ZIMINK ewepN Jopuep €

Q3LLINGNSNN

VIN : 8ieQ payia)
smejg
:8jeq uny

£20Z/LE/2) Buipul Jea, |eosiy

LLIOASASS LRCMLTLL LG ) €5 L1 s cBes - SUELRILIR O e
=l

uonelodio) juswdojanaq (eucibay Aunog su3 pue ojeyng 10} Lodsy JUBWIBIND0IY

-47-



¥ Jo ¢ abed

V/N - 8leq payiuad
snjeig
3jeqg uny

Q3LLINGNSNN
(LA I]

HUSLUNIC) [CUSHPPY

€Z02/LE/T) ‘Buipu] seap |edsiy

uoge.odiod Juawdoeaaq [euoibay Aunod au3 pue ojeyng Joj Poday UBWBINo0IY

LIRS AT Lrov i3 LU AR Cal b Iy cimn s ) sime byl (R e T Y oy P

I 2N %

-48-



8o | ebed

MBT edlieuld @)=1S o Jo (B)HGEL
UORI8S LM 80UBPIOSIR U ‘PALINSO0 ABY SUOHBIOIA SUBLM SBOUBISU| U) SUORIUBS esodw) o) pue ‘jueleindold
SOA B Bupnp Peuoo ejqissjuuedwy o suopebsie efeBiseau) pue Mmaey 0) ssecasd e eaey Auoyiny ey) seoq 6
419800 ejqissiuedw) sy} Jo BPRW pi0da) B SEM 'SOA ) | ‘eg
me]
eoueUld alels eyl o (04 )F6EL UORSeS Lpim BoUBPI0SOE U] ‘poyied Bupiodes ol Supnp Jusweunooud ey sauanyu)
ON ) peydweye Jo Jusweinoasd e Bupinp o200 ejqissjuLiadw) pey JOPUEA B JB\y eujuLe)ep Auowny ey pig '8
&0V BukqqoT Wswiaunoald ey, ‘M7 eousuly e1B)S ey} Jo (B)(Z)[-6E| UoRoes LM edUBpIcIos
S9A | U} Jusweunocid syeds B UO ORIUOD PEZLORNE 8Y) SB 0A8S 0} SUosIed Jo Uosied B ejeuBisep Auowyny ey pia 'l
LEJ0RAUIOD JUSUISINO0Id J0J SUOREILOBAS J0 'QUSWINOOP PIq '6|850004d
S8A 40 uopEjaljos sY U] »:ou_l@n:n pue sepjjod Jusaindaud sy Jo Alewiwns e ajeiodioou) Auoyny ey seeq ‘9
SO JusweeJBe uojshiiod-uou & uBjs o} sieppiq eAgsedsaid asnbel Auowyny ey seoq ‘G
OoN 4§08BY2INd 856UISNQ JO/PUB [BARY JO} S8BA0]dWe 0) SPIBO JPeud uBjsse Auoyny ey seaq | ¥
oN £souliopind yuewiainooud ey o} suondeoxs Joj mojje AIOENY By} seog ‘€
SOA &pirog ey Aq peaosdde pus ‘pepesu 4 Papuewe ‘Ajjnuue pame|ae) seujjepinb jusweinoosd ey} ey K4
sepjjod-aje10di09-5n-in0qeAL0S AUBPIOS MMM/ sdny N ¢seuliepins yeweunoosd eaey Apoyny ey seoq ‘L
{eiqeoyddy i) Tun esucdsey uopsenp

98 INSWHOVLLY

VIN : 8jeq payiua)
aaLunansnn smeyg
L(AVATA T @jeq uny

£202/1€/Z) ‘Bupuz Jes, (eosid

uone.odiod JualudojaAasq puer [eLsSnpu| AIUNOD BUT pUE Djeyng o) Loday JUBWIBIND0IY

-49-



8 jo Z abeq

unowry eyj ueyy
ed edewue) :o-«ﬁ—tg $507 8] SNIRA JoNJuY
eouessieuey i (.8 pProy,) Aempeas meu jo 188} 05S'} JO uUopoNKsuUCyH juewieinsoid djeq oy m—_li ujejdxg
180, |w3s|d
selelg peyun Anunog £6°255'50L'L$ 4o papuedx3 Junowy
uoiBsy/eouinoid 09°'84Z'8E5'L$ junowy
¥ sn|d ON(uA 19X Jjed |
¥zzrl 6poY [wsod ejeq pug
AN emg 2z0zLely QRQ piemy
VO3NS LS3M A0 Pig eappedwod - pequog Auogny 888204 pIeMY
Zou| ssuppy 89UBUBILIBN/UORINIISUOY PUB UBjseq WeWaIN04d Jo edAy |
8ANQ 8,PIAB( JUlBS BE ieul] ssauppy “OU] UOHIONISLIOY (219U M '§ T GWBN JOPUBA 'z
unowy ey uey
uopdpaseq $897 8} oNjeA 10BN
1500 UORB0jQu puBA pealjje) 0 pajeial sisAieue youeg Juswainaolg Jud oy Aym ujedrg |
dROA [8O8]4
SEJE)S payun Anunogy 00°005'6$ 404 pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBey/edujrcid 00'005'6$ unowy
¥ Snid 00°005'6$ ON[BA 10BN Jjed
zieel opoY [E80d T20LBTILL oeq pugz
AN ams 2202/ ) jeq piemy
ASNOVHAS TR PI9 eARRedwon-UON - J3equo) Auony $5000.d plemy
Zour esauppy seoeg Gupinsuon jusliaINaoud jo edAL
Pieag|nog suiljon use|3 "o 66 18u|] sseuppy "ou) ‘ssesujbul g90 owiepN Jopuep ‘b

VIN : 8jeq paya)
Q3LLINGNSNN smgg
vZ0z/ZHED ‘@jeg uny

£202/1€/2) ‘Buipu] Jesy, feosiy

uogesodiod juswudojaasq pue [BHISNPU| AUNOD BuT pue oleyng Jo} yoday Juswanaoly

-50-



8o ¢ abed

wnowy e ueyy
‘{ed 8alaWio] souessieueY 8 (.8 PBOY,) PEO MaU Jo uopduaseqg 8807 8] SNJEA JORY
UORONSUC BLp o) saojAles BupeeuBue juepisel pue ‘uBisep ‘BupeeuBug juswainsoig 484 oy Aym :_iu._nxm
1RO/ |89
SOJEIS pajun Agunogy £8'£82'68$ Jo4 pepuedxy mf:“_o..._ﬂ
uojBey/eoujaoig ZY'SS8'LEES junowy
¥ snid en|eA joxIe| Jj8d
X174 4 9poY [8jsod jeg pugz
AN ae)s 1e0z/ezlL 8jeg piemy
Ovidng &0 Pifl eApgedwio) - pexguog Auoyny $38301d pIRMY
002 eyns Zou[] ssedppy SOURUBJUIBIN/UORONLSUOY pue ubjseq JUNWBINJ0I Jo 8dA]
19848 URK S62 leur] sseJppy SOJBID0SSY Heqly Jo SWIBN JOpUSA v
unowy ey} ueyy
JUSLIgRINGUWIe) uopdpaseq $307 8| ONJUA JOBHN
esuadxe ‘seapues Buyes so) v Aunosy 6l3 0 68 JueweBbeuByy JjusweIndoid Jj8d oy Aym upejdg
IR, |B98]d
$918)S pajjun Anunogy 09°'8¥9'9L1$ dod pepuedxy junowy
uojBeyy/esujncig Wnowy
¥ snid GN|BA 03Ul JjB4
1X1744" 9pa) jeisod 9jeq pu3z |
AN aes 8jeqg piemy
ovddng 7o) 48P0 8SBYAINAUBWIAINGOI JOBIUOD UON $8630id plemy
£0F eung Zeur] sseuppy s80iMes Buyms jueweinaoid jo edA|
jeang Aued g6 Louf] sselppy AoueBy ewdojeaeq [eMsnpy| AunoD ey SWEN JOpUsA 't

/N : 91eQ psyis)
A3LLINENSNN smelg
LGAVATATIN) -8jeqg uny

LSS ASS LA RELLLNGI] KL oy chi 3 3

€20T/LE/Z) :Buipug JeaA [eosiy

L= d PAIRERE LN BTt S N I P |

Sl oA

uojesodia Juawido|aaa pue [ewsnpuj Aunod au3 pue ojeyng 1oy podey juswainoold

-51-



8 jo { abed

JUnoWy ey usy)

uopduoseq $307 8] ONRA J03BY

"sejel AUNoy uo peseq (|esunog jeueues On_._._.vlooo_\coo |ebe JuewiaInsolg Jjed oYy Aym |:_N_&ﬂ
TN

soyEiS peyun Anunog £0'648'62$ |  Jod pepuedxy v“_oe_u

uo|Bexyesujaoid £0'6v8'62% junowy

¥ snid GNIBA JO3IBW Jjud

oleyi 8po) [Bisod £202/LIS 9jeqQ pu3

AN auns 6002/2L/1 9jeg pieMy

o1viing %) Pig eApgedwio) - peguog Auony $80001d PIRMY

0001 syns 1eaxg ebueyng gz zeur sseuppy ) seojueg |ebe JuewIeIndold Jo edA]

ebueyox3 je upe 18U[T ssauppy O71d ‘Yoeeg sjuey SLWEN Jopuep ‘9

‘Jeaqs [|8pO Jo/pue peoy ebpyy Gupsixe unowy ey uey

O Wolj e 8alewiLog souessieuey o Bujpusixe sAempeol mau uopdpaseq $80° 8] ONjBA Jo)IBIY

40 UORONQSUCD a1y Joj S8ajAIes Jeou|Bue juepises pue ‘ubisep ‘Bupesuibug usweIndold Jjed o Aym ugejdy
ige, [eds

$9JBIS payun Anunog 05'665'29¢ 104 vov:onumim_".o_h_ﬂ

uo|Bey/esujacsyg Si'v1S'6ees junowy

¥ shid SNIBA IOUBI Jj84

50443 0pa) jejsod ejeq pug

AN ses Z202/92/) 8jeQ piemy

OTvidng Ao Pig sappedwog - pequo) Auoygny $8800.d plemy

002 aung Tou|] ssauppy 80UBULJUIBN/UORONSUY puB UBiseq ueweindol jo edAy

10845 UlBl\ S6Z Lou[] ssauppy $0)Bl20SSY LB 304 QBN JOPUBA G

VIN : @eQq payned

-52-

€20Z/1€/2) ‘Buipu] Jeay |eosiy

uogesodiog Juswdojaneq pue JeLASNpL| JUNoD 13 pue ojeyng Joj Hodey JustuaInold

Q3LLINAGNSNN snieg
‘ajeq uny

¥20e/eLeo

—.P.T....uﬂ&.uw USSR H= A RS s = 1 S S T i Fr e Wt el T (O (e e T e

S E 2\l K




810 G abeyd

"Hodal Hid [BnUUB pue UORBOYIIED DY [BNUUY "AJUNOD BpT Uj seYs

1 unowy ey ueyy

Auadoud snopea pue pjeyumolq o juelidojerspe pue eseyaund ey ym uopduaseq 8807 8| ONJBA YOUBW
UOOBUUCD U] 811049 eoueBijip enp y)im is|sse 0} seojAIes (BuewuIALT JusWaINIOIg Jud o Aym upsidiy
1804 [898]]

sele)s payun Agunog 00°05¥'L$ Jdo pepusdxy junowy

uojBey/esujrosd 00°05t'28$ junowy

¥ snid @N[RA Jo)IBW Je4

1 45:14" 9po) [ejsod ojeQ pu3a

AN ang 6102/82/8 9jeq piemy

H31S3HOON A1 Pig eARRedwio - PeILOD Aoy $88204d piemy

102 eyng coury sseuppy sedjaeg Bupinsuon jJusweIndold Jo edA}

joaqs &8s 008 joury sseippy Jd 88)8R0sSY ejlege] SWBN Jopuep ‘8

JUNoury ey ueyy

uopduaseq $891 S| aN[RA JOURW

siesieidde Auedaoud |Buoissejoly pUTLTEY] BN YR Jjed etp Aym ujejdxgy
180, [@38]4

SOJ8IS pajyun Anoy 00°00¢°'8$ o4 pepuedxz yunowy

uojBeyyesujronyg unowy

¥ snid GN[RA JoNJeW JBy

14443 8po) |uisod ajeq pugz

‘AN ang 9eQ pilemy

YOVMOLINIIHO Th) 18pJO 958LRINH U IaINO0Id PPRAUCH UON $8030.d piemy

Zoeup ssaippy $a0ueg Bujnsuo) uewsinsold jo edAL

peoy ebnies Jvz Leur ssesppy ‘ouj ‘dnousy esjerddy amy OWEN JopusA Y

V/N : 81eq paypian
Q3LLINGNSNN
¥20z/2L/Ie0

‘sniejs

‘8jeq uny

£202/1€/21 Buipuz 1ea, |eosiy

uojiesodiod Juawdo(@aag PUET [euysnpul AUnos aug pue oleyng Joj poday juswainoo.g

=1

e Ll opoh o r.r.._.;_..,.:._.-rh_.vr.._ LN CRE D ) SEERM LMD LIS DI e e S

Nl =)

-53-



810 9 abed

Wnouwy ey ueyy
Med BaeIWOY uopduassq $307 8] ON[RA Jo3IBW
SOUBSS{EUSY 1B SUOjSUAIXS BLl)| JOJEM PUB JBMES JO UORINGSLOY juewiaindodg djed oy Aym ujeidxgy
4804 [8238]4
S018IS pajun Aguno) S9'650'916'7$ 404 pepuedxg Junowy
uojBey/eaujroig €0°100'980°'9$ junowy
¥ shid ON[RA JONIBW JB
80Cr1 9poY [W1sod Sjeq pug |
AN ams 2202/82/6 8jeQg paemy
oTvidng o Pig aappedwo) - peguog Auoyiny 9863044 piemy
Zou| sseuppy eouBUeUEN/UORINISUCS PuB ubjseq JUBWIBINI0I o edA)
wagg suabuiq zg) Leu ssalppy "3U] *S30JAIBS UORONGSUOY Ojlid SUIBN Jopuep ‘ot
unowy e ueyy
‘Auedaud uopduaseq $507 8| ONjBA JOUBKN
Hed 8UBLIWOYH IUBSEIBUSY BY) JO) XB]) 18MBS BUUBMENOET 4O A))D) JUSIAINIOIY Jjed eip Aym uejdxa
IR6A [€38)4
SOIBIS payun Anunog 9.'€28'69% dod vo!._o&llW junowy
._a_nclw_.?o:?o._m junousy
¥ snid ON[BA JOIBI JIBd
Bicyl apoY [ujsod 8jeq puz
AN a)els ojeq piemy
VYNNVMVYYOV A0 18I0 BSBUUNJAUSWAINO0Id JIBAUCD UON $8020.d piemy
Toup] ssauppy 1BYy0 JusWeINd0.d jo edA)
peoy ebppy vi/ Leu[ sseppy Jeinsead] Ai0 BuuBMENIE QUWIBN JOPUBA ‘8

V/N : 8jeQ payie)
Q3LLINGNSNN ‘sniejys
(A TAA TN [jeg uny

€202/1€/2) ‘Buipuz sea [eosiy

uoRelodio) JuawidojeAsq puer [B1ASNPU| AJUNOY au3 pue ojeyng o Joday JUsWaINooId

SR LD RS DI ]

=

A2 % o a5

-54-



810 L abed

Wnowy ey ueyy

uopdpdseg $307 §) onjRA Jo e

SiFo/ue|d Jeisep died sseusnquby Aunog eyl jueweindoig djed ey Aym ujedicy
10 [@3%(d

SOlEIS PoyUN Anunog 0€°199'v9$ 404 pepuedx3 junoury
uojBeyresujrcid 00°€.6'ShPe junouwry

¥ snid onjeA JoNIBH JjB

(Y444} 9poQ [wisod euQ pug

AN s 0202/91721 aeg pemy

TUASWVITUM LR Pig eapedwo) - peauon Apoyny 28a30.d pIeMmy

002 sling Zouf sseuppy sedes Buginsuon juswisInsold jo edA)

peoy Aefss3 gi¢ Leu] ssappy {opuopm SWIBN JOpUeA ZL

wnouny e\ ueyy

“Hed 6oy eouessieuoy uopduasseq $807 8| ON[EA JOUBK
40 8oueqUS UlBW 1B 8BBUB)S Anue Jo uopE||EIsU| PUB UCRONYSUCD Juswiainaold Jjed o Aym ujejdxg
Jee, [eas|d

SolEIS peun Agunog 00°098'6p1L$ 104 pepuedxy junowy
uojBey/esujacig 00°09¢°'L8L$ unouly

¥ snid ONIRA O3B Jje4

802vi 8poQ |eisod ajeq puzy

AN i) L2oereeieL qrQ premy

oviding Ao pig eappedwod - wesuap Auoyny $80201d PIEMY

ZOUl] SsaIppy eduBUSUB/UORONSUOY puB uBiseq Juswelnaoid jo edA)

1eang suebuig zg) Leuq sseuppy "3U} *S80IAIeS UORINASUCD Ol GWEN JOpUsA ‘b

VIN : ®jeq payriap
Q3 LUNENSNN ‘Sniels
¥20zZ/ZLien @Bjeg uny

£20Z/1£/2) :Buipu3 Jes eosiy

uojeiodiod Juawdojaaag PuUe [BSNpU) AUNOD Bu3 PUE Ojegng 10; Hoday JBWSINDOIY

Ll e A LECELLTLLLRC L) 63 L b i > =T RS S DU~ Sn Wl P gy, g

= 1IN L W3

-55-



8 jo g abeg

VIN | SjeQ pauia)
QaLLINENSNN

snjelg
VZOZ/ZLE0  eleq uny

FUSWWGT [CUOHPPY

€202/1€/2) ‘Buipu] Jeap (oSl
uopesodio) Juswdojeaaq pueT [eigsnpu) AQunoy au3 pue ojeyng Joj poday Jawaunoold

LIS SA S LR L LS G ML) ) S s ) =

PR LW T Y P —

Sl ol wa—s

-56-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC)

2023 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements with Results
Approval Date of Goals: March 22, 2023
Approval Date of Results: March 27, 2024

Purpose:

The Public Authorities Law requires public authorities to develop and adopt a mission statement
and to develop performance measures to assist them in determining how well they are carrying
out their mission. The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) requires that all public authorities utilize
the following format to annually review their mission statement and performance measures and
publish a measurement report. This report is designed to satisfy these requirements.

Please note: The ECIDA publishes an annual report outlining detailed project information and
accomplishments called “Year in Review.” The Year in Review is on the ECIDA’s website at
https://www.ecidany.com under “About Us” then “Annual Reports”.

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Erie County IDA and its affiliates is to provide the resources that encourage
investment, innovation, workforce development and international trade resulting in a successful
business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job creation and retention for businesses
and individuals which improves the quality of life for the residents of the region.

t

-57-



Performance Goals, Measures & Results:

Goal 1: To promote private investment & innovation:

Objective 1A: ECIDA: Encourage private sector investment by providing incentives and

other economic development services to spur eligible development
projects.

Measurement: Value of new private investments from tax incentives

Metric:

Results:

500.00

 450.00
1 400.00
350.00

300.00 |
250.00 |

200.00
150.00
100.00

50.00

$250 - $275 M in private investment from approved tax incentives.

A total of 13 tax incentive projects were approved by the ECIDA
Board of Directors in 2023. The total private investment amount for
these projects totaled over $339.2 M.

TAX INCENTIVES INDUCED

R — w/oamend i w/amend ==t of Project

| | 25
8
Q (o]
] : ,
S g § :
H-{»@t_ﬁ,_':t:-_,_.
— . )
10
.5
0
2022 -
Rev 3/15/24

-58-



Objective 1B: RDC: Provide “gap financing” to spur the creation of new businesses and

private-sector investment in working capital, machinery and equipment.

Measurement: Number of loans, $ amount of loans and amount of private investment for

Metric:

Results:

loans approved

6-8 business loans totaling $2 M with private investment = $5 M.
Currently, the RDC has limited lending capacity (the majority of funds
have been deployed). As of Jan ‘23, the RDC has approximately $750 K
in funds to lend and expects this amount to increase due to monthly
principal reflow = approx. $200,000.

RDC approved 8 loans from the Legacy Fund for $3.1 M with $10.4 M in
private investment. Historically, the RDC has leveraged private
investment 6.5 to 1. Limited loan funds were available to lend during the
first half of 2023 which restricted the RDC'’s ability to entertain some loan
requests. However, overall demand for loans was lighter than expected
due to rising interest rates and threats of a recession. Thus, the monthly
principal reflow coupled with several loan payoffs adequately replenished
the loan fund by the end of 2023 resulting in approximately $3 million to
lend.

Loans: Approved & Private Investment Amounts (in $M)

48.7
$50.0 .5 10
; 5 9
© $40.0 g - - g 8
. $30.0 6
5
$20.0 4
312.7 s . $10.4 3
i 7.0
»100 $3.7 | $3.1 | i
- !
$0.0 s - LSS 4 0
2021 2022 2023
e Loan Amt Private Invest Amt  e====# of loans closed
Rev 3/15/24

-59.



Objective 1C: ECIDA & ILDC: Assist non-profit and other eligible borrowers to obtain
low-interest, tax-exempt bond financing.

Measurement: Value of private investments from low-interest financing provided to non-
profit organizations and qualified private activity bond projects.

Metric: 1 -2 tax exempt bonds totaling $30 — $35 M

Results: The ECIDA Board of Directors approved $87.3 M in tax exempt bonds.
This included the Related Companies Westchester Park bond totaling
$22.3 M. The Joint School Construction Board refinanced several bonds
totaling $65M providing the Buffalo School system with the anticipated
financial savings of approx. $2.94 M over a three-year period.

Tax Exempt Bonds Induced (in $M)

{ $160.0 5
© $120.0
$80.0

%400

$0.0

2021 2022 2023

o Bond Amt ==} of Bonds

Rev 3/15/24

-60-



Objective 1D: ECIDA & ILDC: Pursue state, federal and private (grant) funding
opportunities to support priority projects and leverage private investment.
Administer projects that have received grant funding.

Measurement: Number and $ amount of grant applications submitted. Number and $
amount of grant funds under administration.
Metric: 4 — 5 grants submitted annually for $1.5 - $2 M. 2- 4 grants totaling $1.5
— 2 M under administration.
Results: In 2023, 15 grant applications were submitted (tot = $24.5 M) resulting
in: 5 funded ($ 6.35M), 3 pending ($7.28 M) and 7 declined ($10.9 M). In
2023 there were 9 active grants totaling $12 M under administration.
Grants Submitted (in SM)
$30.0 16
-
$20.0 12
.’-lr! 8
$10.0 — A
0o s .
2021 2022 2023
s Grant Amt # of Grants
. Status
Applicant Name of Grant (as of 12/31/23) $ Awarded
Forest Service Urban & Community Forestry Inflation Reduction Act Awarded $255,584
_|_Muni Planning Grant - village 1 Awarded $38,800
Muni Planning Grant - vEge 2 Awarded $30,000
. Restore NY Round 7 Awarded $1,272,513
Erne County Community Dev Block Grant Declined
Villages . "
. Green Innovation - village 1 Not Funded
{various) - -
Green Innovation - viltage 2 Not Funded
Urban & Community Forestry Pending
Assistance to Fireﬁ_ghters Declined
New York Forward Declined
ILDC FAST NY Awarded $4,750,000
Community Resiliency Econ Sustainability & Tech Pending
Congressionally Directed Spending Request Pending_
ECIDA Consolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvement Dectined
Rebuilding America Infrastructure with Sustainability & Equity Declined
$6,346,897
Rev 3/15/24

-61-



Goal 2: To support business formation, job growth, and economic expansion
targeting economically challenged and disadvantaged communities:

Objective 2A:

Measurement:
Metric:

Result:

Objective 2B:

Measurement:

Metric:

ECIDA & ILDC: Support the re-investment in vacant, abandoned, and
underutilized buildings.

Number and investment value of adaptive re-use building projects
5 - 6 adaptive reuse projects approved totaling $150 - $175 M

5 adaptive reuse projects were approved with total private investment =
$80.9 M. These projects will create a total of 250 apartment units of
which 38 units (15%) will be available at 80% AMI (or below). All 5
projects are in distressed census tracts and/or adjacent to distressed
census tracts. The private investment amount reflects both the available
building stock consisting of buildings with smaller sq ft (many of the larger
buildings eligible for adaptive reuse have already undergone
redevelopment) and impacts of other market conditions.

Adaptive Reuse Projects (in SM)

$150.0 6
5
$100.0 v 4
3

$50.0 2|
1
$0.0 0

2021 2022 2023

Total §  e===4 of Projects

ECIDA ILDC & RDC: Support the creation and growth of small business
and minority & women-owned businesses (MWBE).

Number and $§ amount of direct assistance through Agency product
offerings to MWBES (i.e. business loans, tax incentives). Procurement
goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors for both operational and
other purchases.

Direct Assistance: - $250,000 in direct assistance to 5 — 7 MWBEs.

Rev 3/15/24

-62-



Results:

Vendor Operational Purchases of $18,000 / 30% MWBE (i.e. office
supplies, catering, equipment leasing).

Other Purchases: Meet 100% of the following: 1) Professional services
including 30% MWBE for engineering/design, 2) Construction service
that includes 30% MWBE for contract utilization and 3) RFPs and/or bids
scoring — that includes MWBE utilization and/or D&l initiatives valued at
10% of the scoring index

Direct Assistance: 8 MWBEs received assistance totaling $1,840,000
and were comprised of 4 RDC loans ($1,700,000) and 4 ILDC Loans
($140,000). Of the 8 loans, 2 RDC loans ($800,000) and 1 ILDC loan
($35,000) were made to minority women.

In 2023 the RDC amended the Loan Administrative Plan (LAP) to include
a new line of credit offering special terms to MWBE's targeting four
industries (Daycare’s, Construction, Trades and Agriculture Businesses).
In addition, the ECIDA provided a $2,500 SBA sponsorship for Straight
Talk that provides technical assistance to MWBE businesses.

S Amount of MBE WBE Direct Assistance

2,000,000.00

1,600,000.00 1
1,200,000.00 i

800,000.00

400,000.00

2021 2022 2023

Purchasing: A total of $145,000 of operational purchases were identified
(major categories were printing/marketing, IT services / hardware /
software, and office supplies). Of that total, $21,000 (14.5%) were from
known M/WBEs. $16,800 (11.6%) were from WBEs and $4,200 (2.9%)
were from MBEs. In 2023 ECIDA increased its annual spend with WBEs
by $5,680 and with MBEs by $520 and also began relationships with
three new M/WBE vendors.

Other Purchases: Construction Services 100% compliance: 2 bids issued
in 2023 with a value of $6.9 M included 30% MWBE goal have been
awarded to vendors with a commitment to 30% MWBE value = $1.7 M.

RFPs and/or Bids Scoring: 100% of RFPs included scoring value = 10%
for MBE/WBE commitment.

Rev 3/15/24

-63-



Objective 2C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Support diversity, equity & inclusion with a focus
on staff development

Provide training opportunities re: Racial Equity

Provide two or more continued educational / training opportunities for
staff on DEI

Four DEI related continuing education / training opportunities were
offered to and attended by staff during 2023.

e BNP DEI Virtual Learning Series “Is Inclusion Belonging” on April 18th & April 28th.

o BNP DEI Virtual Learning Series “Affirmative Action SCOTUS Decision and The
Impact on Your Business” on November 9th.

e BNP DEI Virtual Learning Series “How to Lead Inclusively” on November 30th.

e Mandatory NYS Sexual Harassment Training for all staff included diversity in the
workplace. Training held on September 18th

Obijective 2D:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Increase opportunities for minorities and women to experience
economic progress through tax incentive programs.

Adoption of ECIDA Economic Inclusion PILOT

Obtain ECIDA Board approval of and begin implementation of Economic
Inclusion PILOT Policy.

The Economic Inclusion PILOT program was implemented during 3rd Q
2023. The goal of this program is to promote, encourage and maximize
opportunities for minorities and women to experience economic
progress by 1) establishing MWBE utilization goals for construction
activities and 2) to meet minority and women job creation and/or
retention goals. In meeting these goals, the applicant’s project will be
eligible for enhanced benefits related to the Payment in Lieu of Taxes
(PILOT). Of the 3 projects brought to the Board for approval in the 4th
Q, one was eligible for the Economic Inclusion PILOT and has opted
into the program (Project=1175 Delaware/Delaware Place).Several
business development prospects in the pipeline have expressed
interest in the program — should their projects be brought to the ECIDA
Board in 2024.

Rev 3/15/24

-64-



Objective 2E:  ECIDA: Support the creation and retention of jobs at all salary levels.

Measurement: Total # and average $ of jobs to be retained & created. For informational
purposes include salary info re: management, professional,
administrative, production, independent contractor and other.

Metric: Average salary for retained and created jobs at $50,000 - $55,000.

Results: In 2023, the average salary for the 1,343 FT Jobs (1,097 retained, 246
new) = $76,117. The average salary for the 73 PT Jobs (40 retained, 33
new) = $33,187 The total annual payroll amount = $226 M

2023 FULL TIME |
Category # of Jobs | Salary w/ Fringe Salary w/o Fringe
Management 124 S 123,747 ) 102,887
Professional 210 S 112,561 S 91,009
Administrative 110 S 82,249 S 67,090
Production 845 $ 72,334 | $ 59,600
Independent Contractor | 4 S 48,325 S 48,325
Other 50 S 84,485 S 68,400
2023 PART TIME

Category # of Jobs | Salary w/ Fringe Salary w/o Fringe
Management 1 $ 30,000 S 30,000
Professional 2 S 56,250 S 45,000
Administrative 2 ) 25,000 S 25,000
Production 55 S 29,431 S 29,318
Independent Contractor | 0 S - S -
Other 13 S 44,231 S 44,231

*Average salary metric is based on historical data with consideration given to market adjustments (such as inflation,
cost of living) and comparisons to County / City of Buffalo living wage data”

Rev 3/15/24

-65-



Obijective 2F:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Reach out to Erie County businesses to inform
them of ECIDA and other business support services available.

Number of business outreach attempts (including marketing
communication efforts)

20,000 business outreach contacts

In 2023 business outreach contacts = 42,755 over doubling the goal. The
outreach efforts include direct business development contacts, event
participation, presentations, and direct marketing communication
activities (direct mailers, marketing email clicks). The main reason for this
increase is we changed the measurement unit from Business First email
“opt ins” in previous years to the industry-standard measurement of
impressions based upon Business First direct marketing emails. Note:
21,000 opt ins (2022) to 40,000 impressions (2023).

Additional paid advertising Marcomm activities for 2023 totaled more
than 909,000 impressions (social media, radio and print advertising).

Outreach Efforts
50000
40000
30000 |
20000 ' |

10000

2021 2022 2023

Rev 3/15/24

-66-



Objective 2G: ILDC: Support reinvestment in vacant and abandoned brownfield
properties for the purpose of creating shovel-ready sites, new
investment, and jobs.

Measurement: Number of acres of land redeveloped / in the process of redevelopment
and public/private investment amounts

Metric: 350 acres of land under management

Results: Continued management and redevelopment of approximately 486 acres
of land: 240 acres of brownfield property at Renaissance Commerce
Park, 240 acres of land at the Erie County Agribusiness Park (former
Angola Airport site), and 6 acres at the former Polymer Applications site
(3445 River Road).

2023 Highlights

Site

Activities

Renaissance Commerce Park

Managed 14 new prospect leads for RCP.

Construction of new water and sewer lines at Odell, and Ridge Road corridors.
Compiletion of road construction for final section of Steelworkers Way.

8 Dona Street facility ribbon cutting, fully leased.

2 Steelworkers Way facility under construction, completion in early 2024,
Negotiating sale of parcel 4a to Uniland Development for construction of a 3rd Spec.
building site, 10 acres.

Awarded $4.75 million FASTNY grant for WYE Yard rail relocation project.
Engineering Contract Awarded and underway for WYE Yard rail relocation project.
Completion of Smokes Creek Passive Park feasibility study

Agri-business Park

Construction of new water tower to provide additional water service to the Town of Evans
and the Park.

Installation of new electrical service and water lines to service the Park

Completion and approval of Masterplan and Draft GEIS for Park

Polymer Site

Negotiated lease - 3445 River Road, Tonawanda, with MN8 Group for the development
of a battery storage facility. .

Rev 3/15/24

-67-



Goal 3: To encourage international trade:

Objective 3A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

© $100.0

q‘*“ﬁ*"“‘» 2 =

h\"“%. — pm—
$60.0
;. $40.0
$20.0

ECIDA: Promote & support the use of Erie County’s foreign trade zone
(FTZ) to assist businesses in remaining globally competitive by reducing,
eliminating, or deferring import duties.

Value of goods moving through FTZ #23 and # of FTZ activated sites

A total of 6 FTZ sites with goods valued at $62 M moving through the
zone.

For year-end 2022, a total of 6 Active FTZ Sites with goods valued at
$92,057,662 million moved through the zone. This represents an
increase of $29,765,515 from year end 2021. The increase in FTZ
activity was primarily driven by the Cummins Engine and Sucrose
Sourcing sites.

Foreign Trade Zone #23

$80.0

O B N W A 0N @

$0.0
2020 2021 2022

s S Value of Goods # FTZ sites

*(note: due to the timing of the Annual Federal FTZ Reporting (June) — the prior year's results are listed)

Rev 3/15/24

-68-



Goal 4: Regional & Business Resiliency:

Objective 4A:
Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 4B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC, ILDC: Assist businesses throughout Erie County.
Provide a roadmap for business resiliency.

Implement the updated 2022 Comprehensive Economic Development
Strategy (CEDS) that includes a Post COVID-19 Economic Recovery
Response Addendum that will provide action steps for responding to the
economic injury/disruption caused by the coronavirus pandemic.

The Erie County CEDS Implementation Committee met 3 times in 2023:
Mar 27t (virtual), Aug 28" (in-person) & Dec 11 (virtual) to discuss the
status of the goals and objectives contained in the 2022 Updated CEDS.
Outputs from each meeting include Meeting Summary Reports and
CEDS Committee Survey Responses.

ECIDA RDC, ILDC: Support Small Businesses in Erie County
Consortium Communities whose owners have low to moderate

household incomes.

Provide administrative support for the Erie County Microenterprise Loan
and other programs funded by Community Development Block Grant

funds.

Approve 5-7 loans for $160,000, which represents the remaining funds
available for lending from the Erie County Microenterprise Loan program.
The ECIDA will continue to service, support and market the lending
program to the eligible consortium communities.

The ILDC closed 8 micro enterprise loans for $280K with $49K in private
investment. 4 of the loans were to Woman owned businesses. Due to
principal re-flow from loan payoffs from the existing loan portfolio,
additional HUD monies were allocated to the loan fund. The ILDC was
able to fund more loans than previously anticipated.

Rev 3/15/24

-69-



Goal 5: To

safeguard the public’s investment by ensuring compliance and

transparency with ECIDA Policies & Procedures, NYS Tax, EDA and ABO
requirements:

Objective 5A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Client compliance with material terms including local labor,
employment retention & creation, investment, pay equity and unpaid real
property tax policies.

Collection and analysis of quarterly employment & local labor reports for
all active projects, review of investment verifications, facilitate completion
of pay equity audits by Erie County (EC) office of EEO and real property
tax payments through the EC Commissioner of Real Property Services

100% compliance

In 2023, 1 project obtained a local labor waiver, and 2 projects
successfully complied with the Pay Equity audit, showing no adverse
findings. 100% compliance unpaid real property tax policies. One
investment confirmation is pending as of 3/15/24. Employment retention
and creation numbers are in compliance with current policies.

Objective 5B: ECIDA: Client compliance with the NYS Sales and Use Tax program.

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 5C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Monitor and review of clients’ ST-340 reporting forms against the amount
of the sales tax savings approved by the Board of Directors to ensure that
the amount of the sales tax savings that clients report does not exceed
the board approved amounts.

100% client compliance

Two clients exceeded their sales tax benefit - both overages have been
collected/remitted to NYS. One NYS ST-340 form pending as of 3/15/24.

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Compliance with ABO’s deadlines/regulatory
requirements.

Timely and accurate filing of the annual PARIS reports, budgets and
financial audits

100% compliance

The Agency is on track to meet filing requirements of the ABO'’s 3/31/24
reporting deadline.

Rev 3/15/24

-70-



Objective 5D: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Board Member compliance with ABO regulatory

requirements.

Measurement: Board completion of the annual Board of Directors Self Evaluation,

Metric:

Results:

Objective 5E:

Measurement:
Metric:

Results:

Objective 5F:

execution of the Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties & Responsibilities
forms, and completion of the required ABO board member training.

100% compliance

All 19 ECIDA & RDC Board Members and 7 ILDC Board Members have
completed ABO board member training. The Agency is on track to meet
the ABO's reporting deadline of 3/31/24.

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the
financial reporting and assets of the organizations.

Annual independent audit reports of all entities.
Audit opinions and management letter.

Anticipating an unqualified opinion indicating that the financial statements
are reasonably stated.

RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the administration of
the new $5 Mil EDA CARES Act revolving loan fund (RLF).

Measurement: Obtain the highest rating from the U.S. Dept of Commerce: Economic

Metric:

Results:

Development Administration (EDA) on the quality / health of the RLF
administered by the RDC

Receive an “A” rating from the EDA.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, a Level A risk rating was
assigned to the CARES Act RLF. 32 out of a possible 33 points were
earned. Metrics such as loan write-offs, available cash compared to
other RLFs in the region, and strong portfolio management contributed
to the high rating. Certain risk metrics such as default rate, net RLF
income, and loan leverage ratio have been relaxed during the startup
period and will factor into future risk ratings. The risk rating for the year
ended December 31, 2023 is expected to be known mid-2024, as the
reporting deadline is March 30, 2024.

Rev 3/15/24

-71-



Governance Certification

1.

Have the board members acknowiedged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: Yes
Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?
Board of Directors response: The Board of Directors

If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when
appointing the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board has not adopted a written policy.
However, the Board follows prudent and reasonable practices to appoint

responsible individuals.

Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors response: The role of the Board regarding the
implementation of the public authority’s mission is to provide strategic guidance,
oversight, mission authorization, policy setting and validation of the authority’s
mission, performance measurements and results. The role of management is to
collaborate with the Board in strategy development and to implement established
programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority's

mission.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses
to each of these questions?

Board of Directors response: Yes

Rev 3/15/24

-72-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC)

2024 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements
Approval Date of Goals: March 27, 2024
Approval Date of Results: Anticipated March 2025

Purpose:

The Public Authorities Law requires public authorities to develop and adopt a mission
statement and to develop performance measures to assist them in determining how well
they are carrying out their mission. The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) requires that all
public authorities utilize the following format to annually review their mission statement
and performance measures and publish a measurement report. This report is designed
to satisfy these requirements.

Please note: The ECIDA publishes an annual report outlining detailed project information
and accomplishments called “Year in Review.” The Year in Review is on the ECIDA's
website at https://www.ecidany.com under “About Us” then “Annual Reports”.

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Erie County IDA and its affiliates is to provide the resources that
encourage investment, innovation, workforce development and international trade
resulting in a successful business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job
creation and retention for businesses and individuals which improves the quality of life for
the residents of the region.

-73-



Performance Goals, Measures & Results:

Goal 1: To promote private investment & innovation:

Objective 1A:

ECIDA: Encourage private sector investment by providing incentives and
other economic development services to spur eligible development

projects.

Measurement: Value of new private investments from tax incentives

Metric:

Resuits:

$ 275 - $ 300 M in private investment from approved tax.incentives.
* Adjusted metric.

Objective 1B: RDC: Provide “gap financing” to spur the creation of new businesses and

private-sector investment in working capital, machinery and equipment.

Measurement: Number of loans, $ amount of loans and amount of private investment for

Metric:

Results:

Objective 1C:

Measurement:

Metric:

loans approved

8 - 10 business loans totaling $ 3 M with private investment = $6 M.
Currently, the RDC has limited lending capacity (majority of funds have
been deployed). *Adjusted metric.

ECIDA & ILDC: Assist non-profit and other eligible borrowers to obtain
low-interest, tax-exempt bond financing.

Value of private investments from low-interest financing provided to non-
profit organizations and qualified private activity bond projects.

1 -2 tax exempt bonds totaling $30 M- $35 M. Starting January 1st, NYS
Housing and Community Renewal adopted new regulations for
affordable housing projects that utilize 4% state and federal Low Income
Housing Tax Credits(LIHTC). ECIDA receives an annual allowance of
bond cap to finance affordable housing projects, which typically utilize the
4% LIHTC. Under the new regulations projects which utilize IDA bonding
and the 4% LIHTC will. be restricted to new construction
only. Historically, most of the projects ECIDA assists with bond cap
allocation are affordable housing rehabilitation projects. The result of

Rev 3/15/2024

-74-



Results:

Obijective 1D:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Goal 2:

Objective 2A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Result:

Objective 2B:

Measurement:

Metric:

these new regulations could limit the agency’s ability to finance these
projects and meet our performance goal. Our statewide organization is
working on amending the new regulations to allow for rehabilitation
projects to receive both IDA bonds and 4% LIHTC allocations.

ECIDA & ILDC: Pursue state, federal and private (grant) funding
opportunities to support priority projects and leverage private investment.
Administer projects that have received grant funding.

Number and $ amount of grant applications submitted. Number and $
amount of grant funds under administration.

4-5 grants submitted for $2-2.5 M. 4-6 grants totaling $7 M under
administration. * Adjusted metric.

To support business formation, job growth, and economic expansion
targeting economically challenged and disadvantaged communities:

ECIDA & ILDC: Support the re-investment in vacant, abandoned, and
underutilized buildings.

Number and investment value of adaptive re-use building projects

4 - 5 adaptive reuse projects approved totaling $75 - $100 M. * Adjusted
metric.

ECIDA ILDC & RDC: Support the creation and growth of small business
and minority & women-owned businesses (MWBE).

Number and $ amount of direct assistance through Agency product
offerings to MWBESs (i.e. business loans, tax incentives). Procurement
goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors for both operational and
other purchases.

$400,000 in direct assistance to 5 — 7 MWBEs. * Adjusted metric.
Rev 3/15/2024

-75-



Results:

Objective 2C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 2D:

Vendor Operational Purchases of $18,000 / 30% MWBE (i.e. office
supplies, catering, equipment leasing).

Other Purchases: Meet 100% of the following: 1) Professional services
including 30% MWBE for engineering/design, 2) Construction service
that includes 30% MWBE for contract utilization and 3) RFPs and/or bids

scoring — that includes MWBE utilization and/or D&l initiatives valued at
10% of the scoring index

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Support diversity, equity & inclusion with a focus
on staff development

Provide training opportunities re: Racial Equity

Provide two or more continued educational / training opportunities for
staff on DEI

ECIDA: Increase opportunities for minorities and women to

experience economic progress through tax incentive programs.

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:
Objective 2E:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Implementation of ECIDA Economic Inclusion PILOT

1 — 2 eligible projects (project includes property tax benefit, location
reasonably accessible to minority workforce) opt into the program.

* Adjusted metric.
ECIDA: Support the creation and retention of jobs at all salary levels.

Average $ of jobs to be retained & created. For informational purposes
include salary info re:" management, professional, administrative,
production, independent contractor and other

Average salary for retained and created jobs at $ 50K - $55K

*average salary metric is based on historical data with consideration given to market adjustments (i.e. inflation, cost of living) and
comparisons to County/ City of Buffalo living wage data. (note: include avg salaries in job categories and the total payroll amount).

Rev 3/15/2024

-76-



Objective 2F:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 2G:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Reach out to Erie County businesses to inform
them of ECIDA and other business support services available.

Number of business outreach attempts (including marketing
communication efforts)

290 business outreach contacts, 900,000 marketing impressions through
paid advertising. * Adjusted metric.

ILDC: Support reinvestment in vacant and abandoned brownfield
properties for the purpose of creating shovel-ready sites, new
investment, and jobs.

Number of acres of land redeveloped / in the process of redevelopment
and public/private investment amounts

350 acres of land under management

Goal 3: To encourage international trade:

Objective 3A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Promote & support the use of Erie County’s foreign trade zone
(FTZ) to assist businesses in remaining globally competitive by reducing,
eliminating, or deferring import duties.

Value of goods moving through FTZ #23 and # of FTZ activated sites

A total of 6 FTZ sites with goods valued at $92 M moving through the
zone.

*(note: due to the timing of the Annual Federal FTZ Reporting (June) — the prior year’s results are listed)

Goal 4: Regional & Business Resiliency:

Objective 4A:

Measurement:

ECIDA, RDC, ILDC: Assist businesses throughout Erie County.

Provide a roadmap for business resiliency.

Rev 3/15/2024

-77-



Metric:

Results:

Objective 4B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Prepare an annual CEDS Performance Report for submission to U.S.
EDA to communicate Erie County’s major accomplishments in economic
and community development. Convene CEDS Implementation
Committee (public and private partners) 3x per year to share and collect
data and information regarding implementation of regional goals.

ECIDA RDC, ILDC: Support Small Businesses in Erie County
Consortium Communities whose owners have low to moderate

household incomes.

Provide administrative support for the Erie County Microenterprise Loan
and other programs funded by Community Development Block Grant
funds

Approve 6-8 loans for $200,000, which represents the funds available for
lending from the Erie County Microenterprise Loan program. The ECIDA
will continue to service, support and market the lending program to the
eligible consortium communities. * Adjusted metric.

Goal 5: To safeguard the public’s investment by ensuring compliance and

Objective 5A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

transparency with ECIDA Policies & Procedures, NYS Tax, EDA
and ABO requirements:

ECIDA: Client compliance with material terms including local labor,
employment retention & creation, investment, pay equity and unpaid real
property tax policies.

Collection and analysis of quarterly employment & local labor reports for
all active projects, review of investment verifications, facilitate completion
of pay equity audits by Erie County Department of Public Advocacy
payments through the Erie County Commissioner of Real Property
Services

100% compliance

Rev 3/15/2024

-78-



Objective 5B: ECIDA: Client compliance with the NYS Sales and Use Tax program.

Measurement: Monitor and review of clients’ ST-340 reporting forms against the amount
of the sales tax savings approved by the Board of Directors to ensure
that the amount of the sales tax savings that clients report does not
exceed the board approved amounts.

Metric: 100% client compliance

Results:
Objective 5C: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Compliance with ABO’s deadlines and regulatory
requirements.

Measurement: Timely and accurate filing of the annual PARIS reports, budgets and
financial audits

Metric: 100% compliance

Resuilts:

Objective 5D: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Board Member compliance with ABO regulatory
requirements.

Measurement: Board completion of the annual Board of Directors Self Evaluation,
execution of the Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties & Responsibilities
forms, and completion of the required ABO board member training

Metric: 100% compliance
Results: i
Objective 5E: ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over

the financial reporting and assets of the organizations.
Measurement: Annual independent audit reports of all entities.
Metric: Audit opinions and management letter.

Results:

Objective 5F:  RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the administration of
the CARES Act revolving loan fund (RLF).

Measurement: Obtain the highest rating from the U.S. Dept of Commerce: Economic
Development Administration (EDA) on the quality / health of the RLF
administered by the RDC

Rev 3/15/2024

-79-



Metric: Receive an “A” rating from the EDA.
Results:
Governance Certification

1.

Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: Yes
Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?
Board of Directors response: The Board of Directors

If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when
appointing the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board has not adopted a written policy.
However, the Board follows prudent and reasonable practices to appoint
responsible individuals.

Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors response: The role of the Board regarding the
implementation of the public authority’s mission is to provide strategic guidance,
oversight, mission authorization, policy setting and validation of the authority's
mission, performance measurements and results. The role of management is to
collaborate with the Board in strategy development and to implement established
programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority’s
mission.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses
to each of these questions?

Board of Directors response: Yes

Rev 3/15/2024



2023 ECIDA Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

_Agree

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding of the
mission and purpose of the Authority.

15

1

The policies, practices and decisions of the Board are
always consistent with this mission.

15

1

Board members comprehend their role and fiduciary
responsibilities and hold themselves and each other to
these principles.

15

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and practices
for the effective governance, management and
operations of the Authority and reviews these annually.

15

The Board sets clear and measurable performance
goals for the Authority that contribute to accomplishing
its mission.

15

The decisions made by Board members are arrived at
through independent judgment and deliberation, free of
political influence, pressure or self-interest.

15

Individual Board members communicate effectively with
executive staff so as to be well informed on the status of
all important issues.

15

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements, reporting
requirements, and other transactions.

13

The Board meets to review and approve all documents
and reports prior to public release and is confident that
the information being presented is accurate and
complete.

15

The Board knows the statutory obligations of the
Authority and if the Authority is in compliance with state
law.

14

Board and committee meetings facilitate open, -
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the active
participation of members.

16

Board members have sufficient opportunity to research,
discuss, question and prepare before decisions are
made and votes taken.

14

Individual Board members feel empowered to delay
votes, defer agenda items, or table actions if they feel
additional information or discussion is required.

15

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of the CEO
and other executive staff, including setting performance
expectations and reviewing performance annually.

16

The Board has identified the areas of most risk to the
Authority and works with management to implement risk
mitigation strategies before problems occur.

14

Board members demonstrate leadership and vision and
work respectfully with each other.

16

Name of Authority: Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Date Completed: March 6, 2024

-81-




2023 RDC Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

#

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding of the
mission and purpose of the Authority.

15

1

The policies, practices and decisions of the Board are
always consistent with this mission.

15

1

Board members comprehend their role and fiduciary
responsibilities and hold themselves and each other to
these principles.

15

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and practices
for the effective governance, management and -
operations of the Authority and reviews these annually.

15

The Board sets clear and measurable performance
goals for the Authority that contribute to accomplishing
its mission.

15

The decisions made by Board members are arrived at
through independent judgment and deliberation, free of
political influence, pressure or self-interest.

15

Individual Board members communicate effectively with
executive staff so as to be well informed on the status of
all important issues.

15

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements, reporting
requirements, and other transactions.

13

The Board meets to review and approve all documents
and reports prior to public release and is confident that
the information being presented is accurate and
complete.

15

The Board knows the statutory obligations of the
Authority and if the Authority is in compliance with state
law.

14

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the active
participation of members.

16

Board members have sufficient opportunity to research,
discuss, question and prepare before decisions are
made and votes taken.

14

Individual Board members feel empowered to delay
votes, defer agenda items, or table actions if they feel
additional information or discussion is required.

15

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of the CEO
and other executive staff, including setting performance
expectations and reviewing performance annually.

16

The Board has identified the areas of most risk to the
Authority and works with management to implement risk
mitigation strategies before problems occur.

14

Board members demonstrate leadership and vision and
work respectfully with each other.

16

Name of Authority: Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corp.

Date Completed: March 6, 2024

-82-




2023 ILDC Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

#

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding of the
mission and purpose of the Authority.

15

1

The policies, practices and decisions of the Board are
always consistent with this mission.

15

1

Board members comprehend their role and fiduciary
responsibilities and hold themselves and each other to
these principles.

15

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and practices
for the effective governance, management and
operations of the Authority and reviews these annually.

15

The Board sets clear and measurable performance
goals for the Authority that contribute to accomplishing
its mission.

15

The decisions made by Board members are arrived at
through independent judgment and deliberation, free of
political influence, pressure or self-interest.

15

Individual Board members communicate effectively with
executive staff so as to be well informed on the status of
all important issues.

15

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements, reporting
requirements, and other transactions.

13

The Board meets to review and approve all documents
and reports prior to public release and is confident that
the information being presented is accurate and
complete.

16

The Board knows the statutory obligations of the
Authority and if the Authority is in compliance with state
law.

14

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the active
participation of members.

16

Board members have sufficient opportunity to research,
discuss, question and prepare before decisions are
made and votes taken.

14

Individual Board members feel empowered to delay
votes, defer agenda items, or table actions if they feel
additional information or discussion is required.

15

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of the CEO
and other executive staff, including setting performance
expectations and reviewing performance annually.

16

The Board has identified the areas of most risk to the
Authority and works with management to implement risk
mitigation strategies before problems occur.

14

Board members demonstrate leadership and vision and
work respectfully with each other.

16

Authority: Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp.

Date Completed: March 6, 2024

-83-




2023 Summary Resuits of Confidential

Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Comments

Board members have a shared understanding of the mission and
purpose of the Authority.

The policies, practices and decisions of the Board are always
consistent with this mission.

' |Board members comprehend their role and fiduciary responsibilities
and hold themselves and each other to these principles.

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and practices for the
effective governance, management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

The Board sets clear and measurable performance goals for the
Authority that contribute to accomplishing its mission.

The decisions made by Board members are arrived at through
independent judgment and deliberation, free of political influence,
pressure or self-interest.

Individual Board members communicate effectively with executive
staff so as to be well informed on the status of all important issues.

Board members are knowledgeable about the Authority’s programs,
financial statements, reporting requirements, and other transactions.

The Board meets to review and approve all documents and reports
prior to public release and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

All of these are true, but vary between individual board
members. Some members are more active participants than
others.

The Board knows the statutory obligations of the Authority and if the
Authority is in compliance with state law.

Have had great presentations to increase our knowledge and
update us on regulations.

We rely on counsel to ensure the Board is in compliance.

Board and committee meetings facilitate open, deliberate and
thorough discussion, and the active participation of members.

Board members have sufficient opportunity to research, discuss,
question and prepare before decisions are made and votes taken.

The staff is very good and sharing information needed/follow-up
information and answering any questions.

Packages could sometimes go out earlier.

Individual Board members feel empowered to delay votes, defer
agenda items, or table actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of the CEO and other
executive staff, including setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

The Board has identified the areas of most risk to the Authority and
works with management to implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur.

We rely on counsel and outside auditors to assess risk and so
advise the Board

Board members demonstrate leadership and vision and work
respectfully with each other.

Authority: Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA): Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(RDC) and Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)

Date Completed: March 6, 2024

-84-




Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC)

2023 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Responsibilities of the Governance Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Governance Commiittee, as mandated under Section 2824(7) of the New
York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) keeping the Board informed of current
best governance practices; (ii) reviewing corporate governance trends; (iii) updating the Agency’s corporate
governance principles; and (iv) advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skills
and experiences necessary required of potential Board members.

Pen

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No ding Comments

1. Are the members of the Governance X (O (O
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and are individuals appointed
to the Governance Committee
knowledgeable, or have expressed a
willingness to become knowledgeable, in
matters pertaining to governance?

2. s each member of the Governance X [ O | O
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Governance Committee
members, who are members of the
Agency, comply with the conflict of interest
provisions applicable to public officers
under Article 18 of the New York General
Municipal Law?

3. Did the Governance Committee meet a XJ | [ | [O | The Governance Committee met on
minimum of once (1) each calendar year? 1/26/23, 2/13/23, 3/13/23, and
9/19/23.
4. Were meeting notices and agendas X | O | O

prepared for each meeting and provided to
Governance Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

-85-



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Comments

5. Did the Governance Committee develop
the Agency’s governance practices, which
should address transparency,
independence, accountability, fiduciary
responsibilities and management
oversight?

See Questions #6-#9 below.

Did the Governance Committee develop a
statement of the competencies and
personal attributes required of Board
members to assist those authorized to
appoint members to the Board in
identifying qualified individuals (it being
acknowledged that membership in the
Agency is determined pursuant to Section
891-a of the General Municipal Law)?

A Statement of the Competencies
and Personal Attributes is posted on
the ECIDA website. It was approved
by the ECIDA Board of Directors on
2/16/10. Revisions to this document
were not necessary in 2023.

Did the Governance Committee develop
and recommend to the Board any revisions
to the number and/or structure of Board
committees?

No additional committees were
recommended by the Governance
Committee in 2023.

Did the Governance Committee develop
and provide recommendations to the
Board regarding Board member education,
including new member orientation and
regularly scheduled Board member
training to be obtained from state-
approved trainers as required under
Section 2824(2) of the New York Public
Authorities Law?

New Board members attend an
orientation session hosted by ECIDA
staff and are provided with a New
Member Orientation Manual.

As of 12/31/23, 19 of 19 ECIDA/RDC
Board members and 7 of 7 ILDC
Board members have received the
PAAA required training. All Board
members who have not received the
training received notifications
throughout the year regarding PAAA
training session dates.

Did the Governance Committee develop,
review and recommend to the Board the
adoption and/or revisions to the following:

(i) the Agency’s Code of Ethics.

(ii) written policies regarding conflicts of
interest.

-86-




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

(iii) written policies regarding the
protection of whistleblowers from
retaliation.

(iv) equal opportunity and affirmative
action policies.

(v) written policies regarding procurement
of goods and services, including policies
relating to the disclosure of persons who
attempt to influence the Agency'’s
procurement process.

(vi) written policies regarding the
disposition of real and personal property
and the acquisition of property.

(vii) committee charters, including this
Charter.

(viii) any other policies or documents
relating to the governance of the
Agency, including rules and
procedures for conducting the
business of the Agency’s Board,
including the Agency’s Bylaws. The
Governance Committee will oversee
the implementation and effectiveness
of the Bylaws and other governance
documents and recommend
modifications to the Board as
necessary or appropriate.

Comments

Items i) & ii) are included in the
ECIDA Code of Ethics and Conflict of
Interest Policy. The Code was re-
adopted by the full Board during its
meeting on 3/22/23.

(iii) In 2012, the Governance
Committee approved a formal
Whistleblower Policy. The Policy was
re-adopted by the full Board during its
meeting on 3/22/23.

iv) The ECIDA’s EEO policy is
included in the Employee Handbook
and the Procurement Policy.

v) The ECIDA Procurement Policy
was re-adopted by the full Board
during its 3/22/23 meeting.

vi) The ECIDA Property Disposition
Guidelines were re-adopted by the
full Board during its meeting on
3/22/23.

vii) The ECIDA Governance
Committee Charter was re-adopted
by the full Board during its meeting
on 3/23/22.

viii) At its 3/13/23 meeting, the
Governance Committee reviewed
and recommended the adoption of
the Airborne Infectious Disease
Policy (ECIDA/RDC/ILDC). The
policy was adopted by the full Board
during its meeting on 3/22/23.

10.

Did the Governance Committee:

(i) reportits actions and
recommendations to the Board at each
regular meeting of the Board following a
meeting of the Governance Committee
and when otherwise requested by the
Board.

The Committee reports its actions and
recommendations to the Board
following each meeting.

i) & ii) As stated above, all policies/
guidelines referenced above were
adopted or re-adopted by the Board
on 3/22/23.

-87-




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

(ii) report to the Board, at least annually,
regarding any proposed changes to this

Charter.

(iii) provide a self-evaluation of the iif) On 3/13/23, the Committee
Governance Committee’s functions to the performed a Self-Evaluation for the
Board on an annual basis. calendar year 2022 and provided a

status report to the Board on 3/22/23.

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Self-Evaluation Notes

1) During its 1/26/23, 2/13/23, and 3/13/23 meetings, the Governance Committee, ECIDA staff and
counsel discussed the results of ECIDA’s 2022 Performance Measures.

2) During its 1/26/23, 2/13/23, and 3/13/23 meetings, the Governance Committee, ECIDA staff and
counsel discussed the ECIDA Mission Statement and 2023 Performance Measures.

3) During its 3/13/23 meeting, the Governance Committee reviewed the 2022 Board evaluation for
the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC boards. The Committee discussed the results of these evaluations
during the 3/23/23 Board meeting.

4) During its 3/13/23 meeting, the Governance Committee reviewed and recommended the
adoption of the Airborne Infectious Disease Policy (ECIDA/RDC/ILDC). The policy was adopted
by the full Board during its meeting on 3/22/23.

5) In addition to the above reference policies, the Governance Committee re-adopted the following
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Policies items during its meeting on 3/13/23: (a) Board Member
Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy, (b) Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest
Policy, (c) Defense & Indemnification Policy, (d) ECIDA Employee Compensation Program Fee
Structure Policy (ECIDA & ILDC only), (f) Governance Committee charter, (g) Procurement
Policy (h) Property Disposition Guidelines, (i) Real Property Acquisition Policy, (j) Sexual
Harassment Policy, (k) Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors, (1)
Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members, (m) Travel,
Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy, (n) Whistleblower Policy. The policies were
approved by the full Board during its 3/22/23 meeting.

6) During its 3/13/23 meeting, the ECIDA staff provided the Governance Committee a status
update on the ECIDA’s Public Authority Reporting Information System (PARIS) report.

7) During the 9/19/23 Governance Committee meeting, the Governance Committee approved the
one-year extension plus an additional six-month extension through November 2024 for legal

professional services.




= N N = Qlf o Bl 4 Bl b o o \ }
RO Lot e &{i.cl; 21 ‘\ﬂf' 'éj el phat | Flf:‘) & Q ?-)_!L'E% f”»"i Edses
G EXROSUFe Rrevention Plan
! v i : {
% g J f, .

The purpose of this plan is to protect employees against exposure and disease during an airborne infectious disease
outbreak. This plan goes into effect when an airborne infectious disease is designated by the New York State
Commissioner of Health as a highly contagious communicable disease that presents a serious risk of harm to the
public health. This plan is subject to any additional or greater requirements arising from a declaration of a state of
emergency due to an airborne infectious disease, as well as any applicable federal standards.

Employees should report any questions or concerns with the implementation this plan to the designated contact.

This plan applies to all “employees” as defined by the New York State HERO Act, which means any person
providing labor or services for remuneration for a private entity or business within the state, without regard to an
individual’'s immigration status, and shall include part-time workers, independent contractors, domestic workers,
home care and personal care workers, day laborers, farmworkers and other temporary and seasonal workers.

The term also includes individuals working for digital applications or platforms, staffing agencies, contractors or
subcontractors on behalf of the employer at any individual work site; as well as any individual delivering goods

or transporting people at, to or from the work site on behalf of the employer, regardless of whether delivery or
transport is conducted by an individual or entity that would otherwise be deemed an employer under this chapter,”
The term does not inciude employees or independent contractors of the state, any political subdivision of the
state, a public authority, or any other governmental agency or instrumentality.

As of the date of the publication of this document, while the State continues to deal with COVID-19 and & risk
still exists, no designation is in effect at this time. Please check the websites of Departments of Health and
Labor for up to date information on whether a designation has been put into effect, as any such designation will
be prominently displayed. No employer is required to put a plan into effect absent such a designation by the

Commissioner of Health.

CONTENTS

I. RESPONSIBILITIES
Il. EXPOSURE CONTROLS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
A. Minimum Controls During an Outbreak
B. Advanced Controls During an Outbreak
C. Exposure Control Readiness, Maintenance and Storage:
iil. HOUSEKEEPING DURING A DESIGNATED QUTBREAK
V. INFECTION RESPONSE DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
V. TRAINING AND INFORMATION DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
V1. PLAN EVALUATIONS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
VIL Retaliation Protections and Reporting of Any Violations

O 0NN NN

-89.



l. RESPONSIBILITIES
This plan applies to all employees of Erie County Industrial Development Agency , and [all)/[the following work sites]:

95 Perry Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 |

—

This plan requires commitment to ensure combiiance with ail plan elements aimed at preventing the spread of
infectious disease. The following supervisory employee(s) are designated to enforce compliance with the plan.
Additionally, these supervisory employees will act as the designated contacts unless otherwise noted in this plan:

Location

Mollie Profic CFO 85 Perry Street, Buftslo, NV 14203 716.362.8380

Beth OKeefe Business Development Officer. .. S5PenyStruet,Buffalo, NY 14203 | 716.3626574

— e R R e e

e T I ——

Il. EXPOSURE CONTROLS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

A. MINIMUM CONTROLS DURING AN OUTBREAK
During an airborne infectious disease outbreak, the following minimum controls will be used In ali areas of the

worksite:
1. General Awareness: Individuals may not be aware that they have the infectious disease and can spread it to
others. Employees should remember to:
« Maintain physical distancing;
» Exercise coughing/sneezing etiquette;
« Wear face coverings, gloves, and personal protective equipment {(PPE), as appropriate;
« Individuals limit what they touch;
+ Stop social etiquette behaviors such as hugging and hand shaking, and

- Wash hands properly and often.

2. “Stay at Home Policy”: If an employee deveiops symptoms of the infectious disease, the employee should
not be in the workplace. The employee should inform the designated contact and follow New York State
Department of Health (NYSDOH)and Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) guidance regarding
obtaining medical care and isolating.

3. Health Screening: Employees will be screened for symptoms of the infectious disease at the beginning of their
shift. Employees are to self-monitor throughout their shift and report any new or emerging signs or symptoms
of the infectious disease to the designated contact. An employee showing signs or symptoms of the infectious
disease should be removed from the workplace and should contact a healthcare professional for instructions.
The health screening elements will follow guidance from NYSDOH and CDC guidance, if available,

-90-



4. Face Coverings: To protect your coworkers, employees will wear face coverings throughout the workday to the
greatest extent possible. Face coverings and physical distancing should be used together whenever possible.
The face covering must cover the nose and mouth, and fit snugly, but comfortably, against the face. The
face covering itself must not create a hazard, e.g. have features could get caught in machinery or cause
severe fogging of eyewear. The face coverings must be kept clean and sanitary and changed when sailed,
contaminated, or damaged.

. Physical Distancing: Physical distancing will be followed as much as feasibie. Avoid unnecessary gatherings
and maintain a distance of at least six feet (or as recommended by the NYSDOH/CDC for the infectious agent)

from each other. Use a face covering when physical distance cannot be maintained,
in situations where prolonged close contact with other individuals is likely, use the following control methods: (Note to
employer: Check off the controls you intend to use and add any additional controls not listed here)}

restricting or limiting customer or visitor entry;

limiting occupancy;.
allowing only one person at a time inside smali enclosed spaces with poor ventilation;

reconfiguring workspaces;
physical barriers;

Q

S
.

signage;
“#Hoor markings:

BREE

telecommuting;
remote meetings;

preventing gatherings;

restricting travel;

creating new work shifts and/or staggering work hours;
adjusting break times and lunch periods;

delivering services remotely or through curb-side pickup;
convert internal & external in-person meetings to an online fqn_ﬁat whenever possible (comply with public meeting laws).

)
.

B EE

&l

. Hand Hygiene: To prevent the spread of infection, employees should wash hands with soap and water for at
least 20 seconds or use a hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol to clean hands BEFORE and AFTER:

« Touching your eyes, nose, or mouth;

« Touching your mask;

- Entering and leaving a public place; and
+ Touching an item or surface that may be frequently touched by other people, such as door handles, tables, gas

pumps, shopping carts, or electronic cashier registers/screens.
Because hand sanitizers are less effective on solled hands, wash hands rather than using hand sanitizer when

your hands are soiled.

7. Cleaning and Disinfection: See Section V of this plan.

- “Respiratory Etiquette”: Because infectious diseases can be spread by droplets expelled from the mouth
and nose, empioyees should exercise appropriate respiratory etiquette by covering nose and mouth when
sneezing, coughing or yawning,

. Special Accommodations for Individusls with Added Risk Factors: Some employees, due to age, underlying
health condition, or other factors, may be at increased risk of severe illness if infected. Please inform your
supervisor or the HR department if you fall within this group and need an accommodation.

-91-



B. ADVANCED CONTROLS DURING AN OUTBREAK
For activities where the Minimum Controls alone will not provide sufficient protection for employees, additional
controls from the following hierarchy may be necessary. Employers should determine if the following are

necessary:

1. Elimination: Employers should consider the temporary suspension or elimination of risky activities where
adequate controls could not provide sufficient protection for employees.

2. Engineering Controls: Employers should consider appropriate controls to contain and/or remove the infectious
agent, prevent the agent from being spread, or isolate the worker from the infectious agent. Examples of

engineering controls include:
i. Mechanical Ventilation:

a. Local Exhaust Ventilation, for example:
+ Ventilated booths (lab hoods);
« Kitchen Vents; and
- Vented biosafety cabinets.

b. General Ventilation, for example:
+ Dedicated ventilation systems for cooking areas, malls, atriums, surgical suites, manu

facturing,
‘welding, indoor painting, labioratories, negstiveprassure isviatishrosme———= R e

Increasing the percentage of fresh air introduced into air handling systems;

- Avoiding air recirculation;

+ Using higher-efficiency air filters in the air handiing system;

If fans are used in the facility, arrange them so that air does not blow directly from one worker to
another; and

ii. Natural Ventilation, for example:
Opening outside windows and doors to create natural ventilation; and

Opening windows on one side of the room to let fresh air in and installing window exhaust fans on the
opposite side of the room so that they exhaust air outdoors. (Note: This method is appropriate only if air will

not blow from one person to another,)

iii. Install automatic disinfection systems (e.g., ultraviolet light disinfection systems).
iv. Install cleanable barriers such as partitions and/or clear plastic sneeze/cough guards.

v. Change layout to avoid points or areas where employees may congregate (e.g., install additional timeclocks).

-92.



Subject to changes based on operations and circumstances surrounding the infectious disease, engineering
controls that are anticipated to be used are listed in the following table:

The building is owned by Savarino - our contact is Julia Spitz, EVP. Julia has indicated that the facility is currenty

using the highest grade filters compatible with HVAC system. Filters are changed quarterly. We have access to an outside door (pstio

-

door) that can be opened to Increase air fiow from outside. Should eny air quality concems arise, the ability to work from home

remains as a viable option for staff.

= . — e IR———

I —— p _— —

Note o Employer: One of the best ways to reduce exposure to. infectious agents Is to improve ventilation, The aim is to deliver
more “clean oir* into an occupled orea and exhaust the contaminated air to a safe location. In some cases, the air may have o
be fltered before it enters the work areg and/or before It Is exhausted. Direct the contaminated oir away from other individuals
and from the buliding’s fresh oir intoke ports. Consult your ventifation system’s monufeeturer-orservice company to determine if

Improvements are possible for your system.

3. "Administrative Controls” are policies and work rules used to prevent exposure. Examples include:
+ Increasing the space between workers;
« Slowing production speed to accommodate fewer workers at a time;
[- Disinfecting procedures for specific operations:
+ Not shaking out soiled laundry;
[+ Employee training;
- Identify and prioritize job functions that are essential for continuous operations;
» Cross-train employees to ensure critical operations can continue during worker absence;
» Limit the use of shared workstations;
« Post signs reminding employees of respiratory etiquette, masks, handwashing;
4]+ Rearrange traffic flow to allow for one-way walking paths;
+ Provide clearly designated entrance and exits;
¥]- Provide additionaf short breaks for handwashing and cleaning;
¢j+ Establishing pods or cohorts working on same shift:

RN SRR

BEEE

-93.




Subject to changes based on operations and circumstances surrounding the infectious disease, the following
specific administrative controls are anticipated to be used:

Bdministiative ControtsUtilized/Location:

4. 10. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) are devices like eye protection, face shields, respirators , , and gloves
that protect the wearer from infection. PPE will be provided, used and maintained in a sanitary and reliable
condition at no cost to the employee. The PPE provided to an employee will be based on a hazard assessment

for the workplace.

PPERcuuired =Activicyinvelved/Location:

PPE as noted above would be required (as / if deemed necessary) at no cost to employees.

e e
1The use of respiratory protection, e.g. on N95 jiltering facepiece respirator, requires compliance with the OSHA Respiratory
FProtection Standord 29 CFR 1910.134 or temporory respiratory protection requirements OSHA offows for during the infectious

disease outbreck.

2 Respirators with exhalation valves will releose exhaled droplets from the respirotors. Resplrators are designed to protect the
wearer. Surgical masks ond face coverings, which are not respirators, are designed to protect others, not the wearer.

C. EXPOSURE CONTROL READINESS, MAINTENANCE AND STORAGE:

The controls we have selected will be obtained, properly stored, and maintained so that they are ready for
immediate use in the event of an infectious disease outbreak and any applicable expiration dates will be properly

considered.

-94-



il. HOUSEKEEPING DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

A, Disinfection Methods and Schedules
Objects that are touched repeatedly by multiple individuals, such as door handles, light switches, control
buttons/levers, dials, levers, water faucet handles, computers, phones, or handrails must be cleaned frequently
with an appropriate disinfectant. Surfaces that are handled less often, or by fewer individuals, may require less
frequent disinfection.
The disinfection methods and schedules selected are based on specific workplace conditions.
The New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC)and the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) have compiled lists of approved disinfectants that are effective against many infectious
agents (see dec.ny.gov and epa.gov/pesticide-registration/selected-epa-registered-disinfectants). Select
disinfectants based on NYSDOH and CDC guidance and follow manufacturer guidance for methods, dilution,

use, and contact time.

B. Adjustments to Normal Housekeeping Procedures
Normal housekeeping duties and schedules should continue to be ?ollqwed during an infectious disease
outbreak, to the extent practicable and appropriate consistent with NYSDOH and/or CDC guidance in effect at
the time. However, routine procedures may need to be adjusted and additional cleaning and disinfecting may

be required.
Housekeeping staff may be at increased risk because they may be. cleaning many poteptially contaminated .
surfaces. Some housekeeping activities, like dry sweeping, vacuuming, and dusting, can resuspend into the
air particles that are contaminated with the infectious agent. For that reason, alternative methods and/or
increased levels of protection may be needed.

Rather than dusting, for example, the CDC recommends cleaning surfaces with soap and water before

disinfecting them. Conducting housekeeping during “off” hours may also reduce other workers’ exposures to
the infectious agent. Best practice dictates that housekeepers should wear respiratory protection. See ede.gov

for more guidance.

C. i an employee develops symptoms of the infectious disease at work, it is ideal to isolate the area in
accordance with guidance issued by NYSDOH or the CDC, before cleaning and disinfecting the sick
employee’s work area. This delay will allow contaminated droplets to settle out of the air and the space to be
ventilated,

. As feasible, liners should be used in trash containers. Empty the containers often enough to prevent overfilling.
Do not forcefully squeeze the air out of the trash bags before tying them closed. Trash containers may contain

soiled tissue or face coverings.

V. INFECTION RESPONSE DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

If an actual, or suspected, infectious disease case occurs at work, take the following actions:
« Instruct the sick individual to wear a face covering and leave the worksite and follow NYSDOH/CDC guidance.

- Follow local and state authority guidance to inform impacted individuals.
r

V. TRAINING AND INFORMATION DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

A. Mollie Profic or Beth O'Keefe will verbally inform all employees of the existence and location
of this Plan, the circumstances it can be activated, the infectious disease standard, employer policies, and
employee rights under the HERO Act. (Note: training need not be provided to the following individuals: any
individuals working for staffing agencies, contractors or subcontractors on behalf of the employer at any
individual work site, as well as any individual delivering goods or transporting people at, to or from the work
site on behalf of the employer, where delivery or transport is conducted by an individual or entity that would

otherwise be deemed an employer under this chapter)

-95._



B. When this plan is activated, all personnel will receive training which will cover all elements of this plan and the
following topics: ’
1. The infectious agent and the disease(s) it can cause;
. The signs and symptoms of the disease:;
. How the disease can be spread;
. An explanation of this Exposure Prevention Plan;
The activities and locations at our worksite that may involve exposure to the infectious agent;

O M s wN

. The use and limitations of exposure controls
7. Areview of the standard, including employee rights provided under Labor Law, Section 218-B.

C. The training will be
1. Provided at no cost to employees and take place during working hours. If training during normal work
hours is not possible, employees will be compensated for the training time {with pay or time off};

2. Appropriate in content and vocabulary to your educational level, literacy, and preferred language; and
3. Verbally provided in person or through telephonic, electronic, or other means.

VI. PLAN EVALUATIONS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
The employer will review and revise the plan periodically, upon activation-ofthe-plan;and-as often as needed to
keep up-to-date with current requirements. Document the plan revisions below:

PlonRevisionHizioly

; ln_prwi_dﬂr .

Fyriessnic

STEE R e e Tame e e e arn, o

-96-



VI. RETALIATION PROTECTIONS AND REPORTING OF ANY VIOLATIONS

No employer, or his or her agent, or person, ; acting as or on behalf of a hiring entity, or the officer or agent of any entity,
business, corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, shall discriminate, threaten, retaliate against, or take
adverse action against any employee for exercising their rights under this plan, including reporting conduct the employee
reasonably believes in good faith violates the plan or airborne infectious disease concerns to their employer, government
agencies or officials or for refusing to work where an employee reasonably believes in good faith that such work exposes
him or her, other workers, or the public to an unreasonable risk of exposure, provided the employee, another employee,
or representative has notified the employer verbally or in writing, including electronic communication, of the inconsistent
working conditions and the employer's failure to cure or if the employer knew or should have known of the consistent

working conditions.

Notification of a violation by an employee may be made verbally or in writing, and without limitation to format
including electronic communications. To the extent that communications between the employer and employee regarding
a potential risk of exposure are in writing, they shall be maintained by the employer for two years after the conclusion of
the designation of a high risk disease from the Commissioner of Health, or two years after the conclusion of the
Governor's emergency declaration of a high risk disease. Employer should include contact information to report
violations of this plan and retaliation during regular business hours and for weekends/other non-regular business hours

‘whei emnployees may be working. ST — e

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced above.

-97-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND
ATTENDANCE POLICY

This Compensation, Reimbursement and Attendance Policy is adopted in accordance with
Section 2824 of the Public Authorities Law and applies to all directors of the Erie County
Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) and its affiliates: Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (ILDC), and any other affiliated entities that may hereafier be established by ECIDA
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) upon approval by the respectlve Boards of
each corporation. TSmTonLTII o

Pursuant to and in accordance with Sections 856 and 891-a of the General Municipal Law of the
State of New York and this Policy, the members of the board of the Erie County Industrial
Development Agency and its affiliates (the “Board”) shall serve without salary but may be
reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of Agency duties in accordance
with the Agency’s Travel, Conferences, Meals and Entertainment Policy. Reimbursements for
any expenses shall be reviewed and approved by the Board Chair. Provided, however, if the
Board Chair is seeking the reimbursement allowed herein then such reimbursement shall be
subject to the approval by the Chair of the Audit Committee.

The members of the Board shall be available as required to perform the operations of the Agency
and as set forth within the By-Laws of the Agency, as may be amended, restated or revised by
the Board from time to time. Said members of the Agency shall put forth their best efforts to
perform their respective duties as outlined in the By-Laws of the Agency and any other
directives of the Board relating to same.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-98-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

CODE OF ETHICS & CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

This Code of Ethics is adopted upon approval by the respective Boards of each
corporation in accordance with Section 2824 of the Public Authorities Law and applies to
all members, directors, committee members, officers and employees of the Frie County
Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) and its affiliates: Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC) and any other affiliated entities that may hereafter be
established by ECIDA (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”).

This Code of Ethics shall serve as a guide for official conduct and is intended to
enhance the ethical and professional performance of the Agency’s members, directors,
officers and employees and to preserve public confidence in the Agency’s mission.

ARTICLE 1
Conflicts of Interest

A conflict of interest is a situation in which the financial, familial, or personal
interests of a member, director, officer or employee come into “actual” or “perceived”
conflict with their duties and responsibilities with the Agency.

“Perceived” conflicts of interest are situations where there is the appearance that a
member, director, officer or employee can personally benefit from actions or decisions
made in their official capacity, or where a member, director, officer or employee may be
influenced to act in a manner that does not represent the best interests of the Agency. The
perception of a conflict may occur if circumstances would suggest to a reasonable person
that a member, director, officer or employee may have a conflict.

“Actual” conflicts of interest are situations where a member, director, officer or
employee can personally benefit from actions or decisions made in their official capacity,
or where a member, director, officer or employee is influenced to act in a manner that does

not represent the best interests of the Agency.

Except for Prohibited Conflicts of Interest as set forth in Article V herein, Perceived
and Actual conflicts of interest should be treated in the same manner for purposes of
disclosure under Article IV herein.

-99.



ARTICLE 1T
Standards of Conduct

1. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should accept
other employment which will impair their independence of judgment in the exercise of
their official duties.

2. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should accept
employment or engage in any business or professional activity which will require them to
disclose confidential information which they have gained by reason of their official

position or authority.

3. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should disclose
confidential information acquired by them in the course of their official duties nor use such
information to further their personal interests.

4. No memniber, director, officer or employee of the Agency should use or
attempt to use their official position to secure unwarranted privileges or exemptions for
themselves or others; provided, however, nothing herein shall prohibit any business or
enterprise in which such member, director, officer or employee may have a financial
interest from obtaining financial assistance provided that the Prohibited Conflicts of
Interest provisions of Article V herein are not violated.

5. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should engage in
any transaction as representative or agent of the Agency with any business entity in which
they have a direct or indirect financial interest that might reasonably tend to conflict with
the proper discharge of their official duties; provided, however, nothing herein shall
prohibit any business or enterprise in which such member, director, officer or employee
may have a financial interest from obtaining financial assistance provided that the
Prohibited Conflicts of Interest provisions of Article V herein are not violated.

6. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should by their
conduct give reasonable basis for the impression that any person can improperly influence
them or unduly enjoy their favor in the performance of their official duties, or that they are
affected by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any party or person.

7. Each member, director, officer and employee of the Agency should abstain
from making personal investments in enterprises which they have reason to believe may
be directly involved in decisions to be made by them or which will otherwise create
substantial conflict between their duty in the public interest and their private interest;
provided, however, nothing herein shall prohibit any business or enterprise in which such
member, director, officer or employee may have a financial interest from obtaining
financial assistance provided that the Prohibited Conflicts of Interest provisions of Article

V herein are not violated.

-100-



8. Each member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should endeavor
to pursue a course of conduct which will not raise suspicion among the public that they are
likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or her trust.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article II to the contrary, nothing shall
prohibit any member, director, officer or employee of the Agency from acquiring property
adjacent to or otherwise proximate to the lands in which the Agency has an interest,
provided that such acquisition is not based upon the use of confidential information
obtained by such member, director, officer or employee of the Agency in his capacity with
the Agency as determined by such member, director, officer or employee after consultation
with the Ethics Officer and counsel to the Agency.

ARTICLE III
Gifts

Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 805-a of the General Municipal Law,
no member, director, officer or employee of the Agency shall directly or indirectly, solicit

any gift, or accept or receive any gift having a value of seventy-five dollars or more under

circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to
influence such individual, or could reasonably be expected to influence such individual, in
the performance of the individual’s official duties or was intended as a reward for any
official action on the individual’s part. Inferences that gifts having a value of less than
seventy-five dollars can influence or reward members, directors, officers or employees of
the Agency is deemed to be unreasonable.

ARTICLE IV
Procedures for Disclosing a Conflict of Interest

Except for Prohibited Conflicts of Interest as set forth in Article V below, all
members, directors, officers or employees of the Agency shall adhere to the following

procedures:

1. Allmembers, directors, officers and employees shall examine their specific
facts and circumstances giving rise to the question of a conflict in order to determine:

(i)  whether such member, director, officer or employee can personally benefit
from the actions or decisions made in their official capacity (i.e. Actual

Conflict); or

(ii)  whether a member, director, officer or employee is influenced to act in a
manner that does not represent the best interests of the Agency (i.e. Actual
Conflict); or

(iii)  whether a reasonable person would conclude that such member, director,
officer or employee may have a conflict (i.e. Perceived Conflict). In
determining whether a reasonable person would conclude that there is a
conflict, such member, director, officer or employee must assess the

-101-



materiality within the context of the specific facts and circumstances.
Provided that the event giving rise to the question of a conflict is material
within the context of the specific facts and circumstances, then it would be
reasonable for a person to conclude that there may be a conflict.

2. All Actual and Perceived conflicts of interest shall be disclosed in writing
to the Ethics Officer as soon as practicable after learning of the Actual or Perceived conflict
of interest. The written disclosure must (i) identify the matter before the Agency, (ii)
identify the Standard of Conduct in question and (iii) contain sufficient facts and
circumstances in order to accurately convey the extent of the member’s, director’s,
officer’s or employee’s interest in such matter. In addition, in the event a member of the
board of directors of the Agency has a conflict, he or she shall verbally disclose the conflict
during a public session of a board meeting at which the matter creating the conflict appears
on the agenda. Such verbal disclosure shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and

be made part of the public record.

3. Themember, director, officer or employee with the conflict of interest shall
recuse themselves and refrain from participating in all discussions or decisions on the
matter creating the conflict. In addition, in the event a member of the board of directors of
the Agency has a conflict, he or she shall, in addition to the foregoing, abstain from voting
on such matter creating the conflict.

4. The member, director, officer or employee with the conflict of interest shall
refrain from directly or indirectly attempting to influence the discussions, decisions,
deliberations or vote on the matter giving rise to such conflict.

ARTICLEV
Prohibited Conflicts

General Municipal Law (“GML”) Article 18 regulates financial conflicts of interest
of members, directors, officers and employees of the Agency. Therefore, notwithstanding
any other provision contained in this Policy, financial conflicts of interest shall be governed

solely by this Article V.

Prohibition: No member, director, officer or employee shall have a direct or indirect
financial interest in a contract with the Agency where such member, director, officer or
employee has some form of control over the contract (“Prohibited Interest).

No Cure: Disclosure, recusal, and abstention will not cure a Prohibited Interest. In
order to avoid a violation of a “Prohibited Interest” the contract may not be acted upon or
the member, director, officer or employee would have to resign.

Violations: Any member, director, officer or employee who is determined to have
“willfully and knowingly” violated the Prohibited Interest provisions of Article 18 of the
GML may be found guilty of a misdemeanor. In addition, the contract, if willfully entered
into, may be determined “null, void and wholly unenforceable”

-102-



Exceptions: Article 18 of the GML provides fifteen exceptions to the Prohibited
Interest provision. One of the more commonly claimed exceptions comes into play when
the member, director, officer or employees (“officials”) interest in the contract is prohibited
solely by reason of the official’s employment with the entity that has the contract with the
Agency. This exception applies provided: (a) the official’s compensation from the private
employer is not contingent upon the contract between the employer and the Agency and
(b) the official’s duties for the private employer do not directly involve the procurement,
preparation or performance of any part of the contract. [Note: This exception does not
cover an Agency official who is a director, partner, member, or shareholder of the private
employer]. The second most commonly claimed exception is where the official has an
interest in a contract that was entered into with the Agency prior to the time the official
was elected or appointed as such member, director, officer or employee of the Agency.
Provided, however, this exception does not authorize the renewal of any such contract.

Disclosure of Exception: Disclosure of Interest that falls within one of the
Exceptions: The official is required to publicly disclose the nature and extent of his or her
prospective, existing or subsequently acquired interest in any actual or proposed contract.
The disclosure must be made in writing and must be placed, in its entirety, in the official
record. The official must recuse him or herself from participating in any discussion or
action on the contract.

Notification of Potential Conflict due to a Financial Interest: Every member,
director, officer or employee shall immediately notify the Agency’s Ethics Officer of any
potential conflict of interest due to a direct or indirect financial interest in any matter
coming before the Agency where such member, director, officer or employee has the power
or duty to negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the matter before the Agency. The
Ethics Officer shall review the potential financial conflict of interest pursuant to the
provisions of Article 18 of the GML in consultation with Agency counsel.

ARTICLE VI
Penalties

Any employee that fails to comply with this Policy may be subject to termination.
In addition, any member, director, officer or employee that fails to comply with this Policy
may be penalized in a manner provided for in law.

ARTICLE V11
Ethics Officer

The Agency’s Board shall designate an officer, member, director or employee of
the Agency to serve as the Ethics Officer of the Agency. In the event of a vacancy, the
Agency Board Chair shall serve as the Ethics Officer until such time as the Agency Board

appoints a successor.

The Ethics Officer shall report to the Board. The Ethics Officer shall have the
powers and duties set forth below, and such other powers and duties as may be prescribed

by the Board:

-103-



L. Advise in confidence each member, director, officer or employee of the
Agency who seeks guidance regarding ethical behavior and conflicts of interest.

2. Review matters concerning ethics and conflicts of interest and advise the
Agency accordingly.

3. Receive and record disclosures of conflicts of interest.

4, Receive and investigate complaints about possible violations of this Code

of Ethics. Dismiss complaints found to be without substance.
5. Report to the governance committee.

6. Prepare investigative reports when deemed appropriate of his or her
findings to be submitted for action by the President/CEO or the Board.

7. Seek consultation and guidance from counsel tbflﬁéﬁf -t‘l'"i_éngency’s
governance committee, or any appropriate New York State agency.

ARTICLE VIII
Whistleblower Policy

In accordance with Title 12 of Article 9 of the Public Authorities Law, the Agency
adopted a Whistleblower Policy to afford certain protections to individuals who, in good
faith, report violations of the Agency’s Code of Ethics or other instances of potential
wrongdoing within the Agency. The Policy provides Agency members, directors, officers
and employees with a confidential means to report credible allegations of misconduct,
wrongdoing, or unethical behavior and to protect those individuals, when acting in good
faith, from personal or professional retaliation. The Policy is provided and is accessible to
all members, directors, officers and employees of the Agency and is reviewed annually by
the Agency’s Governance Committee. For additional information on this Policy, see
“Whistleblower Policy & Procedures” on the ECIDA website.

ARTICLE IX
Implementation; Annual Review

This Code of Ethics shall be provided to all members, directors, officers and
employees of the Agency upon commencement of employment or appointment and shall
be reviewed annually by the Agency’s Governance Committee.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above.

-104-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC?”)

DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION POLICY

This Defense and Indemnification Policy is adopted in accordance with Section 2824 of
the Public Authorities Law and applies to all members, directors, committee members, officers
and employees of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) and its affiliates:
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC), and any other affiliated entities that may
hereafter be established by ECIDA (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency’) upon
approval by the respective Boards of each corporation.

The Agency shall indemnify all members and directors of the Board of the Agency and
each committee member, officer and employees thereof, in the performance of their duties, and
to the extent authorized by the Board, each other person authorized to act for the Agency or on
its behalf, in accordance with the By-Laws or to the extent permitted by law.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-105-



ECIDA
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PROGRAM

Introduction

The ECIDA hereby adopts a written protocol for determining employee compensation
including eligibility criteria for bonus compensation. The compensation program includes employee base
compensation, COLA, bonus, and related fringe benefit casts (collectively, the "Employee Compensation

Program").

Emplovee Compensation Program Procedures

A preliminary budget for employee compensation, including base compensation and any
recommended salary adjustments, together with fringe benefits, COLA and bonus compensation shall
be established annually by the Management Team or CEO, as applicable. Base compensation and salary
adjustments shall be determined after taking into consideration the existing compensation ranges and
fringe benefit programs and appropriate economic, geographic, and competitive salary. ranges and fiinge
benefits for comparable positions in the region and with respect to New York State IDA's in
particular. The Management Team or CEO, as applicable, will also consider the experience of the
individual, the ECIDA's budget constraints, and other appropriate discretionary factors in establishing the
individual base compensation will be considered. Employee compensation is subject to the overall
profitability and economic stability of the ECIDA.

The preliminary budget shall then be submitted to the Audit Committee and Board of
Directors for approval in advance of each calendar year. This procedure is consistent with past practice
and will continue to be followed.

Performance Evaluation for Bonus Award

The ECIDA has adopted Performance Evaluation procedures for each position with certain
benchmarks for performance. Eligibility for bonus compensation will be determined on the basis of
meeting a minimum threshold rating set forth below based on the specific Performance Evaluation
Benchmarks designed for the particular position or employee's measurable objectives for strategic goals.
The Performance Evaluation Benchmarks for each employee's position will be established in advance of

each year.

Performance Evaluation Ratings:

If an employee of the ECIDA achieves an overall rating in the range of
"Unacceptable” or "Needs Improvement" then the employee will not be eligible for any
bonus compensation.

-106-



I: If an employee of the ECIDA achieves an overall rating of "Fully Satisfactory" then
the employee will be eligible for bonus compensation up to 3% of that employee's base

salary.

If an employee of the ECIDA achieves an overall rating of "Excellent" then the
employee will be eligible for bonus compensation up to 6% of that employee's base
salary.

Ifan employee of the ECIDA achieves an overall rating of "Outstanding" then the employee
will be eligible for bonus compensation up to 9% of that employee's base salary.

Bonus Award Determination

An award of bonus compensation is subject to an overall determination by the Management Team
or CEO, as applicable, of determining that a minimum eligibility rating has been achieved and, in consultation
with the Chair of the ECIDA Board of Directors, determining whether the overall profitability and economics
of the ECIDA are at appropriate levels for expending the additional compensation eamed, together with the ECIDA
achieving its overall performance goals.

As an inducement to continued and faithful service to the ECIDA, only an employee who has
been employed for the entire Plan Year will be eligible for the bonus award eamed. At the discretion of the
Management Team or CEO, as applicable, an employee who has not completed a full Plan Year may be
eligible for a pro rated bonus based on the employee's hire date. An employee must be an active employee
as of the date of the award's approval and distribution to receive the borus.

Effective Date

The effective date for the Employee Compensation Program is the date of its adoption by the
ECIDA Board of Directors. The first Plan year will be based on the period June 1, 2007 — December 31,
2007, and each succeeding calendar year thereafier (the "Plan Year”).

Amendment
This Plan may be modified or terminated as the Board of Directors may determine.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above.

-107-



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

PROJECT ADMINISTRATIVE FEE AND EXPENSE SCHEDULE

PRODUCT AGENCY/ILDC FEE AND DUE DATE
Sales Tax Benefit $1000 application fee
Mortgage Tax Benefit e 1.25% of the total benefitted project amount
PILOT Benefit ® Due Date(s): 50% of fee due earlier of 60-days within date of approving

** Or any Project that receives a
PILOT Benefit

resolution, or issuance of Project Agreement, remaining 50% of fee due
upon earlier of inducement anniversary date, mortgage closing date, or
lease/leaseback transaction closing date

Sales Tax Benefit
Mortgage Tax Benefit

¢ $1,000 application fee

¢ Fee equals the sum of (i) 1% on sales taxable component (50% of
construction budget plus amount of sales taxable materials and equipment)
and (ii) %2 of 1% on difference between mortgage benefit amount and sales
taxable component: - Saasasi el

* Due Date(s): 50% due on date of issuance of the Project Agreement,
remaining 50% due upon earlier to occur of inducement anniversary date or

mortgage closing date

Sales Tax Benefit

$1,000 application fee
1% of sales taxable component '
Due Date: Entire fee is due upon issuance of Project Agreement

Mortgage Tax Benefit

$1000 application fee
50% of the Mortgage Tax Benefit amount

Due Date: At mortgage closing

New Tax-Exempt Bond Issuance

e $1,000 Application Fee
1% of bond amount
¢ Due Date: Entire fee due at closing

Tax-Exempt Bond Refunding

e $1,000 application fee
%2 of 1% of refunded amount, plus 1% of new money amount, if any
¢ Due Date: Entire fee due at closing

Additional Fees

The applicant is responsible for and shall pay all reasonable costs to the
Agency/ILDC, including without limitation, Agency/ILDC counsel fees,
incurred in connection with the Project including costs incurred in the following
instances:

* the project application is withdrawn at any time following submission

or after an initial inducement or bond resolution relating to the project
e the project expires without extension,
e the project does not close for any reason

Other

The Agency/ILDC President/CEO, in consultation with the Agency/ILDC
Chair, is authorized to adjust/revise the aforementioned fee schedule on an
individual project by project basis for unique or otherwise outstanding projects.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced above.

-108-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), Buffalo
and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC?”), and
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

In addition to the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), this Charter
shall serve as the charter for the Governance Committees of the Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (“RDC”), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”), (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) upon approval by the
respective Boards of each corporation.

ARTICLE I
Establishment of Governance Committee;
Core Responsibilities

The Board of Directors of the Agency authorized ihe establishment-of the Governance =

Committee by amendment to the Agency’s bylaws (“Bylaws”). The Bylaws sets forth the
composition and basic responsibilities of the Governance Committee.

The core responsibilities of the Governance Committee, as mandated under Section
2824(7) of the New York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: @)
keeping the Board informed of current best governance practices; (ii) reviewing -corporate
governance trends; (iii) updating the Agency’s corporate governance principles; and (iv) advising
those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skills and experiences necessary
required of potential Board members.

ARTICLE 11
Composition of the Governance Commiittee

The members of the Governance Committee shall be appointed in accordance with the
Bylaws. Individuals appointed to the Governance Committee should be knowledgeable, or have
expressed a willingness to become knowledgeable, in matters pertaining to governance. The Board
shall designate one member of the Governance Committee to serve as chair of the Governance
Committee. Each member of the Governance Committee shall serve for a term of one (1) year and
until his or her successor shall be appointed and qualified.

At least three members of the Governance Committee must be an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent required by, Section 2825 of the New York Public
Authorities Law, as amended from time to time. Governance Committee members shall be
prohibited from being an employee of the Agency or an immediate family member of an employee
of the Agency. Members of the Governance Committee shall not engage in any private business
transactions with the Agency or receive compensation from any private entity that has material
business relationships with the Agency, or be an immediate family member of an individual that
engages in private business transactions with the Agency or receives compensation from an entity
that has material business relationships with the Agency. In addition, Governance Committee

239441 4834-9804-5077 v1 1

-109-



members who are members of the Agency shall comply with the conflict of interest provisions
applicable to public officers under Article 18 of the New York General Municipal Law.

ARTICLE III
Committee Meetings

The Governance Committee will meet a minimum of once (1) each calendar year.
Additional meetings may be necessary or appropriate to adequately fulfill the obligations and
duties outlined in this Charter. All committee members are expected to attend each meeting in

person or via videoconference.

Meeting notices and agendas will be prepared for each meeting and provided to
Governance Committee members by electronic or regular mail at least five (5) days in advance of
the scheduled meeting. A quorum of the Governance Committee shall consist of a majority of the
members then serving on the Governance Committee. The affirmative vote of a majority of the
members then serving on the Governance Committee shall constitute an act of the Governance
Committee. Minutes of all meetings shall be recorded by the Secreiary oramy=Assistant Scoretary
of the Agency. All meetings shall comply with the requirements of the Open Meetings Law.

ARTICLE IV
Committee Duties and Responsibilities

To accomplish the objectives of good governance and accountability, the Governance
Committee has the following responsibilities as set forth below:

A. The Board of Directors has delegated to the Governance Committee the
responsibility to review, develop, draft, revise or oversee policies and practices for which the
Governance Committee has specific expertise, as follows:

) Develop the Agency’s governance practices, which should address
transparency, independence, accountability, fiduciary responsibilities and management oversight;

(i)  Develop a statement of the competencies and personal attributes required of
Board members to assist those authorized to appoint members to the Board in identifying qualified
individuals (it being acknowledged that membership in the Agency is determined pursuant to
Section 891-a of the General Municipal Law);

(iii)) - Develop and recommend to the Board any revisions to the number and/or
structure of Board committees;

(iv)  Develop and provide recommendations to the Board regarding Board
member education, including new member orientation and regularly scheduled Board member
training to be obtained from state-approved trainers as required under Section 2824(2) of the New

York Public Authorities Law;

v) Examine ethical and conflicts of interest; and

(vi)  Perform full Board self-evaluations.

239441 4834-9804-5077 v1 2

-110-



B. The Governance Committee shall develop, review and recommend to the Board the
adoption and/or revisions to the following:

@) the Agency’s Code of Ethics;

(ii)  written policies regarding conflicts of interest;

(iii)  written policies regarding the protection of whistleblowers from retaliation;
(iv)  equal opportunity and affirmative action policies;

) written policies regarding procurement of goods and services, including
policies relating to the disclosure of persons who attempt to influence the Agency’s procurement
process;

(vi)  written policies regarding the disposition of real and personal property and
the acquisition of property; ... e

(vii))  committee charters, including this Charter; and

(viif)  any other policies or documents relating to the governance of the Agency,
including rules and procedures for conducting the business of the Agency’s Board, including the
Agency’s Bylaws. The Governance Committee will oversee the implementation and effectiveness
of the Bylaws and other governance documents and recommend modifications to the Board as

necessary or appropriate.

ARTICLEV
Committee Reports

The Governance Committee shall:

A. report its actions and recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the
Board following a meeting of the Governance Committee and when otherwise requested by the

Board;

B. report to the Board, at least annually, regarding any proposed changes to this
Charter; and

C. provide a self-evaluation of the Governance Committee’s functions to the Board on
an annual basis.

ARTICLE VI
Amendments -

This Charter may be amended upon affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of the
Agency.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced above.

239441 4834-9804-5077 v1 3

-111-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial

Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

PROCUREMENT POLICY

A. Introduction

1.

Applicability — This Procurement Policy (“Policy”) shall apply to the Erie
County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”) and its affiliated
corporations: Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”) and any other affiliated entities that may be
established by the ECIDA (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Agency”) upon approval by the respective Board of Directors or
Members of the Agency.

Scope — In accordance with Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law
(the “GML”), Section 104-b of the GML, and the Public Authorities
Accountability Act of 2005, the Agency is required to adopt procurement
policies which will apply to the procurement of goods and services paid
for by the Agency for its own use and account.

Purpose — Pursuant to Section 104-b of the GML, the primary objectives
of this Policy are to assure the prudent and economical use of public
monies in the best interests of the taxpayers of the County of Erie, to
facilitate the acquisition of goods and services of maximum quality at the
lowest possible cost under the circumstances and to guard against
favoritism, improvidence, extravagance, fraud and corruption.

B. Procedures

1.

Solicitation Procedures for the Purchase of Commodities, Equipment,
Goods or Services.

a. Up to $5,000 per instance — The discretion of the Chairperson or
chief executive officer of the Agency or authorized designee.

b. Greater than $5,000 to $20,000 per instance — Documented verbal
quotations or written/fax/email quotations from at least three

vendors.

c. Greater than $20,000 per instance — Written Request for Proposal.

d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should cumulative procurements
pursuant to paragraphs a or b above exceed $50,000 per calendar
year for a single vendor, the Agency shall be required to prepare a
Written Request for Proposal for such procurements.

1

-112-



2. Exceptions. Alternative proposals or quotations shall not be required for
procurements made through or with respect to:

a.

New York State or Erie County Contracts — when the Agency is
able to procure commodities, equipment, goods or services through
New York State or Erie County contracts, it is unnecessary to
obtain quotations or bids;

State Finance Law Section 175-b (from agencies for the blind or
severely handicapped);

Correction Law Section 186 (articles manufactured in correctional
institutions);

Emergency Procurements — an emergency exists if the delay
caused by soliciting quotes would endanger health, welfare,
property or an cconcmic development opportunity-Approval of the
Chief Executive Officer is necessary, which shall be documented
and shall also include a description of the facts giving rise to the

emergency.

Sole Source Procurements — A “sole source” means a situation
where (i) there is only one possible source from which to produce
goods and/or services available in the marketplace, (ii) no other
goods and/or services provide substantially equivalent or similar
benefits, and (iii) considering the benefits, the cost to the Agency
is reasonable.

Utilities and Affiliate Transactions — The purchase of utilities and
inter-affiliate transactions are excepted from alternative
proposal/quotation requirements.

Unavailability of three (3) vendors who are able or - willing to
provide a quote.

3. Basis for the Award of Contracts.

Contracts will be awarded to the lowest responsible dollar offeror who
meets the specifications therefor, except in circumstances that the Agency
determines justify an award to other than the lowest responsible dollar
offeror. In making any such determination, the Agency may consider
relevant factors including, without limitation:

a.

b.

Delivery requirements
Quality requirements

Quantity requirements

2

-113-



Past vendor performance and/or experience

The unavailability of three or more vendors who are able or willing
t0 quote on a procurement.

It may be in the best interests of the Agency to consider only one
vendor who has previous expertise with respect to a particular
procurement.

If the contemplated contract furthers the Agency’s goal of
advancing opportunities for a Minority Business Enterprise
(MBE)! and/or a Women Business Enterprise (WBE? and for
purposes herein, the abbreviation “MWBE” shall mean a Minority
or Women Owned Business Enterprise) or if the contemplated
contract meets the Agency’s MWBE procurement goals as set
forth in Section C of this Policy.

Any procurement excepted from the alternative proposal/quotation
requirements as set forth in subdivision 2 of this Section B, and the
procurement of professional services in Section F of this Policy.

Documentation

a.

A record of all solicitations for alternative proposals or quotations,
the response (if applicable), and any determinations pursuant
thereto shall be maintained in the procurement file.

For each procurement by the Agency the chief executive officer of
the Agency or authorized designee shall set forth in writing the
category of procurement that is being made and what method of
procurement is specified.

Whenever an award is made to other than the lowest responsible
dollar offeror the reasons for doing so shall be set forth in writing
and maintained in the procurement file.

! Under Article 15-A of the New York Executive Law, an MBE is a business enterprise in which at least
fifty-one percent (51%) is owned, operated and controlled by citizens or permanent resident aliens who are
meeting the ethnic definitions listed below:

Black: Persons having origins from any of the Black African racial groups.

Hispanic: Persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Dominican, Cuban, Central or South American
descent of either Native American or Latin American origin, regardless of race.

Asian-Pacific: Persons having origins from the Far East, Southeast Asia or the Pacific Islands.
Asian-Indian Subcontinent: Persons having origins from the Indian subcontinent.

Native American or Alaskan Native: Persons having origins in any of the original peoples of
North America.

2 Under Article 15-A of the New York Executive Law, a WBE is a business enterprise in which at least
fifty-one percent (51%) is owned, operated and controlled by citizens or permanent resident aliens who are

women.

3

-114-



d. Whenever the specified number of quotations cannot or will not be
secured, the reasons for this shall be indicated in writing and
maintained in the procurement file.

C. Erie County Businesses and Minority & Women Owned Enterprises.

It is the preference of the Agency to provide opportunities for the purchase of
goods and services from (i) business enterprises located in Erie County and (i1) certified
MWBEs. To that end, the Agency will utilize available lists of MWBE firms certified by
Erie County and/or the State of New York and will solicit bids and proposals from such
businesses by notifying them of opportunities to submit proposals and bids for goods and

services.

Additionally, the Agency shall, from time to time, establish reasonable and
attainable MWBE utilization goals for the procurement of goods and services for direct
Agency use, to be based on a percentage of applicable Agency procurements.

The Agency shall, from time to time, also establish reasonable and attainable
MWBE goals when procuring certain professional services, as more particularly
described within the Agency’s “Professional Services RFP Process and Policy”, as
amended form time to time. In instances where the Agency solicits professional services
through a scored RFP or RFQ process the Agency shall, as part of the scoring index,
consider a respondent’s MWBE status, utilization, and/or the respondent’s policies,
practices and institutional commitments to advance and promote diversity and inclusion.

Such MWBE goals shall be reviewed and adjustéd from time to time in order to
advance the overall goals of the Agency.

D. Preferred Source Procurement

In accordance with Section 162(4) of State Finance Law, the Agency seeks to
purchase goods and services from veterans, not-for-profit organizations that serve and
employ people who are blind and severely handicapped, and from correctional industry

programs if they meet the Agency’s needs.
E. Effect on Other Procurement Requirements.

Where the procurement of a specific good or service is to be accomplished using
funds other than the funds of the Agency and such funding sources specify different or
more restrictive procurement requirements than are provided for in this Policy, the
procurement requirements of the funding source will supersede the requirements of this
Policy. Toward this end, the Agency will follow the procurement standards as set forth in
2 CFR Part 200 for any procurements utilizing federal funds unless otherwise superseded
by the specific federal award agreement.

-115-



F. Professional Services.

Contracts for professional services involve the application of specialized
expertise, the use of professional judgment, or a high degree of creativity. Professional
services include services which require special education and/or training, license to
practice or are creative in nature. Examples are: lawyers, doctors, accountants, and
engineers. Furthermore, professional service contracts often involve a relationship of
personal trust and confidence. Procurement of professional services below $20,000 is not
subject to the solicitation procedures contained in Section B(1) of this Policy.
Procurement of professional services greater than $20,000 is subject to the existing
“Professional Services RFP Process and Policy” as amended from time to time. Specific
professional services not otherwise identified within the “Professional Services RFP
Process and Policy” are hereby deemed to be so included, as appropriate.

G. Procurement of Insurance.

Procurement of ‘Insurance Brokeruge services is ~subjeet=to=this=Policy as a
professional service. Notwithstanding the foregoing actual insurance policies procured
are not subject to requirements of this Policy.

H. Procurement Lobbying Law.

In accordance with Chapter 1 of the Laws of 2005, generally referred to as the
“Procurement Lobbying Law”, the Agency shall implement the provision of such
Procurement Lobbying Law for any contract or other agreement for an article of
procurement involving an estimated annualized expenditure in excess of $15,000.

L Unintentional Failure to Comply.

The unintentional failure to comply with the provisions of Section 104-b of the
GML shall not be grounds to void action taken or give rise to a cause of action against the
Agency or any officer thereof.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above.

-116-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Professional Services RFP Process and Policy
Adopted and amended as of March 21, 2018

Purpose

The purpose of this document is to establish a consistent and comprehensive process for the
procurement of professional services in accordance with policies approved by the members
of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) and applicable laws and
regulations. Professional services covered by this policy include legal, audit, banking, and
insurance services'.

Professional Services RFP Process

1) RFP Development:
A Request for Proposal (RFP) for Professional Services will be drafted by ECIDA staff in

accordance with this approved Professional Services RFP Process and Policy, applicable laws
and regulations and best business practices. el

2) RFP Notice/Distribution:

If applicable, copies of the RFP will be distributed to at least the top ten firms located in Erie
County as listed in the most recent version of Business First’s annual “Book of Lists”. A
notice of the RFP will also be published in the Buffalo News and a minority-focused
publication. In addition, the notice of the RFP and/or a copy of the RFP may also be posted

on the ECIDA website.

3) Restricted Period:
The New York State Finance Law imposes certain restrictions on communication between

the ECIDA and a potential bidder during a procurement process, and requires that the ECIDA
designate an individual(s) who will act as an authorized contact(s) during each procurement
activity. Between the date of notice of intent to solicit proposals and the final award of the
contract, bidders may only contact and communicate with the individual(s) as so designated
within the applicable RFP procurement. When a bidder initiates contact with someone other
than the designated contact(s) during the RFP time period when such contact is not permitted
or attempts to influence the procurement in a manner that could reasonably be construed as a
violation of the impermissible contact standard of the State Finance Law, an impermissible
contact is deemed to have occurred. The ECIDA is required to collect and record
information of those who contact the ECIDA or another governmental entity to influence a
procurement. This information is incorporated into the procurement record and may result in
rejection of a contract award. In the event of two such impermissible contact findings being
made within a 4-year period, the bidder will be rendered ineligible to submit a proposal or to
be awarded any procurement contract for a period of four years from the date of the second

impermissible contact finding date.

4) Evaluation of Responses:

! Professional services purchased under various State and local grant programs are
excluded from the scope of this document as they generally have their own procurement

process and procedures.

-117-



An ECIDA staff committee will review and evaluate the RFP responses based on the criteria
outlined in the applicable RFP. For a short-list of firms, staff may contact the firms’
references and/or request that the firms make oral presentations.

The ECIDA staff committee will then report the results of its evaluations and a recommended
firm(s) to the appropriate Board Committee (i.e. Governance Committee for legal services,
Finance & Audit Committee for audit, banking and insurance services). The appropriate
Committee will then review and evaluate the staff's analysis and recommendation regarding
the preferred firm(s) and approve a recommended firm(s) for ultimate approval by the

members of the ECIDA.

The members of the ECIDA will review the recommendation as so submitted by the
appropriate committee regarding the recommended firm(s) before making a final decision on

the procurement.
Frequency of Solicitations

The following table outlines the maximum period that may elapse before new proposals are
to be solicited. The members of the ECIDA may elect to solicit proposals.at.any. time within

this maximum period.

Professional Service Maximum period before
proposals are solicited

Legal — Corporate & Tax Exempt Bond | Three (3) years plus two (2)
Counsel additional one (1) year
extensions  based  upon
satisfactory ~ performance,
said extensions to be granted
by approval of the
appropriate reviewing
committee as related to the
services provided

Insurance Broker ~ General Liability & | Three (3) years plus two (2)

Employee Benefits additional one (1) year
extensions  based  upon

satisfactory performance,
said extensions to be granted
by approval of the
appropriate reviewing
committee as related to the
services provided

Audit Three (3) years plus two (2)
additional one (1) year
extensions  based  upon
satisfactory performance,
said extensions to be granted
by  approval of the
appropriate reviewing
committee as related to the
services provided

-118-



Banking Three (3) years plus two (2)
additional one (1) year
extensions  based  upon
satisfactory performance,
said extensions to be granted
by approval of the
appropriate reviewing
committee as related to the
services provided

Other procurements subject to competitive | Three (3) years plus two (2)
bidding requirements additional one (1) year
extensions  based  upon
satisfactory performance,
said extensions to be granted
by approval of the
appropriate reviewing
committee as related to the
services provided

T L PTG RO T SR B AT TR AT T

Annual Review Process

On an annual basis ECIDA staff will evaluate all its professional service providers. In
conducting their review, staff will consider: quality of service, responsiveness, significant
changes in assigned professionals, and other similar factors. If staff has any concerns or
issues with any provider, the provider will be notified and allowed three months to correct
these deficiencies. If these concerns or issues have not been adequately addressed after the
three month period, staff will notify the appropriate committee as related to the services
being provided, of its intention to conduct a request for proposal solicitation.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in accordance with Section 104-b
of the New York General Municipal Law, goods and services must be procured in a manner

SO as:

1) to assure the prudent and economical use of public money in the best interests of

taxpayers.
2) to facilitate the acquisition of goods and services of maximum quality at the lowest

possible cost under the circumstances and
3) to guard against favoritism, improvidence, extravagance, fraud and corruption.

Therefore, notwithstanding the fact that a professional service provider may have
previously received a favorable annual review(s), the ECIDA may nonetheless issue an
RFP for Professional Services prior to the maximum period noted in the above

“Frequency of Solicitations” section.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-119-



Property Disposition Guidelines
of the
Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA?”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”) and each ECIDA
Affiliate (as defined herein) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) are
required by Section 2896 of the Public Authorities Law to adopt by _resolution
comprehensive guidelines regarding the use, awarding, monitoring and reporting of
contracts for the disposal of Property (as defined herein). The following guidelines
(“Guidelines™) are adopted upon approval by the respective Boards or Members of each
corporation pursuant to such requirement and are applicable with respect to the use,
awarding, monitoring and reporting of all Property Disposition Contracts which are
entered into by the Agency.

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1. “Contracting Officer” shall mean an officer or employee of ECIDA
appointed by resolution of the Board of Directors or Members of the ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate to be responsible for the disposition of Property of ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate.

2. “Dispose” or “disposal” or “disposition” shall mean the transfer of title or
any other beneficial interest in Property from ECIDA or an ECIDA Affiliate to any
unrelated third party.

3. “ECIDA Affiliate” shall mean the following organizations:
) Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation;

(i) Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation;

(i)  such other affiliated entities of ECIDA as may hereafter be

established by ECIDA and which are determined to be subject to
the requirements of Section 2896 of the Public Authorities Law.

-120-



4. “Property” shall mean personal property in excess of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000.00) in value, real property, or any other legally transferable interest in
such property, to the extent that such interest may by conveyed to another person for any
purpose, excluding an interest securing a loan or other financial obligation of another

party.

5. “Property Disposition Contracts” shall mean written agreements for the
sale, lease, transfer or other disposition of Property from ECIDA or an ECIDA Affiliate

to any unrelated third party.

6. “Real Property” shall mean real property and interests therein.

ARTICLE II
APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF CONTRACTING OFFICER

—

A. Appointment

The Contracting Officer shall be an officer or employee of ECIDA appointed by
the Board of Directors or Members of the ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate who is
responsible for the supervision and direction over the custody, control and disposition of
Property and responsible for ECIDA’s compliance with and enforcement of these
Guidelines. The Contracting Officer is the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer of ECIDA.

B. Duties
The duties of the Contracting Officer shall include the following:

1. Maintaining adequate inventory controls and accountability systems for all
Property under the control of ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate.

2. Periodically conducting an inventory of Property to determine which
Property may be disposed of.

3. Preparing an annual written report of all Property of ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate. Each report shall include a list of all Real Property, a full description of
all real and personal property disposed of during the reporting period, the price received
and the name of the purchaser for all Property sold during each reporting period. Each
report shall be completed and delivered to the New York State Comptroller, the Director
of the Budget, the Commissioner of General Services and the New York State Legislature
no later than ninety (90) days following the completion of the fiscal year of ECIDA and

each ECIDA Affiliate.

4. Disposing of Property as promptly as possible in accordance with these
Guidelines, as directed by ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate.

-121-



ARTICLE 111
PROPERTY DISPOSITION REQUIREMENTS

A, Method of Disposition

Subject to such exceptions and/or requirements set forth in these Guidelines, in the
event that ECIDA or an ECIDA Affiliate determines to dispose of any of its Property,
ECIDA or the ECIDA Affiliate (as applicable) shall endeavor to dispose of such Property
for at least the fair market value of the Property. The disposition of Property may be
made by sale, exchange, or transfer, for cash, credit or other Property, with or without
warranty, and upon such terms and conditions as are determined by ECIDA or the
applicable ECIDA Affiliate to be appropriate and reasonable and consistent with these
Guidelines. Provided, however, no disposition of real property shall be made unless an
appraisal of the value of such property has been made by an independent appraiser and
included in the record of the transaction.

DI S O IR T e IR iR

B. Award and Approval of Property Disposition Contracts

1. Compliance with Guidelines: Approval Requirements. All dispositions of
Property shall be conducted in accordance with these Guidelines by or under the
supervision of the Contracting Officer, subject to approval of the Board of Directors or
Members of the ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate where appropriate.

2. Disposition by Public Bid.

(@  All Property Disposition Contracts may be made only after
publicly advertising for bids, unless the criteria set forth in Article III(B)(3) below has
been satisfied for such contracts to be made by negotiation or public auction.

(b)  Whenever public advertising for bids is required, (i) the
advertisement for bids shall be made at such time prior to the disposal or contract,
through such methods, and on such terms and conditions, as shall permit full and free
competition consistent with the value and nature of the Property; (ii) all bids shall be
publicly disclosed at the time and place stated in the advertisement; and (iii) the award
shall be made with reasonable promptness by notice to the responsible bidder whose bid,
conforming to the invitation for bids, will be most advantageous to ECIDA, the
applicable ECIDA Affiliate and New York State, price and other factors considered.

(©0  Any public bid for the disposition of Property may be rejected,
refused, or declined by ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate on any basis or ground
allowable at law.

-122-



3. Disposition by Negotiated Sale/Public Auction. The following dispositions are
exempt and excepted from the public bidding requirements set forth above in Article
III(B)(2) and may be consummated through a negotiated sale or by public auction:

(a) Circumstances permitted for below FMV Disposition. The
circumstances that would permit a below FMV disposition as set forth in Article
III(B)(5)(a)(i),(ii) and (iii) below regardless of whether the disposition is above, at or
below FMV.,

(b)  Disposition of Certain Personal Property. ECIDA and each

ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of personal property where such personal property

involved has qualities separate from the utilitarian purpose of such property, such as

artistic quality, antiquity, historical significance, rarity or other quality of similar effect,

that would tend to increase its value, or if the personal property is to be sold in such

quantity that, if it were to be disposed of through public advertisement and bidding,
. would adversely affect the state or local market for such personal property.

(©) Disposition of Low FMV Property. ECIDA and each ECIDA
Affiliate may dispose of Property the fair market value of which does not exceed Fifteen
Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00).

(d)  Disposition Following Receipt of Unacceptable Bid Prices.
ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of Property where the bid prices
received by ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate after public advertising are not
commercially reasonable (either as to all or some part of the Property) as determined by
ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate in its sole discretion.

(e) Disposition to a Political Subdivision. ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of Property to New York State or any political subdivision
of New York State.

§3) Disposition Authorized by Law. ECIDA and each ECIDA
Affiliate may dispose of Property where such disposition is otherwise authorized by law.

4, Reporting Requirements Regarding Negotiated Dispositions.

(a) Preparation of Written Statements. The Contracting Officer shall
prepare a written statement explaining the circumstances of each negotiated disposition
of Property involving any of the following:

@) the negotiated disposition of personal property which has
an estimated fair market value in excess of Fifteen
Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00);

-123-



(ii)  the negotiated disposition of Real Property that has an
estimated fair market value in excess of One Hundred

Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00);

(iii)  the negotiated disposition of Real Property that will be
disposed of by lease if the estimated annual rent over the
term of the lease is in excess of $15,000; or

(iv)  the negotiated disposition of Real Property or real and
related personal property where the same will be disposed
of by exchange, regardless of value, or any Property any
part of the consideration for which is Real Property.

(b)  Submission of Written Statements. Written statements prepared
pursuant to Article III(B)(4) shall be submitted to the New York State Comptroller, the
Director of the Budget, the Commissioner of General Services_ and the State Leglslature
no Iater than ninety (90) days prior to the date on which the &1spos1t10n “of Property is
expected to take place. The Contracting Officer shall maintain a copy of all written
statements at ECIDA’s principal office.

5. Below Fair Market Value Dispositions.

(a) ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of Property for less than
the fair market value of the Property where:

) Transferee is a government or public entity and terms of
transfer require ownership and use to remain with the
government or public entity; or

(ii)  Purpose of transfer is within the purpose, mission or statue
of the ECIDA or each applicable ECIDA Affiliate; or

(i)  Written notification to the Governor, Speaker, and
Temporary President. Such notification is subject to denial.
Denial by Governor is in the form of a certification. Denial
by the legislature is in the form of a resolution. Denial
must be made within 60 days of receiving notification
during January through June. Provided no denial, then
authority may effectuate transfer. If legislature receives the
notification in July through December, then legislature may
take 60 days from January 1 of the following year.
However, a local may obtain local approval from the chief
executive and legislature of the political subdivision in lieu
of the notification to the Governor, Speaker and Temporary
President provided the local authority’s enabling legislation

-124-



provides for such approval and the property was obtained
by the authority from the political subdivision.

(b) Board and Public Notice. If a below FMV transfer is proposed, the
following information is required to be provided to the ECIDA board or each
applicable ECIDA Affiliate’s board and to the public:

(1) Description of Asset;

(2) Appraisal of the FMV of the asset:

(3) Description of the purpose of the transfer, the kind and amount
of the benefit to the public resulting from the transfer such as jobs and wages
created or preserved;

(4) Value received compared to FMV;

(5) Names of private parties to the transaction and value received,

(6) Names of private parties that have made an offer, the value of

(c) Board Determination. The board of the ECIDA or applicable ECIDA
Affiliate must make a written determination that there is no reasonable alternative
to the proposed below-market transfer that would achieve the same purpose of
such transfer.

ARTICLE IV
GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Annual Review and Submission of Guidelines

These Guidelines shall be annually reviewed and approved by the Board of
Directors or Members of the ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate. On or before the 31%
day of March of each year, the Contracting Officer shall file (for itself and on behalf of
each ECIDA Affiliate) a copy of the most recently reviewed and adopted Guidelines with
the New York State Comptroller, and shall post the Guidelines on ECIDA’s website.
Guidelines posted on ECIDA’s website shall be maintained at least until the Guidelines
for the following year are posted on ECIDA’s website.

B. Effect of Awarded Contracts

These Guidelines are intended for the guidance of the officers, members, directors
and employees of ECIDA and the ECIDA Affiliates only. Nothing contained herein is
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation any right,
remedy, claim or benefit under, or by reason of, any requirement or provision hereof, or
be deemed to alter, affect the validity of, modify the terms of or impair any contract or
agreement made or entered into in violation of, or without compliance with, these
Guidelines. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, any deed, bill of

-125-



sale, lease, or other instrument executed by or on behalf of ECIDA or an ECIDA
Affiliate, purporting to transfer title or any other interest in Property shall be conclusive
evidence of compliance with these Guidelines insofar as concerns title or other interest of
any bona fide grantee or transferee who has given valuable consideration for such title or
other interest and has not received actual or constructive notice of lack of compliance

with these Guidelines prior to the closing.

C. Exemption for Certain ECIDA Transactions

These Guidelines shall not be applicable to any agreements or arrangements
involving the provision by ECIDA of “financial assistance” as such term is defined in
Section 854(14) of the New York General Municipal Law (i.e. property dispositions
serving solely as a conduit for providing financial assistance).

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above. o R ==

-126-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

Real Property Acquisition Policy

Section 2824(1)(e) of the Public Authorities Law requires local authorities to adopt a
written policy governing the acquisition of real property. The following policy ("Policy") is
hereby adopted upon approval by the respective Boards of Directors or Members of each
corporation pursuant to such requirement and shall be applicable with respect to the acquisition
of real property and any interests therein ("Real Property") by the Erie County Industrial
Development Agency ("ECIDA") and its affiliates: Buffalo and Erie County Regional . -
Development Corporation (“RDC”); Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”); and such other affiliates as may hereafter be established by the ECIDA
and which are determined to be subject to the requirements of Section 2824(1)(e) of the Public
Authorities Law (an "ECIDA Affiliate") (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency™).

A. Acquisition of Real Property

Real Property may be acquired by the Agency for use, development, resale, leasing or
other uses designated by the Agency. The Agency may lease Real Property for use, subleasing or
other uses designated by the Agency.

The purpose of each acquisition of Real Property by the Agency shall be to further one or
more purposes of the Agency as authorized under the Agency’s enabling legislation, certificate
of incorporation, by-laws or a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors or Members of the
Agency, or for a purpose otherwise permitted under applicable state law.

Prior to each acquisition of Real Property, the Agency will conduct such due diligence as
it deems appropriate in accordance with the particular circumstances of the proposed acquisition.
Such due diligence may include, but is not limited to, Real Property appraisals and review and
investigation of environmental, structural, title, pricing and other applicable matters.

B. Approval of Real Property Acguisitions

All acquisitions of Real Property shall be conducted in accordance with this Policy and
applicable law. Proposed acquisitions of Real Property shall be presented to the Board of
Directors of the Agency for approval or other appropriate action.

-127-



C. Exemption for Certain ECIDA Transactions

This Policy shall not be applicable to any agreements or arrangements involving the
provision by ECIDA of "financial assistance" as such term is defined in Section 854(14) of the
New York General Municipal Law.

D. Amendment of Policy

This Policy may be amended or modified at any time by the Board of Directors of the
Agency.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-128-



New York Sexual Harassment Policy

I Introduction

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is committed to maintaining a workplace free
from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is a form of workplace discrimination. All employees are
required to work in a manner that prevents sexual harassment in the workplace. This policy is one
component of the Agency’s commitment to a harassment-free and discrimination-free work environment.

Sexual harassment is against the law! and all employees have a legal right to a workplace free from sexual
harassment. Employees are urged to report sexual harassment by filing a complaint internally with the
ECIDA, with a government agency, or in court under federal, state or local antidiscrimination laws.

il. Policy
This sexual harassment policy has several components:

* Application. This policy applies to all employees, applicants for employment, interns (paid or
unpaid), non-employees? and persons conducting business, regardless of immigration status, with
the ECIDA. In the remainder of this policy, the term “employees” refers to this collective group.

e Sexual Harassment Prohibited. Sexual harassment is prohibited. Sexual harassment is a form of
employee misconduct and will not be tolerated. Any employee or other individual covered by this
policy who engages in sexual harassment or retaliation will be subject to remedial and/or
disciplinary action up to and including termination of their employment.

* Retaliation Prohibited. The Agency will not take an adverse employment action against any
person covered by this policy who reports an incident of sexual harassment, provides information
about an incident of sexual harassment, or otherwise assists in an investigation of a sexual
harassment complaint. The Agency will not tolerate such retaliation against anyone who, in good
faith, reports or provides information about suspected sexual harassment. Any employee of the
Agency who retaliates against anyone involved in a sexual harassment investigation will be
subjected to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. All employees, paid or unpaid
interns, or non-employees working in the workplace who believe they have been subject to such
retaliation should inform a supervisor, manager, or Mollie Profic, CFO/Human Resources Officer.
All employees, paid or unpaid interns or non-employees who believe they have been a target of
such retaliation may also seek relief in other available forums, as explained below in the section
on Legal Protections.

» Individual Liability for Sexual Harassment. Sexual harassment is offensive, is a violation of Agency

policy, is unlawful, and may subject the Agency to liability for harm to targets of sexual

! while this policy specifically addresses sexual harassment, harassment because of and discrimination against persons of all
protected classes is prohibited. In New York State, such classes include age, race, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation,
military status, sex, disability, marital status, domestic violence victim status, gender identity or expression, familial status,
predisposing genetic characteristics, and criminal history.

2 A non-employee is someone who is (or is employed by) a contractor, subcontractor, vendor, consultant, or anyone providing
services in the workplace. Protected non-employees include persons commonly referred to as independent contractors, “gig”
workers and temporary workers. Also included are persons providing equipment repair, cleaning services or any other services
provided pursuant to a contract with the employer.

-129-



harassment. Sexual harassers may also be individually subject to liability. Employees of every level
who engage in sexual harassment, including managers and supervisors who engage in sexual
harassment or who allow such behavior to continue, will be penalized for such misconduct.

* Investigation. The Agency will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation that ensures due
process for all parties, whenever management receives a complaint about sexual harassment or
otherwise knows of possible sexual harassment occurring. The Agency will keep the investigation
confidential to the extent possible. Effective corrective action will be taken whenever sexual
harassment is found to have occurred. All employees, including managers and supervisors, are
required to cooperate with any investigation of sexual harassment.

* Reporting for Bystanders. All employees, as well as any other individuals covered by this policy,
are encouraged to report any behavior or conduct that violates this policy. The Agency will provide
all employees a complaint form to report harassment and file complaints.

* Reporting for Managers and Supervisors. Managers and supervisors are required to report any
sexual harassment complaint that they receive or any sexual harassment that they observe or
become aware of to Mollie Profic, CFO/Human Resources Officer.

1. Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and (where
applicable) local law. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual orientation, self-
identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity and the status of being transgender.

Sexual harassment is unlawful when it subjects an individual to inferior terms, conditions, or privileges of
employment. Harassment need not be severe or pervasive to be unlawful, and can be any harassing
conduct that consists of more than petty slights or trivial inconveniences. Sexual harassment includes
unwelcome conduct which is either of a sexual nature or which is directed at an individual because of that

individual’s sex when:

e Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment, even if the
reporting individual is not the intended target of the sexual harassment;

® Such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment; or

* Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting
an individual’s employment.

A sexually harassing hostile work environment includes, but is not limited to, words, signs, jokes, pranks,
intimidation, or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are directed at an individual
because of that individual’s sex. Sexual harassment also consists of any unwanted verbal or physical
advances, sexually explicit derogatory statements, or sexually discriminatory remarks made by someone
which are offensive or objectionable to the recipient, which cause the recipient discomfort or humiliation,
or which interfere with the recipient’s job performance.

Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for sexual favors. This
can include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other terms, conditions or privileges of
employment. This is also called in legal terms “quid pro quo” harassment.

Any employee who feels harassed should report so that any violation of this policy can be corrected
promptly. Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be addressed under this policy.

2

-130-



Examples of sexual harassment:

Although is not possible to identify every act that constitutes sexual harassment, the following describes
some types of acts that may be unlawful sexual harassment and that are strictly prohibited:

e Physical acts of a sexual nature, such as:

o touching, pinching, patting, kissing, hugging, grabbing, brushing against another
employee’s body or poking another employees’ body;

o rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults.

e Unwanted sexual advances or propositions, such as: .

o requests for sexual favors accompanied by implied or overt threats concerning the
target’s job performance evaluation, a promotion, or other job benefits or detriments;

o subtle or obvious pressure for unwelcome sexual activities.

® Sexually oriented gestures, noises, remarks, or jokes, or comments about a person’s sexuality or
sexual experience which create a hostile work environment.

* Sex stereotyping occurs when conduct or personality traits are considered inappropriate simply
because they may not conform to other peopie's ideas or perceptions about how individuais of a
particular sex should act or look.

s Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace, such as:

o Displaying emails, pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, obje¢ts, promotional material,
reading materials or other materials that are sexually demeaning or pornographic (this
includes such sexual displays on workplace computers or cell phones and sharing these
displays while in the workplace).

* Hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual’s sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity and the status of being transgender, such as:

o Interfering with, destroying or damaging a person’s workstation, tools or equipment, or
otherwise interfering with the individual’s ability to perform the job;

o Sabotaging an individual’s work;

o Bullying, yelling, name-calling.

Who can be a target of sexual harassment?

Sexual harassment can occur between any individuals, regardless of their sex or gender. New York Law
protects employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees, including independent contractors, and
those employed by companies contracting to provide services in the workplace. Harassers can be a
superior, a subordinate, a coworker or anyone in the workplace including an independent contractor,
contract worker, vendor, client, customer or visitor.

Where can sexual harassment occur?

Unlawful sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. It can occur while employees
are traveling for business or at employer sponsored events or parties. Calls, texts, emails, and social
media usage by employees can constitute unlawful workplace harassment, even if they occur away from
the workplace premises, on personal devices or during non-work hours.

-131-



IV. . Retaliation

Unlawful retaliation can be any action that could discourage a worker from coming forward to make or
support a sexual harassment claim. Adverse action need not be job-related or occur in the workplace to
constitute unlawful retaliation (e.g., threats of physical violence outside of work hours).

Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. The New York State
Human Rights Law protects any individual who has engaged in “protected activity,” which occurs when

an individual has:

¢ made a complaint of sexual harassment either internally with the ECIDA or externally with any
anti-discrimination agency;

¢ testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual harassment under the Human Rights Law or
other anti-discrimination law;

* opposed sexual harassment by making a verbal or informal complaint to management or by
simply informing a supervisor or manager of harassment;

» reported that another emnloyee has been sexually harassed;-or— o .

e encouraged a fellow employee to report harassment.

Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the individual is
protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the practices were unlawful. However,
the retaliation provision is not intended to protect persons making intentionally false charges of
harassment.

V. Reporting Sexual Harassment

Preventing sexual harassment is everyone’s responsibility. The ECIDA cannot prevent or remedy sexual
harassment unless it knows about it. Any employee, paid or unpaid intern or non-employee who has been
subjected to behavior that may constitute sexual harassment is encouraged to report such behavior to a
supervisor, manager or human resources. In addition, anyone who witnesses or becomes aware of
potential instances of sexual harassment should report such behavior to a supervisor, manager, or human

resources.

Reports of sexual harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A form for submission of a written
complaint is attached to this Policy, and all employees are encouraged to use this complaint form.
Employees who are reporting sexual harassment on behalf of other employees should use the complaint
form and note that it is on another employee’s behalf.

VI. Supervisory Responsibilities

All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected sexual harassment,
observe what may be sexually harassing behavior or for any reason suspect that sexual harassment is
occurring, are required to report such suspected sexual harassment to human resources.

Supervisors and managers who knowingly allow sexual harassment to occur and fail to report the sexual
harassment to human resources will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of

their employment.

-132-



In addition to being subject to discipline if they engaged in sexually harassing conduct themselves,
supervisors and managers will be subject to discipline for failing to report suspected sexual harassment
or otherwise knowingly allowing sexual harassment to continue.

Supervisors and managers will also be subject to discipline for engaging in any retaliation.
Vii. Complaint and Investigation of Sexual Harassment

All complaints or information about sexual harassment will be investigated, whether that information was
reported in verbal or written form. Investigations will be conducted in a timely manner and will be kept
confidential to the extent possible.

An investigation of any complaint, information or knowledge of suspected sexual harassment will be
prompt and thorough, commenced immediately and completed as soon as possible. All persons involved,
including complainants, witnesses and alleged harassers will be accorded due process, as outlined below,
to protect their rights to a fair and impartial investigation. .

Any employee may be required to cooperate as needed in ahﬂvinvestigation of gﬁSpected sexual
harassment. The ECIDA will not tolerate retaliation against employees who file complaints, support
another’s complaint or participate in an investigation regarding a violation of this policy.

While the process may vary from case to case, investigations will generally be conducted in accordance
with the following steps:

® Upon receipt of a complaint, the ECIDA will conduct an immediate review of the allegation(s)
and take any interim actions (e.g., instructing the respondent to refrain from communications
with the complainant) as appropriate. If the complaint is verbal, the ECIDA will encourage the
individual to complete the “Complaint Form” in writing. If he or she refuses, the ECIDA will
prepare a Complaint Form based on the verbal reporting.

Obtain and preserve documents relevant to the allegation(s).

® Request and review all documents relevant to the allegation(s) including all electronic
communications.

e Interview all parties involved, including any relevant witnesses.

o Create a written document of the investigation (such as a letter, memorandum or email) which
contains the following:

o Alist of all documents reviewed, along with a detailed summary of relevant documents;

A list of names of those interviewed, along with a detailed summary of their statements;

A timeline of events;

A summary of prior relevant incidents, reported or unreported; and

The basis for the decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with any

corrective action(s).

e Retain the written documentation and associated documents in a secure and confidential
location.

e Promptly notify the individual who reported and the individual(s) about whom the complaint
was made of the final determination and implement any corrective actions identified in the
written document.

¢ Inform the individual who reported the right to file a complaint or charge externally as discussed
in the next section of this policy.

0O 0 00

-133-



VIlIl.  Legal Protections and External Remedies

Sexual harassment is not only prohibited by the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) but
also by federal, state, and, where applicable, local law. In addition to the Agency’s internal process,
employees may choose to pursue legal remedies with the following governmental agencies While a
private attorney is not required to file a complaint with a governmental agency, you may seek the legal
advice of an attorney.

In addition to those outlined below, employees in certain industries may have additional legal protections.
A. Civil Rights Act of 1964

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces federal anti-
discrimination laws, including Title Vil of the 1964 federal Civil Rights Act (codified as 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et
seq.). An individual can file a complaint with the EEOC anytime within 300 days of the harassment. There
is no cost to file a complaint with the EEOC. The EEOC will investigate the complaint and determine
whether there is reasonable cause to believe that discrimination has occurred, at which point the EEOC
will issue a “right to sue” letter permitting the employee to file a complaint in federal court.

The EEOC does not hold hearings or award relief, but may take other action including pursuing cases in
federal court on behalf of complaining parties. Federal courts may award remedies if discrimination is
found to have occurred. in general, private employers must have at least 15 employees to come within
the jurisdiction of the EEOC.

If an employee believes that they have been discriminated against at work, they can file a “charge of
discrimination” with the EEOC. The EEOC has district, area, and field offices where complaints can be filed.
Contact the EEOC by phone (1-800-669-4000) or email (info@eeoc.gov). The EEOC’s website is
WWW.Ee0C.gov.

B. New York State Human Rights Law (HRL)

The Human Rights Law (HRL), codified as N.Y. Executive Law, art. 15, § 290 et seq., applies to all employers
in New York State with regard to sexual harassment, and protects employees, interns (paid or unpaid),
and non-employees, regardless of immigration status. A complaint alleging violation of the HRL may be
filed either with the Division of Human Rights (DHR) or in New York State Supreme Court.

Complaints with the DHR may be filed any time within three years of the harassment. If an individual did
not file at the DHR, they can sue directly in state court under the HRL within three years of the alleged
harassment. An individual may not file with the DHR if they have already filed a HRL complaint in state
court. If an individual filed an administrative complaint with the NYSDHR, the NYSDHR will file the
complaint with the EEOC to preserve the right to proceed in federal court.

Complaining internally to the ECIDA does not extend your time to file with the DHR or in court. The three
years is counted from the date of the most recent sexual harassment incident.

You do not need an attorney to file a complaint with the DHR and there is no cost to file with the DHR.

-134-



The DHR will investigate your complaint and determine whether there is probable cause to believe that
sexual harassment has occurred. Probable cause cases are forwarded to a public hearing before an
administrative law judge. If sexual harassment is found after a hearing, the DHR has the power to award
relief, which varies but may include requiring your employer to take action to stop the harassment, or
redress the damage caused, including paying of monetary damages, attorney’s fees and civil fines.

The DHR'’s main office is at One Fordham Plaza, Fourth Floor, Bronx, New York 10458. You can also contact
the NYSDHR by phone (1-888-392-3644) or email (info@dhr.ny.gov). The NYSDHR’s website is
dhr.ny.gov/complaint. The website has a complaint form that can be downloaded, filled out, notarized
and mailed to the NYSDHR. The website also contains contact information for the NYSDHR’s regional

offices.
C. Local Protections

Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment and discrimination. An
individual should contact the county, city or town in which they live to find out if such a law exists. For
example, emplovees whe work in New York City may file complaints of sexual harassment with the New
York City Commission on Human Rights. Contact their main office at Law Enforcement Bureau of the NYC
Commission on Human Rights, 22 Reade Street, 1st Fioor, New York, New York; call 311 or (212) 306-7450;

or visit www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml,

D. Contact the Local Police Department

If the harassment involves unwanted physical touching, coerced physical confinement or coerced sex acts,
the conduct may constitute a crime. Contact the local police department.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-135-



Complaint Form for Reporting Sexual Harassment
ECIDA

New York State Labor Law requires all employers to adopt a sexual harassment prevention policy that
includes a complaint form for employees to report alleged incidents of sexual harassment.

If you believe that you have been subjected to sexual harassment, you are encouraged to complete this
form and submit it to Mollie Profic, CFO/Human Resources Officer, or John Cappellino, President via email
or paper. You will not be retaliated against for filing a complaint.

If you are more comfortable reporting verbally or in another manner, your employer should complete this
form, provide you with a copy and follow its sexual harassment prevention policy by investigating the
claims as outlined at the end of this form.

For additional resources, visit: ny.gov/programs/combating-sexual-harassment-workplace
Complainant Information
Name:
Home Address:
Work Address:
Home Phone:
Work Phone:
Job Title:
Email:
Select Preferred Communication Method:

Supervisor Information
Immediate Supervisor’'s Name:
Title:

Work Phone:

Work Address:

COMPLAINT INFORMATION
1. Your complaint of Sexual Harassment is made about:
Name:
Title:
Work Address:
Work Phone:
Relationship to you: [[Supervisor; Subordinate; Co-Worker; Other]]

-136-



2. Please describe what happened and how it is affecting you and your work. Please use
additional sheets of paper if necessary and attach any relevant documents or evidence.

3. Date(s) sexual harassment occurred:
Is the sexual harassment continuing? [[Yes/No]]

4. Please list the name and contact information of any witnesses or individuals that may have
information related to your complaint:

* The last question is optional, but may help the investigation.* _______

5. Have you previously complained or provided information (verbal or written) about related

incidents? If yes, when and to whom did you complain or provide information?

If you have retained legal counsel and would like us to work with them, please provide their contact
information.

I request that the ECIDA investigate this complaint of sexual harassment in a timely and
confidential manner as outlined below and advise me of the results of the investigation.

Signature:

Date:

I have received the New York State Sexual Harassment Policy and Complaint Form

Employee Name (Printed)

Employee Name (Signature)

Date:

-137-



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
STATEMENT OF
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ARTICLE 1
Purpose

The purpose of this Statement is to set forth the standards of conduct and responsibilities
of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) Board of Directors in
furtherance of efficient operations so as to promote and assist economic development in the
County of Erie and fulfill the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the General Municipal Law.

ARTICLE 11
Role and Expectations

It is the responsibility of Board members to execute direct oversight of the Agency’s
Executive Director and other senior management in the effective and ethical management of the
Agency. Board members are expected to understand, review and monitor the implementation of
fundamental financial and management controls and operational decisions of the Agency. In
executing their role, Board members shall adhere to the fiduciary duties of care and loyalty

which they owe to the Agency.

A. Duty of Care. A Board member must perform his or her duties, including those
duties as a member of any committee of the Board upon which he or she may serve,
in good faith and with that degree of care which an ordinarily prudent person in a like
position would use under similar circumstances.

B. Duty of Loyalty. Board members are bound by their duty of undivided and
unqualified loyalty to the Agency, a duty which encompasses good faith efforts to
insure that their personal profit is not at the expense of the Agency.

C. Board members may exercise and fulfill these duties by:

1. understanding the Agency’s role in the economic development community;

2. regularly attending and constructively participating in meetings of the Board
and related committees;

3. reviewing and understanding the materials provided in advance of meetings and
any other materials provided to the Board from time to time;

4. informing oneself prior to making decisions by utilizing material information
reasonably available; and

-138-



5. remaining reasonably accessible to the senior management on specific issues
which may not require the attention of the entire Board but where
an individual Board member’s insights may be helpful.

. Fiduciary Duty. In conformance with Section 2824(h) of the New York Public

Authorities Law, at or about the time that each Board member is appointed to or
otherwise becomes a member of the Agency, he or she must execute an
Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties and Responsibilities in the form prescribed by
the New York State Authorities Budget Office, unless otherwise required, in which
the board member acknowledges that he or she understands his or her role and
fiduciary responsibilities and acknowledges that he or she understands his or her duty
of loyalty and care to the Agency and commitment to the Agency’s mission and the

public interest.

ARTICLE 111
Board Member Conduct

. Conflicts of Interest. Board members are required to conduct themselves in

compliance with the conflict of interest requirements imposed upon members of
industrial development agencies under Article 18 of the General Municipal Law and

the requirements of the Agency’s Code of Ethics.

. Personal Loans. Board members must refrain from accepting or approving any

personal loan from the Agency.

. Decorum. Board members must not engage in conduct or make any public statement

likely to prejudice the functions of the Agency or harm, defame or otherwise bring
discredit upon the Agency.

ARTICLE IV
Required Filings

Board members are required by New York Public Authorities Law Section 2825 to file

annual financial disclosure statements with the Erie County Board of Ethics. A completed
financial disclosure form covering the immediately preceding calendar year must be submitted to
the Erie County Board of Ethics on or before May 15 of each year.

ARTICLE V
Training

A. All Board members appointed on or after January 13, 2006 must participate in State-

approved training within one year of appointment.

» =139-



B. All Board members must participate in continuing training as may be required to
remain informed of best practices, regulatory and statutory changes relating to the
effective oversight of the management and financial activities of public authorities
and to adhere to the highest standards of responsible governance.

ARTICLE VI
Agency Affiliates

This Statement of Duties and Responsibilities shall also be applicable to the Boards of the
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”), and Buffalo and Erie
County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”) upon approval by the respective
Boards of each corporation.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-140-



Statement of the Competencies and Personal Attributes
Required of Board Members

Background:

Under Article IV(A)(i1) of the Governance Committee Charter, the Governance Committee is required to
"Develop a statement of the competencies and personal attributes required of Board members to assist
those authorized to appoint members to the Board in identifying qualified individuals (it being
acknowledged that membership in the Agency is determined pursuant to Section 891-a of the General

Municipal Law).”

Under Section 891-a of the General Municipal Law, 14 of the 19 members of the ECIDA are
automatically Board members by virtue of their election or appointment to various positions within the
community. Therefore this statement only applies to the five members of the ECIDA who are jointly
appointed by the Erie County Executive and the Chair of the Erie County Legislature.

Mandatory Attribute:

Under Section 891-a of the General Municipal Law, the five jointly-appointed members of the ECIDA
must represent the "business, labor and minority communities of Erie County"

Desirable Attributes:

The following attributes are not required, but would be considered desirable:

e Experience starting or operating businesses

» Experience working with minority or women-owned firms

» Experience with economic development organizations

* Regional planning or International experience

¢ Lending or real estate experience

» College/University or Medical Industry experience

¢ Leadership or management experience

o Experience serving on other related Boards and Committees

e Financial or legal experience

Personal Attributes of Board Members

All board members should possess the following personal attributes:

o overall interest and enthusiasm in serving on the board
» level of integrity and lack of a conflict of interest
o time availability

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-141-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES, MEALS AND ENTERTAINMENT POLICY
Objective: -
The purpose of this Travel, Conferences, Meals and Entertainment Policy (Policy) is to outline the
policies and procedures the Erie County Industrial Development Agency and its affiliates will follow
with respect to these and other related expenditures in accordance with Section 2824 of the Public

Authorities Accountability Act of 2005.

Applicability:
This policy shall apply to the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”) and its affiliated
corporations: Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”), Buffalo and Erie

County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”), and any other affiliated entities that may

be established by the ECIDA (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) upon approval by
the respective Boards of Directors and Members of the Agency. This policy shall apply to every
director, member, officer and employee of the Agency.

General Guidelines:
It is the Agency’s general policy to pay reasonable and necessary travel, conferences, meals and

entertainment expenses incurred as a result of official business subject to the presentation of
appropriate documentation.

Any exceptions or potential exceptions to this Policy must be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”; or in the case of the CEO to the Board Chair") for approval.

Section 1: Travel

1.1 Approval of Travel:
Travel involving overnight accommodation or travel outside of Western New York and Southern

Ontario requires the approval of the CEO (or the Board Chair in the case of the CEO).

1.2 Personal Travel:
Personal Travel is not reimbursable. This exclusion applies to personal travel which interrupts

official travel, or precedes or follows a business trip.

Personal expenses are not reimbursable even when incurred while on an Agency trip. Examples of
such excluded expenses are pet care, house, or child-care expenses and purchase or repair of personal

luggage.

VIf the Board Chair benefited from the expenditure then the Audit Committee Chair will approve the exception. If
both the Board Chair and Audit Committee Chair benefited from the expenditure then the full Board of the Agency

must approve the exception.

-142-



1.3 Reimbursable Travel Expenses:
Where practical, employees should perform appropriate due diligence to obtain the lowest reasonable

costs for travel expenses.

Transportation expenses shall be reimbursed based on an economical mode of transportation and the
most commonly traveled route consistent with the authorized purpose of the trip.

Transportation tickets should be procured in advance in order to obtain any discounts offered by the
carrier. Every reasonable effort should be made to cancel reservations on a timely basis to avoid no-
show or late cancellation charges.

A. Automobile Travel

@

(i)

(iii)

Personal Vehicle. Travelers may use their personal vehicle for business purposes if it
is less expensive than renting a car, taking a taxi, or using alternative transportation, or
if it saves time.

In most circumstances, miieage shail be compuied 4§ thé disiance traveled to the
business destination. Mileage will be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS mileage rate
reimbursement limits which are intended to cover the cost of fuel, depreciation,
insurance, maintenance and other similar operating costs. Expenses related to the
mechanical failure or accidents to personal cars are not reimbursable.

When utilizing a personal vehicle for business, travelers must maintain liability
insurance on the vehicle in accordance with New York State requirements. The Agency
may periodically request proof of insurance from such travelers.

Rental Cars. A vehicle may be rented when renting would be more advantageous to
the Agency than other means of commercial transportation, such as using a taxi.
Advance reservations should be made whenever possible and a compact or economy
model requested unless the itinerary, number of travelers or baggage support the choice
of a larger vehicle. The traveler is responsible for obtaining the best available rate
commensurate with the requirements of the trip. When the traveler uses a rental car
also for a personal side trip, he or she is expected to pay the appropriate portion of both
the per-diem and the mileage expense.

The Agency’s insurance company currently provides liability and physical damage
coverage if a vehicle is rented in the Agency’s name in the U.S. or Canada. Therefore,
if’ similar coverage is offered by the rental company, it should be declined in these

circumstances.

Miscellaneous Automobile-related Expenses. Charges for parking, ferries, bridges,
tunnels, or toll roads while an individual is traveling on Agency business will be

reimbursed.

B. Air Travel
Whenever practicable, travelers are expected to use tourist, economy, coach or “standard”

accommodations for air travel. The Agency discourages more than three employees traveling
on the same flight.

-143-



Travelers may retain Agency business frequent flyer mileage credits for personal use.
However, air carrier selection cannot be biased by the traveler’s frequent flyer affiliation. The
lowest cost air travel should take precedence after considering departure/arrival times and

number of stops.

Surface Transportation Used in Lieu of Air Travel

If advance approval has been obtained, a traveler may use surface transportation for personal
reasons even though air travel is the appropriate mode of transportation. The cost of meals and
lodging, parking, mileage, tolls, taxis, and ferries incurred while in transit by surface
transportation may be reimbursed. Such costs shall not exceed the cost of airfare, based on the
cost of regular coach fare available for the location of travel from a standard commercial air

carrier plus transportation costs to and from the airport.

Other Forms of Transportation
Rail, shuttle, subway or bus transportation may be used if it is convenient and less expensive

than alternative transportation or it saves time. If a traveler’s destination is served by a regularly
scheduled airline, the uyse of rail or bus transportation shall be reimbursed in accordance with
the procedures specified under Surface Transportation in Lieu of Air Travel.

Food and Lodging
Lodging, meals, gratuities and related miscellaneous expenses while an individual is on travel

status for the Agency will be reimbursed in their actual, reasonable amounts when properly
documented. Gratuities should generally not exceed 20% of the total bill and are reimbursable
if a restaurant receipt is submitted. Generally, hotel housekeeping gratuities are reimbursable
up to 35 per day. Accommodations are expected to be comfortable and appropriate to the
particular purpose of the trip-not luxurious or extravagant. Wherever possible, the Agency’s
New York State sales tax exemption should be claimed. Tax exemption letters are available

from the Finance Department.

Miscellaneous Travel Expenses
Examples of miscellaneous travel expenses that are reimbursable are the following:

Reasonable tips for baggage handling, etc.

Business telephone or internet calls and occasional, reasonable personal calls.
Highway and bridge tolls.

Necessary parking fees.

Small supplies on an emergency basis

Fees for visas, passports, and inoculations are allowable when they are a specific and
necessary condition of fulfilling a work assignment.

o Cab gratuities, generally not exceeding 20% of the total cost of the cab ride.

Travel Expenses Not Reimbursed
Expenses that are not reimbursable include:

o Lost or stolen tickets, cash, or personal property.

e Fines.
» Accident insurance premiums (the Agency provides workers compensation and

accidental death and disability insurance to employees).
o Child, pet or house-sitting expenses.

-144-



e Penalties or fees for cancellation or change of discounted tickets when the cancellation or
change came about from personal rather than Agency choice.

e In-room movie or video game rentals.

» Hotel mini-bar charges.

 Dry cleaning (unless the Agency requests that the traveler extends their regularly
scheduled trip or when the traveler is away from home for more than six days).

*  All costs pertaining to spouses, partners or other non-Agency personnel accompanying
the traveler

¢ Tobacco products

The above listings are not all-inclusive and items not listed will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.
Section 2: Conferences and Seminars

Reimbursement of conference and seminar fees and related hotel and meal expenses will be limited to
those reasonable, necessary, approved expenses which are reported in an Expense Report with
supporting receipts or documentation. The Agency will only reimburse reasonable meal and beverage
expenses of guests when the purpose of the meeting is to discuss Agency business, If this is the case,
the Agency requires that the traveler provide a listing of the guests whose costs are being reimbursed,
their organization and title and the business purpose of the meeting. :

If a conference registration fee includes an extra charge for social activities, such as site-seeing tours,
golf outings, etc., these charges are considered personal expenses and will not be reimbursed.

Section 3: Dues of Professional or Technical Organizations

Dues for approved memberships in professional or technical organizations are reimbursable when they
are related to the employee’s job responsibilities.

Section 4: Meals & Entertainment

There are occasions when the Agency may provide meals and li ght refreshments to Board or committee
members, officers, employees, guests or visitors to support the mission of the Agency. As with other
Agency expenditures, authorized officials must exercise prudent business judgment in reviewing
proposed expenditures for meals and light refreshments based on their reasonableness and benefit to
the Agency and its mission of promoting general economic development in Erie County. In addition,
such expenditures should be cost effective and in accordance with the best use of Agency administered

funds.

Meals and entertainment costs of a spouse or partner will only be reimbursed if their presence serves
a business purpose (such as if he or she has a significant role in the proceedings or makes an important
contribution to the success of the event). Official functions to which spouses or partners are invited as
a matter of protocol or tradition may be considered as bona fide business-related activities if their

inclusion serves a legitimate business purpose.

4.1 Employee Morale-Building Activities Exception

The cost of meals, light refreshments and entertainment for official employee morale-building
activities that serve an Agency business purpose may be reimbursed as an exception to this Policy.
Examples of such occasions include a gathering to honor a departing employee who is retiring or who

-145-



is separating from Agency employment, employee recognition receptions, annual staff picnics, and
holiday gatherings. Employee gifts and/or celebrations for milestone anniversaries (ex. 10, 15, 20, 25,
etc.) are also allowed. Celebrations and/or cakes for employee birthdays or for Agency interns are not

reimbursable.

4.2 Entertainment Expenses Not Reimbursed
Expenses that are not reimbursable include:

¢ Entertainment expenses that are lavish or extravagant under the circumstances;

* Entertainment expenses for birthdays, weddings, anniversaries, or farewell gatherings
(excluding the morale-building expenses referenced in section 4.1 above).

* Memberships/dues for private clubs, unless such membership is determined by the Board
and/or Members to be appropriate for the conduct of Agency business in accordance with its
corporate purposes.

o Adult entertainment

Section 5: Advances

Cash advances are not generally provided because individuals who travel regularly on Agency business
are encouraged to use their personal credit cards to charge their travel expenses.

If hardship would result or for travelers without a personal credit card, cash advances can be obtained
from the Finance department. To obtain an advance, the traveler must complete a “Request for Cash
Advance” form which must be approved by both the CFO and CEO (or CFO and the Chair of the Audit
Committee in the case of the CEO). Any excess of cash advances over allowable out-of-pocket costs

must be promptly refunded to the Agency.

Section 6: Reimbursement Approval

Reimbursement may be requested as soon as the individual has made the expenditure, completed their
Expense Report and had it approved. Expense Reports must be approved by the individual’s Division
Manager or the CEO (or Chair of the Audit Committee in the case of the CEO). The individual
approving the Expense Report should not have personally benefited from the expenditure. If the
Agency Chairperson benefited from the expenditure then the Audit Committee Chair must approve the
Expense Report. If both the Agency Chairperson and the Audit Committee Chair benefited from the
expenditure then the Board or Members of the Agency must approve the Expense Report.

In approving a request to reimburse an individual for expenditures authorized under this Policy, the
approving authority must determine that: '

» The expenditure serves a clear and necessary business purpose of benefit to the Agency and
its mission of promoting general economic development in Erie County;
» The expenditure of funds is reasonable, cost effective, and in accordance with the best use of

Agency administered funds; ’
* Any alternatives that would have been equally effective in accomplishing the desired

objectives were considered.

Individuals may not approve the reimbursement of their own expenses. In addition, an employee shall
not approve the expenses of an individual to whom he or she reports either directly or indirectly.

-146-



Original, dated receipts or bills are required for hotel, car rental and airline expenditures and for any
other item of expense exceeding $25. Other out-of-pocket expenses should be listed by date, type, and

purpose on the traveler's Expense Report.

If a required receipt is lost or unavailable, a written explanation of the circumstances must accompany
the reimbursement request.

6.1 Expenses Charged directly to the Agency

Certain expenses may be paid directly by the Agency through check, ACH or other direct payment
methods. Examples include such items as airline tickets, rental cars, accommodation and seminar
registration fees. The fact that certain allowable business expenses may be paid directly by the Agency
does not relieve a traveler from complying with the substantiation requirements of this Policy (original
receipts, airline tickets and other supporting documentation must be attached and details, provided

regarding any guest costs).

Fees for membership in credit card reward programs where the beneficiary of the rewards is the
o indiVidu'a'l' are nOt reimbllrs.abl.e. s T T T LIS RN T SRS TS AL S T T

Section 7: Expenses in Foreign Currency

For expenses paid in foreign cash, the exchange rate at which the traveler bought the foreign currency
applies, and a receipt for the purchase of that currency should be kept and attached to the Expense

Report.

Section 8: Taxability of Reimbursements

In general, where the individual supplies a detailed accounting of bona fide business expenses to the
employer, the amounts reimbursed are not taxable income to the traveler. It is therefore in the traveler’s
interest to carefully follow the Agency’s procedures for reporting and documenting expenses.

Section 9: Policy Exceptions

On rare occasions, exceptions to this policy may be required. Exceptions may only be made with prior
written approval by the ECIDA Board Chair or Vice Chair.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-147-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), Buffalo and
Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”), and Buffalo and
Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Introduction

. Applicability: This Whistleblower Policy (“Policy”) shall apply to the Erie County

Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”) and its affiliated corporations: Buffalo and
Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”), Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”), and any other affiliated entities
that may be established by the ECIDA (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Agency”) upon approval by the respective Board of Directors or Members of the

Agency. e

. Scope: In accordance with Title 12 of Article 9 of the Public Authorities Law, the

Agency is required to adopt a policy to afford certain protections to individuals who,
in good faith, report violations of the Agency’s Code of Ethics or other instances of
potential wrongdoing within the Agency.

Purpose: This Policy provides Agency members, directors, committee:members,
officers, and employees with a confidential means to report credible allegations of
misconduct, wrongdoing, or unethical behavior and to protect those individuals,
when acting in good faith, from personal or professional retaliation.

Definitions

“Good Faith”: Information concerning potential wrongdoing is disclosed in “good
faith” when the individual making the disclosure reasonably believes such
information to be true and reasonably believes that it constitutes potential

wrongdoing.

“Agency Employee”: All members, directors, committee members, officers, and staff
employed at the Agency whether employed full-time or part-time, employed
pursuant to a contract, employed temporarily, or employees who are on probation.

“Whistleblower”: Any Agency employee (as defined herein) who in good faith
discloses information concerning wrongdoing by another Agency employee, or
concerning the business of the Agency itself.

“Wrongdoing”: Any alleged corruption, fraud, criminal or unethical activity,
misconduct, waste, conflict of interest, intentional reporting of false or misleading
information, or abuse of authority engaged in by an Agency employee (as defined
herein) that relates to the Agency.

-148-



e. “Personnel action”: Any action affecting compensation, appointment, promotion,
transfer, assignment, reassignment, reinstatement or evaluation of performance.

Ill: Reporting Wrongdoing

All Agency employees who discover or have knowledge of potential wrongdoing
concerning board members, officers, or employees of the Agency; or a person having business
dealings with the Agency; or concerning the Agency itself, shall report such activity in
accordance with the following procedures:

a. The Agency Employee shall disclose any information concerning wrongdoing either
orally or in a written report to his or her supervisor, or to the Agency’s ethics officer,
general counsel, or human resources representative.

b. All Agency Employees who discover or have knowledge of wrongdoing shall report
such wrongdoing in a prompt and timely manner. ... oo .

c. Theidentity of the whistleblower and the substance of his or her allegations will be
kept confidential to the best extent possible.

d. The individual to whom the potential wrongdoing is reported shall investigate and
handle the claim in a timely and reasonable manner, which may include referring
such information to the Authorities Budget Office or an appropriate law
enforcement agency where applicable.

e. Should an Agency Employee believe in good faith that disclosing information within
the Agency pursuant to Section 3(a) above would likely subject him or her to adverse
personnel action or be wholly ineffective, the Agency Employee may instead disclose
the information to the Authorities Budget Office or to an appropriate law
enforcement agency, if applicable. The Authorities Budget Office’s toll free number
(1-800-560-1770) should be used in such circumstances.

IV: No Retaliation or Interference

No Agency Employee shall retaliate against any whistleblower for the disclosure of
potential wrongdoing, whether through threat, coercion, or abuse of authority; and, no Agency
Employee shall interfere with the right of any other Agency employee by any improper means
aimed at deterring disclosure of potential wrongdoing. Any attempts at retaliation or
interference are strictly prohibited and:

a. No Agency Employee who, in good faith, discloses potential violations of the
Agency’s Code of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing shall suffer
harassment, retaliation or adverse personnel action.

-149-



I
|
l

b. All allegations of retaliation against a Whistleblower or interference with an
individual seeking to disclose potential wrongdoing will be thoroughly investigated
by the Agency.

c. Any Agency Employee who retaliates against or attempts to interfere with any
individual for having in good faith disclosed potential violations of the Agency’s Code
of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing is subject to disciplinary action,
which may include termination of employment.

d. Any allegation of retaliation or interference will be taken and treated seriously and
irrespective of the outcome of the initial complaint, will be treated as a separate
matter.

V: Other Legal Rights Not Impaired

~ The Whistiebiower Poiicy and Procedures set forth herein are not intended to limit, diminish or
impair any other rights or remedies that an individual may have under the law with respect to
disclosing potential wrongdoing free from retaliation or adverse personnel action.

a. Specifically, these Whistleblower Policy and Procedures are not intended to limit any
rights or remedies that an individual may have under the laws of the State of New
York, including but not limited to the following provisions: Civil Service Law § 75-b,
Labor Law § 740, State Finance Law § 191 (commonly known as the “False Claims
Act”), and Executive Law § 55(1).

b. With respectto any rights or remedies that an individual may have pursuant to Civil
Service Law § 75-b or Labor Law § 740, any employee who wishes to preserve such
rights shall, prior to disclosing information to a government body, have made a good
faith effort to provide the appointing authority or his or her designee the
information to be disclosed and shall provide the appointing authority or designee a
reasonable time to take appropriate action unless there is imminent and serious
danger to public health or safety. (See Civil Service Law § 75-b[2][b]; Labor Law §

740(3]).
Vi. Implementation

This Whistleblower Policy shall be provided to all directors, officers, and employees of the
Agency and shall be reviewed annually by the Agency’s Governance Committee.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above.

-150-



